
  Date Posted: 1/17/2014 

   
 

All times are approximate and for reference only.   

The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein. 

 
 (Continued) 

  
 
 

Information about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush 
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (415) 897-4133.  A fee may be 
charged for copies.  District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If special 
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to 
the meeting. 

 
Est. 
Time Item Subject 

7:30 p.m.  CALL TO ORDER  

 1.  CLOSED SESSION Conference with Real Property Negotiators as allowed under 
Government Code 54956.8. Property: Interconnection Agreement between North Marin 
Water District and Marin Municipal Water District; District Negotiators: General Manager, 
Chief Engineer, and Counsel; Negotiating Party: Marin Municipal; Under Negotiation: Price 
and Terms 

 2.  APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, January 7, 2014 

 3.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  

 4.  OPEN TIME:  (Please observe a three-minute time limit) 

  This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not 
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water 
District.  When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask 
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a 
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  The public may also 
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration. 

 5.  STAFF/DIRECTORS REPORTS 

 6.  PRESENTATION BY MARIN COUNTY STAFF ON STAFFORD BIKE PARK  

8:00 p.m. 7.  QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

 8.  MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT w/Customer Service Questionnaire  

  ACTION CALENDAR 

 9.  Approve: Interconnection Agreement with MMWD 

 10.  Approve: Gallagher Well Funding Agreement                                                      Resolution 

  INFORMATION ITEMS 

 11.  Preparing for Dry Year Conditions 

 12.  Ethics Training for Board of Directors & Officers 

 13.  MISCELLANEOUS 
Disbursements 
Annual Sick Leave Buyback  
Renewal of Oceana Marin Liability Insurance 
Meter Reading Accuracy  

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING 

January 21, 2014 – 7:30 p.m. 
District Headquarters 

999 Rush Creek Place 
Novato, California 
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Est. 
Time Item Subject 

Letter from Dietrich Stroeh 
In Memory of Bill Melson 

  
News Articles: 
Marin, Sonoma water agencies call for conservation as drought continues 
Mendocino County declares drought emergency 
Sonoma County Water Agency launches conservation effort 
Please save water this winter 

9:00 p.m. 14.  ADJOURNMENT 
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Item # 2

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRIGT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

January 7 ,2014

CALL TO ORDER

president Rodoni called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin Water

District to order at 7:30 p.m. at the District headquarters and the agenda was accepted as

presented. presentwere Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, Stephen Petterle, Dennis Rodoniand

John Schoonover. Also present were General Manager Chris DeGabriele, District Secretary Katie

young and Auditor-Controller David Bentley and Chief Engineer Drew Mclntyre'

Novato Resident Josh Thomas, District employees Robeft Clark (Operations/Maintenance

Superintendent) and Tony Arendell (Construction/Maintenance Superintendent) were in the

audience.

MINUTES

On motion of Director Schoonover, seconded by Director Baker and unanimously carried the

Board approved the minutes from the previous meeting as presented.

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

MMWD I nterconnection Aqreement

Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that on Friday the 10th, he and District legal counsel Bob

Maddow will be meeting with Marin Municipal to resolve the final wording on the proposed

I nterconnection Agreement.

Board Workshop

Mr. DeGabriele reminded the Board that Tuesday, January 14th is the Board Workshop at 6

p.m.

Citv of Novato

Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board that he and David Bentleywill be meeting with the City of

Novato and the Golden Gate Bridge District next Wednesday to discuss the city's interest in

relocating the District.

Public Policy Facilitatinq Committee

Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board that on Friday, the '17th, he and Director Petterle will be

attending the Public Policy Facilitating Committee meeting'

6

7

I
I

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

NMWD Draft Minutes 1of 9 January 7,2014



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
I

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Oceana Marin Homeowner's Association Meetinq

Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that on Saturday, the 18th, he will be attending the

Oceana Marin l-lomeowner's Association Meeting to review sewer operations and plans forthe next

fiscalyear.

OPEN TIME

president Rodoni asked if anyone in the audience wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response.

STAFF / DIRECTORS' REPORTS

president Rodoni asked if staff or Directors wished to bring up an item not on the agenda

and the following items were discussed:

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that the District held a pre-bid meeting forthe next phase of

the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project, He noted that there was a good attendance, about 25

contractors, and that there could be 10 potential prime contractors. He stated that he is hoping to get

five competitive bids. Mr. Mclntyre provided the Board with a quick overview of the next phase and

stated that tomorrow the southern aqueduct relocation, near Birkenstock, will have a tie-in shuþ

down, He advised the Board that District crews and contractors are working well together and there

were no surprises with the first tie-in.

Director Baker asked if there have been any issues or glitches with the project. Mr. Mclntyre

answered none and hopes that it continues to work as well as it has been'

president Rodoni introduced Tony Arendell to the Board and welcomed him to his first official

Board meeting as the Construction/Maintenance Superintendent.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On the motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Baker and unanimously carried, the

following items were approved on the consent calendar:

WINTER 201 4 NOVATO WA LINE TEXT AND LAYOUT

The Board approved the draft text and design for the winter 2014 WaterLine, Volume 15,

lssue 31. This issue of water line will inform customers of the extremely dry weather conditions

persisting since Janu ary 2013 causing severely lowwater storage levels in Lake Mendocino and low

water shortage levels in Stafford Lake, and advise customers of the need to reduce water use this

winter. lt is expected that the winter 2014 Novato WaterLine will be mailed in the mid January.
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The Board authorized implementation of a Pilot Ultra High Efficiency Toilet Distribution

program. The pilot Distribution Program will provide a free toilet to replace toilets installed prior to

the year 2OOO. Customers will be asked to call or email to be considered/reviewed for eligibility'

placed on an interested customer list, and then contacted with the date and time of the distribution'

ACTION CALENDAR

AEEP4MSN 83 TREE REMOVAL CONTRACT

Mr. Mclntyre advised the Board that the next phase of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency

project requires the District to remove trees along Hwy 101 corridor from the south end of San

Antonio Road to Kastania Road to lessen potential sites for nesting birds during the spring and

summer. He stated that the District advertised bids in December and received three bids, Mr.

Mclntyre informed the Board that The Professional Tree Care Company's bid ($179,975) came in

3% lower than the engineers estimate, He noted that District staff checked out references and

looked at The professional Tree Care Company's experience and everything checked out well' Mr.

Mclntyre advised the Board that the trees are required to be cut down within four weeks. He stated

that staff recommends awarding the contract to The Professional Tree Care Company'

Director Fraites asked what the ratio of trees removed to restored would be. Mr. Mclntyre

stated that the ratio would be 1 :1 for native trees removed'

Director Baker asked if just the trees were being removed or the stumps as well' Mr.

Mclntyre stated that the stumps will be removed as part of the pipeline project contractor.

president Rodoni asked if this projectwill be reimbursed by CalTrans. Mr. Mclntyre said most

of the tree removal will be reimbursed.

On motion of Director Fraites, seconded by Director Schoonover and unanimously carried,

the Board approved award of contract to The ProfessionalTree Care Company and authorized the

General Manager to execute an agreement with The Professional Tree Care Company.

CHANGE ORDER NO. 6 - ESA FOR BIOLOGICAL MONITORING SERVICES

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board with the approval of the tree removal contract for the

Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project, a condition of the regulatory permits is to have a biological

monitor on-site primarily to insure that no-red legged frogs are negatively impacted as a result of the

tree removal project. He stated that since the District already has Environmental Science

Associates (ESA) under contract for various environmental consulting work, staff requested a cost

NMWD Draft Minutes 3of9 January 7 ,2014
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proposal from ESA to provide a biological monitor. Mr. Mclntyre advised the Board that staff is

requesting an additional g30,000 to the current contract with ESA for this effort'

On motion of Director Schoonover, seconded by Director Baker and unanimously carried the

Board authorized the General Manager to execute Change order No. 6 to ESA to perform biological

monitoring services for the AEEP/MSN 83 Tree Removal project in the amount of $30'000'

WA s/o^, 2-

THE COVELLO GROUP

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that The Covello Group has been providing construction

management services for the South Service Area Phase 2 construction Project and staff is

requesting a second Amendment to cover Covello's remaining cost for front-end specification

review. He noted that additional cost for the services would be $9,500'

On motion of Director Schoonover, seconded by Director Fraites and unanimously carried

the Board approved Amendment No. 2 to The Covello Group's Contract for Construction

Management of the Recycled Water Expansion Project in the amount of $9,500.

RECYCLED WA TER SOUTH S AREA PHA 1B PROJECT_ PPROVE

CONTINGENCY INCREASE TO $210,100

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that when staff was closing out the Recycled Water

Expansion South Service Area Phase 1B project staff approved Change Order No' 31 to Disney

Construction prior to obtaining Board approval since the sum of the approved cumulative change

orders exceed the Board approved contingency limit. He noted that the total project cost including

change order no. 31 was including with the final project cost given to the Board in August. Mr'

Mclntyre advised the Board that the change order is for additional pavement striping that occurred

and the contingency would now be 9210,100. Mr. Mclntyre stated that the Disney dispute has been

slowed down in communication because there has been discussion between legal counsel that

reconciliation might occur with no mediation but nothing has been decided yet'

On motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Schoonover and unanimously carried

the Board approved the contingency increase to $210,100 for Change order No. 31.

president Rodoni asked if the Board could receive a repoft on the Disney Construction

setflement. Mr. Mclntyre stated that he does not have any new information currently, but as soon as

staff has new information he will bring it back to the Board'
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CLUB COURSE RECYCLED WA FEASIBILITY STUDY UPDA - 2014

Mr. Mclntyre reminded the Board of the Recycled Water feasibility study completed over 10

years ago for service to the Marin County Club Golf Course. He said with the lack of rain this fall the

golf club has renewed interest to update the study to reflect the best information regarding recycled

water and what the terms, costs and options would be. Mr. Mclntyre stated that staff asked Nute

Engineering for a cost proposal, which would be paid by the Marin County Club, to update the

Recycled Water Feasibility Study. Mr, Mclntyre believes that if the Marin County Club goes forward

with obtaining recycled water it would happen in 5-10 years'

Director Baker asked if there has been dialogue about speeding up the timetables'

Mr. Mclntyre stated that the Marin County Club would most likely piggyback on the Central

service Area Expansion which should be completed in 4-5 years.

On motion of Director Schoonover, seconded by Director Petterle and unanimously carried

the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an agreement with Nute Engineering in the

amount of $10,000 for preparation of Marin County Club Golf Course Recycled Water Facilities

Study Update,

REVISED REGULATION 6

Robert Clark reminded the Board that Regulation 6 - Cross Connection and Backflow

protection for potable Water Service was reviewed initially on November 19th. He noted that District

legal counsel has reviewed the revised regulation as well. Mr. Clark stated that the revised

regulation includes reference to Title 17 of the california Department of Public Health code of

Regulations and a paragraph describing non-compliance and device tampering penalties plus

discussion of customer responsibilities and updated installation costs'

president Rodoni stated that it is unclear how this revised change applies or doesn't apply to

a device that is currently serviced by the District.

Mr. Clark said that the District has inspected all District owned devices and if a device fails

testing the device is repaired or replaced and charged to the customer. He noted if the customer

owns the device, they would have 45 days to repair it'

president Rodoni stated that he believes most customers to not realize they are responsible

for the backflow device and that the District should notify the customer if they own the device and

are responsible for maintaining it'
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Mr. Clark stated that District staff has developed a manual for the backflow devices and the

manual includes a paragraph that will notify the customer about the device, who owns it, why it's

there and that a letter is required to be signed and returned to the District stating their compliance'

Director Baker asked how many devices were in Novato. Mr. Clark stated about 3,000

devices. Director Baker asked how many of the 3,000 devices are District owned. Mr. Clark stated

about 50%.

On motion of Director Petterle, seconded by Director Fraites and unanimously carried, the

Board approved the revisions to Regulation 6 - Cross Connection and Backflow Protection for

Potable Water Service.

INFORMATION ITEMS

PREPARING FOR DRY YEAR CONDITIONS

Mr. DeGabriele provided the Board with an extensive report on preparing for dry year

conditions. He stated that rainfall in Novato this fiscal year through December 31tt is at just over 2"

and on Lagunitas Creek rainfall at the Kent Lake rain gauge is just under 3". Mr' DeGabriele

provided the Board with a chart that included a table comparing rainfall in 1976177 and 201 3114' He

stated that there is stilltime for a "miracle March" to occur although there are no visible changes in

ocean conditions and the long range forecast does not predict rain until mid-February. Mr'

DeGabriele informed the Board that Lagunitas Creek is now under dry year conditions and

beginning April 1't, North Marin must inform customers of a water shortage emergency public

hearing and contingency measures in the West Marin WaterLine. He stated that from April 1't

through June 30th, the District will requesta 1l%voluntary reduction in water use, and from July 1't

through November 1't, the District is to requesta2So/o mandatory reduction in water use' Mr.

DeGabriele advised the Board of an alternative method to address West Marin and Lagunitas Creek

reductions where the District can purchase water from Marin Municipal Water District for release

and diversion downstream.

President Rodoni asked if request would impact the contingency plan.

Mr. DeGabriele stated that it would add more flexibility and would allow for better operations.

He asked that the Directors get familiar with the contingency plans and if the Board and staff need to

make adjustments theY can do that.

' Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that the Russian River water supply system is currently

designated as normal pursuant to the State Water Resources Control Board Decision 1610, yet

Lake Mendocino storage has dropped so low that the State Board has authorized lower stream
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1 flows. He informed the Board that through December 31't, Lake Sonoma holds just over 167,0004F,

2 which the water contractors believe is ample to supply the regions needs this summer' Mr.

3 DeGabriele advised the Board that the Sonoma Marin Saving Water Partnership has issued a press

4 release requesting community members to eliminate all unnecessary outdoor irrigation, promoting a

5 new outreach program and designed new advertisements which will be seen in the newspapers in

6 the coming weeks.

7 Mr. DeGabriele informed the Board that staff has made a proposal to Marin Municipal to

g back feed Russian River water into Stafford Lake. Mr. DeGabriele mentioned to the Board that it

g might be worthwhile to suggest to Marin County Parks and lndian Valley Golf Course to backfeed
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Stafford Lake as well.

Director Baker asked when the last time the District backfed into the Lake. Mr. DeGabriele

stated in February 2009. He noted that once the District staded backfeeding it began to rain.

Mr. DeGabriele stated that he believes the District is doing a good job so far having a

message on the District's website, Facebook page, news releases have gone out and the winter

WaterLine will be going out next week asking customers to turn off all unnecessary irrigation.

president Rodoni asked if there were current restrictions on the Marin County Parks and

lndian Valley Golf course where they are unable to take more water from Stafford Lake.

Mr. DeGabriele stated that the park intake has bottomed out and they have trouble with

irrigation but the golf course made an improvement with their well and pump system making it more

reliable.

president Rodoni asked if there was a limit to what they can pump. Mr. DeGabriele stated

that the District has the authority to impose restrictions on pumping.

Josh Thomas, Novato resident, stated that he believes the District in the view of the present

drought conditions should make the water restrictions mandatory instead of voluntary and asked the

reasoning behind not making it mandatory'

president Rodoni asked if Mr, Thomas wanted mandatory restrictions to be immediate'

Mr. Thomas stated that the District needs to deal with the conditions currently and

immediately request mandatory restrictions.

Mr. DeGabriele stated that it is still early January and Lake Sonoma still holds 167,0004F of

water supply and that it would be able to provide water for all contractors from Windsor to MMWD if

needed.

NMWD Draft Minutes 7of9 January 7,2014



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
o

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Director Petterle stated as a consumer he is a strong water conservation advocate and he

believes that customers are not hearing the message the District is sending and the restrictions get

imposed and the customers don't conserve'

Mr, Thomas stated that according to the Marin lndependent Journalthe county is in severe

drought conditions and he doesn't believe customers would have an outrageous reaction to impose

mandatory restrictions as long as the Board emphasizes the need to protect a continued water

supply.

president Rodoni asked if the water use was typical for the winter. Mr. DeGabriele replied

that it was higher than typical winter uses'

Director Petterle reminded the Board that the District has a plan in effect.

Director Schoonover stated that the District cannot rely on Lake Sonoma and the District

needs to do more outreach to the public letting them know what the District is planning on doing'

Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that staff will continue to keep the Board apprised as the

weeks proceed.

TAC MEETING - JANUARY 6,2014

Mr. DeGabriele provided a quick summary of the January 6, 2014 Technical Advisory

Committee Meeting. He stated that David Guhin from the City of Santa Rosa is the new TAC Vice

Chair and Damien O'Bid is now the budget subcommittee chair. He informed the Board that there

was a budget subcommittee and TAC ad hoc meeting where they spoke about the storage

conditions and he requested an allocation model on how the water would be distributed to the

various contractors should there be a water shoftage.

Director Petterle requested updates on the water shortage issue at every meeting.

NBWA JANUA 3.2014

Director Fraites informed the Board that Carrie Pollard presented the Sonoma Marin Saving

Water partnership annual report and other speaker spoke about the Corte Madera sea level rise

and how the Bay Area can deal with the sea level rise and what damages may occur. He noted that

several organizations are coordinating efforts to study ways to deal with this issue for the future'

CITY OF NOVATO PA MORA MEASURE A 5

Mr, Mclntyre reminded the Board that the District sends out notices once a year regarding

the city or county paving improvement projects, He noted that over 600 letters were sent out this

year.
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Director Baker asked if the City of Novato sent out a letter as well.

Mr. Mclntyre stated that the City did send a letter as well, but the District sent out another

letter to have a better form of communication

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous information: Disbursements and CDPH

Grant Letter.

The Board also received the following news articles: County retool of water policy, Public

Meeting slated on 15-year Russian River Plan, Robert Giacomini Dairy Honored for Love of its

Land, Dry year spurs new conservation orders for 2014, State Water Resources Board Approves

Temporary Urgency Change Petition, PD Editorial: Time for action on saving water, and Water

officials cut Russian River releases from Lake Mendocino'

Mr. DeGabriele advised the Board that the District received really good news from the

California Department of Public Health stating that the District was granted $1'486M for the

Gallagher pipeline project. He congratulated Drew Mclntyre and staff for the hard work and effoÉ to

obtain the grant.

Mr. DeGabriele recommended adjourning the meeting in memory of Bill Melson a retired

District employee.

Director Baker stated that he was a dedicated, generous, wondefful person.

ADJOURNMENT

president Rodoni adjourned the meeting in memory of Bill Melson at 8:56 p.m.

Submitted bY

Katie Young
District Secretary
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To:

From

Subj:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

David L. Bentley, Auditor-Controller

lnformation - FY13/14 December Financial Statement
t:\accountants\f¡nancials\stmtfyl 4\md&4 1 2 1 3 doc

FY13l14
YTD Actual

$11,509,487
$8,838,714

FYTD
13114

$10,524,847
$8,1 12,453
($151,377)

$2,261,017
20,480

FY13l14
Budqet

$18,585,000
$16,046,000

FYTD
12t13

$9,153,741
$7,846,763

($98,375)
$1,208,603

20,492
1,665

$4.35
$58.e8

$0.73
$156,450
$155,868

January 17,2014

FYTD /
Budqet %

620/o

55o/o

48%

Dec-13

$1,534,243
$1 ,187,954

$321
$11 13

Dec-13
$1,431,760
$1,092,061

B

$31 1 87

480

FISCAL YEAR.TO-DATE PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY
Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating ExPense
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

Net lncome/(Loss)
Other Sources/(Uses)'

Cash I ncrease/( Decrease)
1 See Page 8.

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year ComParison
Operating Revenue
Operating ExPense
Other lncome / (ExPense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate/1'000 gal (net)

lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal

Connection Fee Revenue

Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

13 90 18

$332,597 $2,372,865 $1,921,000
184 $3 752 207

125 072
000 582%
000 239%

For the first half of the fiscal year the District generated a net incom e of $2,372,865 and saw a net cash

increase of 96,125,072. The cash increase is largely attributable to the receipt of $3.75 million in

Recycled Water grant and loan funds. ôñ; tetsonãtty adjusted basis,-Operating Revenue came.in 6%

over budget and operating Expense came in 3% oier budget. Twerty percent of the capital

lmprovement projects Budget *", 
"*p"nded 

this fiscal year-to-date. The District's cash balance

increased $1 1,413 during the month'

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA

PRESENTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNT¡NG PRINCIPALS

FY14 vs 13

Up/(Down)
15%
3o/o

54o/o

87%
(0%)
4%
B%

87o/o

80o/o

(100%)
44o/o

7

217

$4.72
$15 23

$1.44
$o

$9,091

1,729
$4.72

$1 10.40

$1.31
$o

9223,751

consumption for the period wâs 4o/o more than the prior year. Total operating revenue, which includes

wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges,'increased 15% ($1 ,371,106) due to the 11o/o rate

increase commenciné Jun" 1,2013 combineo wlttr the consumption increase. Total operating expense

was 3% ($26s,6g0) ñrore than last yeâr same period, due primarily to an increase in water treatment

ãrp"nr",'.oupíed with an increase in the volume of purchased water.

The stafford rreatment prant produced 326 MG this fiscar year-to-datg 3l l.cost of $3,730iMG1 versus

92,201iMG3 from SóWn. ih'" brOg"t for Stafford is 750 MG at a cost of $2,811/MG'

1 
Stafford production cost = op expense ($770,0s7) + SRF loan interest ($166,504) + plant depreciation ($279'374) I 326

1

MG produced



Memo re December Financial Statement
January 17,2014
Page 2 of 3

Salary and benefit cost charged to Novato operations wàs 4o/o more than the same period last year'

staff time (hours) charged to Novato opárations *qs_ 1I.- less than last year same period' salary and

neÀef¡t cosìwas $z,oaZ]gO¿, which was 48% of the $5,648,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year-to-date net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and

expense) of $2,261,017 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of 92,021,000 and to a net

income of 91,20g,603 for the prior y""r r",i" period. $1,151 ,464 (15%o) of .the Novato Water Capital

lmprovement project Budget was spent uettrå $506,801 (16%) for the.prior year same period' No

connection fees were co¡eîted ($g60,000 is budgeted). The Novato cash balance decreased $100,634

in December, and stood at $14,526,438 at ñronth end, compared to a budgeted projection of

$12,833,000 at June 30,2014.

FY14 vs 13

Up/(Down)
198%
600/o

(B%)
(e5%)

1000%
173%
8%

(e5%)

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year GomParison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (ExPense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate/1,000 gal (net)

Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Potable Water lnPut (MG)

Dec-13
$20,831
$23,820

($23,e04)
($26,893)

44
4.2

$4.44
0.0
0.8
0.8
0.0

FYTD
13114

$434,622
$292,446

152 41

FYTD
12t13

$145,900
$182,305

($165,780)
($202,1 86)

4
34.9

$4.11
30.2

0.0
0.0
0.0

44
95.0

$4.44
1.6

55.8
35.1

3.9

g5.0 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year-to-date. operating revenue was up 198% due

primarily to the 173o/o consumption increãie òoupled *itt'ì tt.'" 8% commodity rate increase' Total operating

expense was $110,140 (60%) more than last year same period, due primarily to the addition of purchased

water cost from NSD and LGVSD. The recycled water was produced at a cost of $2,621/MG2 versus

$Z,ZOytr¡C3 from SCWA. The budgeted prodúction cost of recycled water is $4,692/MG'

The fiscal year-to-date net loss of 910,242 compares to a budgeted net loss for the year of $339,000 and

a net loss of gzoz,igo for the prior year same period. 541r,731 Qa6o/o) of the Capital lmprovement

Project Budget has been expended this fiscal year{o-date.

To date, g15,694,g67 has been expended on the North/South Area Expansion Projects, and $3,408,739 in

Grant funds ano $g,2a2,016 in snr loan funds have been received. Another $623,647 in grant and loan

funding is anticipated to be received this winter. A $1,245,929 transfer of connection fees from the Novato

potable water system to fund the local share of the recycled water expansion project and December debt

service payments 
"n"ol"o 

the Recycled water system to pay down the money borrowed from Novato'

leaving ä nãlrn." of $24,770 due to the Novato Potable Water System'

2 
Recycled Water production cost = op expense before depreciation ($152,105) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan interest ($38'972) + Deer

lsland plant depreciation ($57,960) / 95 MG produced 
- - ,Â¡^,\ , ñ

ü;;;;.t", 
""., 

per rr¡c = o&M charge ($1 ,gog) + debt service charge (g1 54) + Russian River conservation charge ($19a) + Russian

2

R¡ver projects charge ($45)
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WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year ComPar¡son
Operating Revenue
Operating ExPense
Other lncome / (ExPense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)

Average Commodity Rate/1,000 gal (net)

lncome/ (Loss) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal

Connection Fee Revenue
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

OCEANA MARIN SEWER

Year over Year ComParison
Operating Revenue
Operating ExPense

Other lncome / (ExPense)
Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge

lncome / (Loss) / Active Account

Connection Fee Revenue

FYTD
Dec-13 13114

$6ô,768 $461,218
$56,546 $327,321
$16,874 ($18,224)

--Tzz¡97 $115,672

-776 

776
6.2 44.2

$8.35 $8.47

$34.92 $149.06
$4.37 $2.62

$0 $0

s3,472 $5,051

Dec-13
$14,885
$15,527

FYTD
13114

$88,800
$106,4e4

$24,112$21 165
0 ---s6717

FYTD
12t13

$416,562
$266,320

$e 501
1 44

FY14 vs 13

Up/(Down)
11%
23o/o

776
43.6

$7.79
$205.86

$3.66
$4,900

($1 ,ast ¡

(2BYo)

0o/o

1o/o

9o/o

(28%)
(2e%)
(100%)

consumption for the period was 44.2 MG, 17o mOre than the previous year same period' operating

revenue of $461,21g was g44,656 gl;t"l'more than last year due primarily to the 8% rate increase

effective 7t1113, comb¡ned with the consumption increase.

Operating expenditures were $327,321, up 24o/o ($64,443) from the previous year same period' in part

due to testing of the Gallagher well (Er¿,207), vàlve and hydrant operation programs (which were not

done last year) ($1 7,1g2), replacemenior a cnämical feed pump ($4,888), replacement of a hydrant bury

on sir Francis Drake ($s,32g), ano paving the point ReyesTank'Ròad ($2,700) The fiscal year-to-date net

income of $115,072 compares to a ouõgeted annual-net income of $212,000 and to a net income of

$159,744 for the prior year same p"rioJ. õì¿g,691 (34%) of the capital lmprovement Project Budget was

spent this fiscal year-tä-date, and' no connection fees were collected ($46,000 is budgeted)' The solids

Handring Facirity project ($192,51r L*ö".¡ád lo-date) has been put on hord pending a coastal

deveropment permit tiom ùar¡n county.-wãs1 þ1n^wãter ended the month with a cash balance of

9736,114, compared to a budgeted projéction of $555'000 at June 30,2014'

FYTD
12113

$78,996
$1 01 ,1 65

FY14 vs 13

Up/(Down)
12o/o

5%
1%

302o/o

1%

12o/o

$23,764

229
$65

$28.02
$30,400

$1,595
227
$58

$7.03
$0

229
$65

$89.62
$0

operating revenue of ggg,g00 was 12% higherthan the previous year same period dueto a12o/orale

increase effective July 1 , 2013, plus twã nõw owerring units connecting to the system on December 1'

operating expeno¡tuiå, *"r" s.L ($s,gãg) nìgrrer thañ rast year same period due primarily to a 93,421

increase in the state discharge permit teé, rñe fiscal year-tô-oate net income of $6,417 compares to a

budgeted annual ¡nCome of $ã2,'ooo "nJió 
a net income of $1,595 for the prior year same period' None

of tnä Capital lmprovement Project Budget was expended'

930,400 in connection fees were coilected ($30,000 is budgeted).-oceanar/rarin ended the month with

a cash balance of g263,734, compareo'iáã'nroôeted projeótion of $238,000 at June 30,2014.

3



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31 ,2013

ASSETS
Gash & lnvestments
Unrestricted/Undesig nated Cash

Restricted Cash (Note t)
Connection Fee Fund
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund

Collector #6 Financing Fund

Revenue Bond RedemPtion Fund

Bank of Marin Project Fund

RWF Replacement Fund

Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury

STP SRF Loan Fund-Marin Co Treasury

RWS North/South SRF PaYment Fund

nated Cash 1t'tote

Liability ContingencY Fund

Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund

Drought ContingencY Fund

Maintenance Accrual Fund

Conservation lncentive Rate Fund

Operating Reserve Fund
TotalCash

Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments
Market Value of Cash & lnvestments

Current Assets
Net Receivables - Consumers
Accounts Receivable - Other
State Revolving Fund Receivable
Provision for Pension Related Debt 1t'lote te¡

Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable-

l-otal Gurrent Assets

TOTAL

$200,074

$138,91 1

394,622
1,551,550

30,000
6,091,516

0

1,972
471,906
623,580

315,815
310,471

3,235,149
0

2,727,999
0

60 000

$16,1 53,564
17 157

s16,170,721

NOVATO
WATER

$0

$0
394,622

1,551,550
0

5,522,586
0

0

471,906
0

315,815
306,811

3,235,149
0

2,727,999
0
0

$14,526,438
17 157

$14,543,595

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$623,580

$83,1 36
368,383
364,265

0

0

0
0

0
0

WEST MARIN
WATER

$138,911
0
0

30,000
568,930

0

1,972
0

0

$739,812

OCEANA
MAR¡N
SEWER

$0 $200,074

$

$0

$0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0

623,580

0

0

0

0

0

0
1

0

0

0
659

0

0
0

0

000

3,

60,

0
0
0

0

0

0

0
12

0

À
0
0

0

0
0

0

0

$62

650$8004$141,175,1

580

0
$7 39, I $263,734

0

9263,734

$2,1 15,384
998,655
364,265

2,153,624
60,577
19,450
22,130

571,999

$1,906,379
537,648

0

2,153,624
60,577
1 6,1 90
22,130

571,999
22,000

$134,592
3,251

0
0
0

3,260
0
0
0

($8,723)
89,373

0
n

0
0
0
0

022 000

$6,328,084 $5,290,546 $8 84

t:\aæountants\financials\stmtfyuvìnfys xlsl h6l2j1 4 10:49 AM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31 ,2013

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Note 3)

TOTAL

$1,250,530
(1 10,000)

24,770
2,137,470

$3,302,770

91,473,021
5,557,888

21,060,233
18,396,517
5,567,990

68,287,982
1,149 525

$2,485,989
672,4A0
300,004

1 ,151 ,035
734,817
196 436

$5,540,682
(3.477,978)

s2,062,704

$938,864
12,390 364

$13,329,227
$97,249,183

$123,050,759

NOVATO
WATER

$1,250,530
(1 10,000)

24,770
U

$1,368,802
5,065,476

17,561,535
16,466,506
5,445,667

55,921 ,913
0

$2,485,989
672,400
300,004

1 ,151 ,035
734,817
196 436

$5,540,682
(3,471,154)

$2,069,528

$928,749
2,516,598

93,445,347
972,506,287
$93,505,729

NOVATO
REGYGLED

$0
0

0

2 137,470

$0
0

2,666,198
43,014

0

8,232,655
0

$'10,941,866
(1,062j26)

$0
ß.824)

($6,824)

$0
9,426,922

ï9,426,922
$19,299,838
$22,876,672

WEST MARIN
WATER

$103,41 1

492,412
319,913

1,886,996
122,324

4,133,415
0

97,058,471
(2,933,436)

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$0
0

0

0

$0

$0
0

0

0

0
7

0
0
0

Housing Loan lmpairment 1t'lote e¡

Due From Other Funds

Other Long Term Receivables
Loans Receivable $1,165,300 $2,137,470

Pro and Plant

Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities

Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities
Distribution Facilities
Sewer Mains, PumPs, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5)

Net ProPertY and Plant

Buildinqs and Equipment

Buildings
Office EquiPment
Laboratory EquiPment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction EquiPment
Tools, ShoP EquiPment
Sub-Total
Less Accumulated DePreciation

Net Buildings and EquiPment

Construction ln Proqress

Developer
District

Total Gonstruction in Progress
Net UtilitY Plant

TOTAL ASSETS

$121,493,157 $101,829,899
(3e,635,905) (34,838'487)

- æt.esz¿s2 $66,991,412

2Ã

$808

,58

$861,065

('r 149,525

$1,662,921
(801,857)

$9,879,740 $4,125,035

0
0

$0
0

0

0
0

0

$0
0

0
0

0

0

$0

$0
0

0
0

0
0

$

$0

$0
0

$5,051
446,844

$451,895

$5,063
0

$5,063

$4,576,931 $866,128

$5,457,847 91,219-þ12-_.-+

t:\aæountants\flnancials\strntf'ry\f nffs-xls1/16/201 4 1 0:49 AM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31 ,2013

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

o)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Trade Accounts PaYable

Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds

Bond Debt Principal Payable-Current
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marìn Principal Payable-Curreni
Bond/Loan Debt lnterest Payable-Current

Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan

Deposits/Performance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note 8)

Deferred Compensation
Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable

Payroll Benefits (Note 9)

Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Total Gurrent Liabilities
Restricted Liabilities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabilities
Lonq Term Liablilities (Note 7)

Bonds Outstanding - PR6 (Fm HA)

Bonds Outstanding - OL2 (NMWD)
Bonds Outstanding - PREl (FmHA)

Drought Loan (EDA)
STP Rehab SRF Loan

RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan

Bank of Marin Loan
Gustafson House Loan
Pension Related Debt (tlote ls)
Retiree Health Benefits PaYable

Total Long Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

$1,023,125
14,210
22,917

1,259,561
305,621

2,869
121,675
133,184
23,816

0

17,446
801,302

24,77Q
89,310

$953,964
14,210

0

742,375
266,502

1,621
1,357

111,926
23,816

0

16,423
753,144

0

0

$2,885,339

$623,768
$623,768

$0
0

0

50,283
12,735,521

0
0

6,162,781
0

2,153,624
623 834

$21,726,043
$25,235,149

$69,161
0
0

5'14,933
0

0
120,317

0
0

0
288

12,949
24,770

0

$0
0

22,917
2,252

39,120
1,247

0
19,758

0

0
556

26,586
0

0

$0
0

0

0
0

0

0

1,500
0
0

180
8,623

0
89 310

$99,613

$0
$99,613

$3,839,806

$623,768
$623,768

$75,000
Ã

72,000
57,088

12,735,521
3,022,026
8,911,147
7,067,487

0

2,153,624
623 834

$34,717,732
$39,181,306

$742,418 $112,436

$0

3,022,026
8,911,147

0
0
0
0

$11,933,173
$12,675,591

$75,000
Ã

72,000
6,806

0

0
0

904,706
0
0
0

$1,058,516
$1,170,952

$0

$0
0

0

0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
$0$0

$0

$0
0

0
0
n

t:\acæuntants\financials\stmtfyÃVinfyÃ.xls1 /1 6/20'l 4'1 0:49 AM



NORTH MARIN WATER D¡STRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31 ,20'13

Net Assets

Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees lttote ts¡

Total lnvestment
Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund

Collector #6 Financing Fund

Revenue Bond RedemPtion Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
RWF Replacement Fund
RWS North/South SRF PaYment Fund

$55,672,980 $4,104,370 $2,102,018 $674,739
114,420 3,911,970 1,383,215 0

25,337,616 3,557,193 1,167,996 465,928

NOVATO
WATER

394,622
1,551,550

0

5,522,586
n

0

315,815
3,965,681

290,387
2,611,315

0
0

(28,98e,679)
2,261,017

0
1,030,822

($12,854,435)
$68,270,580

$1 0,216
26,863

796,938
0

(50,000)
(8,4e0)

(107,992)
363,286

0

0

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

$138,91 1

0
0

30,000
641,457

0
0

98,885
0

10,248
0

64,809
0

(1,458,806)
115,672

0
(7,510)

$0
0

(453)
ñ

0

0
(3,634)

5,474
0

(8,8e7)

-reTõI

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWERTOTAL

$62,554,107
5,409,605

30,528,732Æw@
394,622

1,551,550
30,000

6,164,043
161,661
623,580

($1,691,e88) ($1,808,550) $0
0
0
0
0

161,66'1
623,580

0
0

4,168
0
0
0

(2,148,895)
(10,242)

0
(2,725)

$0
0

0

0

0

(1,880)

0
(84s)

0

0
0

3,479
0
0

60,000
(76,126)

6,417
0

(1,190)

--l$2e-reBl$1 ,1 10,899

($22,348)
0
0
0
0
0
0

(1 ,1

! Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund 414'700
Maintenance Accrual Fund 3,965'681

Self-lnsured Workers'Compensation Fund 308'282
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund 2,611,315
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund 64'809
Operating Reserve Fund 60,000

Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs (32,673,507)
Net lncome/(Loss) 2,372,865
FRC Transfer Prior Year 0

Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see below) '1 ,019'396
Total Restricted & Designated reT@W

TOTAL NET POSITION $83,869,453
Transfer (To)/From Reserves
Wohler Pipeline Financing

Collector #6 Financlng
Connection Fee
Liability Reserve
Maintenance Reserve

Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)iLoss Self-lnsured WC Fund

Bank of Marin Project Fund

RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund

Conservation lncentive Rate Fund

($1.372,453) ($366,335)
$10,201 ,080 $4,286,894

$r 0,2'16

26,863
796,485

0

(50,000)
(8,490)

(1 r 4,696)
368,760

(845)
(8,8e7)

$0
U

0

0

0

0

e0)

0

0

0

-$1,030,822

(s2.725\ ---l$ì70õITotal Transfer- $1,019,396

t:\amuntants\flnancials\stmttyn\finfyfr-xls1 /16/201 4 1 0:49 AM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT . ALL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR PERIOD ENDING DEGEMBER 31,2013

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budqet

YTD/
Bud olfo

Prior YTD
Actual

oPERATING REVENUË
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Deprecration ExPense

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE(EXP ENSE)

Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest ExPense

Miscellaneous ExPense
TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE(EXPENSE)

OTHER
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Grants Proceeds Receivable
Caltrans Reimbursement
Stone Tree RWF Loan PrinciPal

Add Depreciation ExPense

Capital Acquisition (1 5 Gustafson)
Capital EquiPment ExPenditures
Capital lmProvement Projects
Bond & Loan PrinciPal PaYments

Change in Working CaPital
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

309 527 570 000

$11,509,487 $18,585,000

$8,958,358
2,152,943

88,660

$13,539,000
4,298,000

178,000

$7,726,630
1,790,380

78,996
199 192

$9,795,199

s47,739
51,208

101,015
(385,854)

(44,997)
($230,888)

660/o

50%
50%
54%
620/o

$3,333,273
202,711
355,666

1,113,762
69,041

1,200,215
286,984
157,531
653,276

$4,696,000
375,000
669,000

1,994,000
129,000

2,751,000
566,000
404,000

'1,583,000

$3,092,187
197,486
342,366
928,318
68,904

1,172,447
277,362
127,691
837,802

1,351,992

$8,396,554

$1,398,644

1, 466,255 2, 879,000

71o/o

54%
53%
560/o

54o/o

44o/o

51%
39o/o

41o/o

510/o

55%$8,838,714

$2,670,773

$47,169
59,579
83,081

(455,430)

$16,046,000

$2,539,000

$93,000
$96,000
135,000

(e12,000)

105%

51o/o

62%
62%
50%

103o/o

48%
(32.307\ (30, 000)

($2e7,e08) ($618,000)

N Er r N co M E(Loss) @- -Ttrzïõo-o- 124o/o -si,67re-
OF FUNDS

$30,400
2,911,791

140,044
701,381
378,440
97,668

1,466,255
(580,64e)

(6,075)
(1,712,886)
(1,066,001)

$936,000
3,472,000

138,000
961,000

2,200,000
197,000

2,879,000
0

(23'1,000)
(8,378,000)
(1,529,000)

0

$161,350
811,294

1,258,030
669,387

25,789
95,356

I ,351,992
0

(85,374)
(5,078,425)

(56e,471)
(1,920,754)

3o/o

B4%
101%
73o/o

17%
50%
51%

3o/o

20%
7Oo/o

391 8391

$3,752,207 $645,000

CASH I NCREASE/(DECREASE) -$6;îM7T $2,566,000

5B2o/o

239Yo

($3,280,826)

I
l:\accounlants\finâncÌals\stmtfylO\finfyl0 xls[budget vs actual]



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue
Operating ExPense
oPERATING INCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET INCOME/(LOSS)

B 112,453

$2,670,773 $2,412,394 9142,177 $133,897 ($17,6e4)
$24,112($2e7,e08) ($ 151,377) ($ 152,419) ($18,224)

s2,372,865 $2,261,017 (910,242) $1 15,672 $6,417

TOTAL
$11,509,487

8,838,714

NOVATO
WATER

910,524,847

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$434,622
292.446

WEST MARIN
WATER

$461 ,218
327,321

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$88,800
106,494

Net Assets December 31,2013 $83 53

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer ln-Kind Contributions
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer
CapitalGrants

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets JulY 1, 2013

Net lncome/(Loss)
Add Depreciation
Gash Generated From OPerations

Other Sources Uses of Funds
nection Fee Revenue

Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Stone Tree RWF Loan PrinciPal Pmts

Principal Paid on Debt

Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)

Construction Advances (Decr) lncr

Other Assets/Liabilities Decr (lncQ

Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr

Connection Fee Transfer
lnterdistrict Loan Due To (From)

Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

Gash Balance JulY 1,2013
Cash Balance December 31,2013

B 579 10 080 $4 6,895 $t

$228,865
30,400

0

140,044

$223,751
0

(1,453,134)
0

$o
0

1,453,134
140,044

$5,05 $63
30,400

0
0

I
0

0

0

$399,310

92,772,174
81,097,278

($1,22e,383)

$1,031,634
67,238,945

$1,593,178

$1,582,936
8,618,144

$5,051

9120,724
4j66,171

$30,463

$36,880
1,074,018

11 898

$2,372,865
1,466,255

s2,261,017
1,220,814

($10,242)
140,341

$115,672
76,591

$6,417
28,510

$3,839,120 $3,48'1,831 $130,099 $192,263 $34,927

30,400
2,911,791

140,044
(2,299,612)

97,668
(1 ,066,001)
$1 ,317,992

320,328
1,311,260
(477,e20)

0

PI

0
0

0

(1,738,189)
0

(501 ,31e)
$ I ,184,919

320,328
301,843

(315,4e8)
(1,453,134)
4,730,651

0

2,911,791
140,044

(412,731)
97,668

(531,756)
9106,427

0

993,732
(156,911)

1,453,134

(32,925)

$1 6,1 85
0

14,270
0

0

0

1,416
(5,512)

0
0

0

0

0

48,691)
0

1

30,400
0

0
0
0
0

$10,461
0

(4.730,65'1)

$2,285,951

$6,125,071 $6,011,432

($151,161)

s41J02

698,710

$36,765

$71,692

192,042

$2,529,601 ($12e,254)

$845

10,028 ,493 8 515 006 622,735

$14.526,438 $623,580 $739,812 $263,734

I

_gl_q,153,591_
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER

2013

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter UP/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD
Regulation 1 5 Forfeiture

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Eng ineering
Operating Expense - Source
Maint/Monitoring of Dam

Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Fishery Maint
Erosion Control
Purchased Water (Note 4)

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

PUMPING
Operating ExPense - Pumping
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of PumPing EquiPment
Electric Power

$1,431,760 $10,524,847

$1,034,777
(9,824)

342,712
6,290

575
113

0
9,434
3,342

44,341
0

$8,213,255
(50,772)

2,056,272
36,249
4,965

618
2,320

6'1,230
27,900

172,810
0

66%
33%
50%
49%
50o/o

62%
5B%
49%
112%
54%
0o/o

620/o

26%
96%
30o/o

0o/o

0%
10%
66Yo

0%
232o/o

72%

71%

$7,312,018
(68,339)

1,713,561
37,433
4,975

756
1,900

50,394
16,220
84,823

0

$9,153,741

$3,944
6,750

10,296
0

15
2,480
8,518

0

13,939
3,165,008

$3,210,952

341 229

$346,028

$0
2,977
1,406

$698
294
16'1

0
0

1,901
1,745

0
0

$4,057
2,999

14,671
658

0

1,695
7,476

100
17J83

13 555

PUMPING $17,938

3,026 .521

$3,075,361

$o
15,238
15,817

153,308

$184,363

$92,'102
134,743

45,575
15,140
8.892

$296,452

$16,878
17,375
8,043
2,949
1,461

$101,763
129,695

48,370
19,142

B 853

0%
55%
25%
66%

55%

43o/o

6B%
60%
27%
42o/o

51o/o

$o
'19,93'1

17,440
146,850

$184,222

OPER,ATIONS
Supervision & Engin eering
Operating ExPense - OPerations
Maintenance ExPense
Telemetry Equipment/Controls Maint

Leased Lines
OPERATIONS $46,707 $307,823

10
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER
2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATE R TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering

Operating Expense - Water Treatment

Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification EquiPment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water QualitY SuPervision

Laboratory SuPPlies & ExPense
Customer Water QualitY
Lab Cost Distributed

WATER TREATMENT

TRANSM ISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D SYstem

Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering

Customer Service ExPense

Flushing
Storage Facilities ExPense

Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regulators
Maint of Mains
Backflow Prevention Program

Maint of CoPPer Services
Maint of PB Service Lines

Single Service I nstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check AssemblY Maint

Maint of HYdrants

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection ExPense - Labor

Collection ExPense - AgencY

Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing

Stationery, SuPPlies & Postage

U ncollectable Accounts
Office EquiPment ExPense

Distributed to West Marin (4.1%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

(1, 859) (10,302)

$113,572 $1,043,144

$9,355
25,880

0

5,901
3,211

22,441
47

9,994
24,890

3,'161

6,'100
870

3,582

$62,706
171,333
260,350

46,359
31,371
84,106
62,577
51,256

'163,789

25,565
36,332
32,815
24,889

$230,322
35,387
82,976
53,602
15,536
79,308

502
48,453

6,709
50,558
32,262
55,068
86,849

245,247
766

47,149
17,296

$76,087
13,508

1,053
126,542

8,928
35,905

9,097
10,386

460/o

6B%
61o/o

52%
4Oo/o

69%
57%
550/o

51%
77%
60%
51%
40%
40%

57o/o

$52,856
143,279
19'1 ,169
42,371
23,329
59,1 1 5

40,842
45,340

154,286
17,341
29,270
30,934
19,507

(14,117)

$835,523

$37,508
6,704

19,048
7,484
5,064

13,825
502

6,367
0

1 8,1 36
5,317
9,471

15,402
34,122

1,365
8,123
8,971

39%
28%
49%
91%
27o/o

47o/o

3o/o

44%
29%
31%
28%
97%
43o/o

55%

$211,547
56,695
82,590
34,174
10,668
85,462

639
36,671

8,765
54,748
45,386
48,590
73,274

286,069
916

40,071
4,300

11,2282 077 15 496

$199,485 $1,103,486

913,224
1,979

'106

23,392
1,495
5,463

820
3,748

(1.355)

33%
15%
28%

42%

52o/o

42o/o

53%
51%
47o/o

54%
40%
69%
49o/o

51%

$74,381
14,853
1J26

124,844
9,941

31,411
10,390

5,354

$1,091,793

$48,873 $274,123

865

9264,434

(t, 383)

11
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER

2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

WATER CONSERVATION
Residential
Commercial
Public Outreach/lnformation
Large Landscape

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consultants
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative ExPense
Election Cost
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment ExPense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment ExPense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5.9%)

G&A Applied to Construction

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciatiorì (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$38,380 $153,831

$33,743
100

3,733
804

$121 ,034
494

23,401
I 902

41o/o

2o/o

47o/o

33%

3B%

$'109,654
87

11,948
894

$127,583

$1,400
2,550
1,302

0
0

80,45'1
451

3,1 83
6,1 36

386
0

325
725

11,112
42

2,045
162
337

1,990
3,225
5,990

12,603
(23,803)

(4,65e)
(28,336)

$77,618

203,461

$1,092,061

$6,900
12,688
15,092
17,990

0

579,442
6,492

15,758
6,447
6,127

0

42,022
4,105

58,355
201

14,670
1,399
1,055

12,829
36,840
35,939
76,978

(109,612)
(38,201)

$7,500
2,857

15,949
1 1 ,100
35,298

616,284
4,861

13,774
5,464
9,340

0
40,1 39

4,056
5'1,648

444
14,27?-

1,665
913

21,712
35,508
38,564
82,830

227
(40,271)

(177,e56)

$79ô,1 79

1,175,076

$7,846,763

46%
115%
50%
86%
0o/o

48o/o

50Yo

29o/o

64%
34%
0%
81%
51o/o

34%
10%
70%
47%
53%
29o/o

37%
37o/o

49%
41%
42%
52o/o

41%
189 5

$614,058

1,220,814

$8,112,453

51%
55o/o

oPERATING INCOME(LOSS) $339,6ee $2,412,394 102o/o $'1,306,978

12
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DEGEMBER 31,2013

ÞECEMBER
2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON.OPERA TING REVENUE
lnterest:

General Funds
Facility Reserve Charge Fund

Wohler PiPeline Financing Fund

Collector #6 Financing Fund

Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund

Self-lnsured Workers' ComP Fund

Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund

Recycled Water Advance (Note 1o)

Total lnterest Revenue
Rents & Leases
Other Non-OPerating Revenue

Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NO N-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest ExP

7,291
8,492

494
698 19 595

$18,975 $132,792 61%

($1,892)
(0)

271
1,064
2,195

151
3,284

Oo/o

111%
72o/o

69%

90%
51o/o

62%
71o/o

17%

51%
51%
41%
240/o

50%

112o/o

218

$18,383
28,052

272
96

$0
0

1,107
4,345
8,960

589
14,410
24,856

$54,266
48,912
'10,018

$111,222
166,504

1,631
4,812

--TZB-4reg

$67,238,946
2,261,017

223,751
0

(.453,1 34)

$68,270,580

$0
1,209

915
4,064
7,538

0

5,056
86,622

$'105,404
43,666
50,695

248

$200,013

STP SRF Loan lnterest ExPense

Drought Loan lnterest ExPense

Other Non-OPerating ExPense
NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY

NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions

Connection Fees

FRC Transfer to RecYcled Water

ENDING FUND EQUITY

N Er r NcoM E(Loss) __i91-1,811- 
--u,261 

pll-

$1 13,090
176,962

1,992
6,343

$46,803

311 ,87 1

9,091
0

(1,245,928)

Oo/o

271%

$298,387

$1,208,603

$66,963,785
1,208,603

155,868
156,450

0

$68,484,706
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER

DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31' 2013

DECEMBER
2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOU RCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD

Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

PUMPING
Maint of PumPing Equipment
Electric Power

PUMPING

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating ExPense - OPerations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance ExPense

Telemetry Equipment/Controls Maint
OPERATIONS

WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chem icals

Maint of Purification EquiPment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

TRANSMISSI ON & D¡STRIBUTION

Supervision & Engineering
Operation of T&D SYstem

Storage Facilities ExPense

Maint of Valves/Regu lators

Backflow Prevention Program

Maint of Meters
Maint of Mains

TRANSMISS¡ON & DISTRIBUTION

GENERAL AN D ADMINISTRATIVE
Meetings, Conferences & Training

$20,831 $434,622 74%

$18,593
2,154

0
84

$421,688
12,670

12
252

73Yo

127%
$143,252

2,396
0

252

$145,900

($3,093)
0

$53,943
48 334

($3,093) $102,277

47%
71o/o

560/o

$3e9 20o/o

352
$1,751 88%

$0

$9e
0

$9e

912,157
4,705

16,290
0

703

$33,855

$18,61 1

361
4,530

12,143
6 558

$42,203

$2,001
6,304
7,588

0

0
0
0

$1s,893

$0
$8,243
$8,243

82,011
$182,305

-- 
($36'40Ð-

$0
0

$352
23

$375

9322
0

14
0

312

$4,1 04
6

20,327
0

494

37o/o

0%
203o/o

o%
5%

660/o$648 $24,930

$0
0
0
0
0

$1 ,1 32
2,121

0
106
67

8To

53o/o

o%
1%
1o/o

7%

10%
1B%
79o/o

224%
0Yo

4%

41o/o

41Yo

50o/o

4Bo/o

(618%)

$0

$309
0

70
22

0
0

1,551

$1,952

$1,578
178

2,380
2,238

0
39

$10,731

140,341
$292,446

$3,426

2 576
$8,989 2Ùo/o

($Bao¡ $0
309 $10 7311Distributed from Novato (1'6%)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

79

23,459
$23,820

oPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)-- ($2'ee0)- 

- 
g142Jll-
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NOVATO RECYGLED WATER

DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER
2013

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:

Stone Tree RWF Loan $4'538

NON-OPERATING REVENUE $4'538

NON.O PERATING EXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense $6'566

19,657
0

2,218
$28,442

Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense

Other Non-OPerating ExPense

lnteresþAdvance from Novato (Note 10)

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY

NET INCOME(LOSS)
State ProP 50 Grant
IRWMP ProP 84 Grant
Water Smart Grant
FederalARRA Grant
FRC Transfer from Novato

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$27 618
7,618

$38,972
116,209

0

$8,618,144
(26,8e3) (10,242)

1,971 1,971
O0
0 138,073
O0

1,245,928 1,453,1?+

-$l-q¿q'oB9-

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

24 856
$180,037

NET TNCOME/(LOSS) --l$æ,-Be3) ---99'ry-
3o/o

51%
51o/o

53o/o

47o/o

51o/o

49%

0o/o

160/o

0%
271%

$29,930
$29,930

$41,289
29,752
38,047
86,622

$195,710

($202, I 86)

8,534,827
0

470,929
727,765

59,337
0

15

t:\accountants\financ¡als\stmtfyu\f¡nfyu xlsl/16/2014 10:49 AM



WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31' 2013

DECEMBER
2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Operating ExPense
Operating Supplies & ExPense
Maint of Structures
Water Quality Surveillance

SOURCE OF SUPPLY

PUMPING
Operating Labor
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of PumPing EquiP

Electric Power

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Telemetry EquiPment
Leased Lines

OPERATIONS

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification EquiPment
Water Quality Programs
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water QualitY
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

$66,768 $461 ,218

$1,047
111

0
0

$57,483
(5,70e)
14,000

156
30

9
799

$385,679
(11,4e3)
84,000

509
110
27

2 385

$5,726
111

14,208
0

66%

50%
51Yo

55%

50%

61%

4B%

178%
0%
95%

52To

33%
27%
0%

79o/o

$347,415
(7,715)
74,424

456
130

1B

835

$416,562

$9,301
0

7,525
0

$1,158 $20,045

$0
0

485
1,120

PUMPING $1,606 $16,738

$0
933

6,25ô
9,549

0%
B%
52%
64o/o

43Yo

62%
153Y0
29%
58o/o

72%

$16,82ô

$0
1,644
2,771
8,609

$392
2,604

0
479

$1,874
13,757
4,378
2 905

$13,023

$1,976
7,069

593
2,422

$3,475 922,913 $12,059

$490
2,507

0

0

6,302
0

1,582
2,992

399
101

44
1,860

$16,277

$3,633
4,632
1,342

0

1 1 ,100
46

14,813
16,037

1,629
1,671
2,109

10,179

57%
55o/o

41%
42o/o

42%
64%
54Yo

92,520
1,477

100
0

3,760
0

14,816
14,133

1,981

2,211
2,035
7,559

$67,1 92 $50,592
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

DECEMBER
2013

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

TRANSMISS ION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Eng ineering
Maps & Records
Operating Expense
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service ExPense
Flushing
Storage Facilities ExPense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Valve Operation Program
Maint of Mains
Water QualitY Maintenance
Maint of Backflow Devices
Backflow Dev I nsPection/Su rveY

Maint of CoPPer Services
Maint of PB Service Lines

Maint of Meters
Detector Check AssemblY Maint

Maint of Hydrants
Hydrant OPeration
Single Service lnstallation

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection ExPense - Labor

Uncollectable Accounts
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Program

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (3.2%)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$21 B

0
21

0

1,582
6,547
5,1 66

221
0

0

228
B5

209
0

8B

0

53'1

191

0

0

0

94,778
3,945

21

647
8,040
6,547

13,047
1,459
6,990
3,083
5,808

85
209

1,525
5,477

17,602
1,169

191
4,503
2,616

0

53%
132o/o

16%
45%

218%
59%

116%
103%
116%

21%
25%
110%
160Yo

5B%
10%

225%
262%

39%
32%

50%
45%

92%
92%

41o/o

41%

51o/o

60%

$8,414
3,167

0

BB5

6,534
0

6,803
1,020

0

115
384
725

0
503

6,931
26,847

771
0
0
0

1,660

$15,087

$1,631
96

0

196

s4,257
633
247

6 523
$1 1,661

$3,700

1

$87,740 B5% $64,760

$4,027
568
126

6,204
$10,926

$108

$1 0B

$23,848
$23,848

74,177

$266,320

,924

$556

,530

12,933

$56,546

$3,700

743
920,743

76,591

$327,321

$556

530 $20

o P E RATI N G I N C O M E/( LOS S ) 
--_91 

0,2n- 
---ql-19'8e?-

64% 9150,242
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER
2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON .OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund

Rents & Leases
Tax Proceeds - OL-2 G.O. Bond

Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Conservation lncentive Rate Fund

Other Non-Operating Revenue
NON-OPERATING REV

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
PR-3 G.O. Bond lnterest ExPense

OL-2 G.O. Bond lnterest ExPense

PRE-1 Revenue Bond lnterest ExP

PR-6 Revenue Bond lnterest ExP

Drought Loan lnterest ExPense
Master Plan Update
Other Non-Operating ExPense

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Developer'l n-Kind' Contributions
Connection Fees

ENDING FUND EQUITY

ENUE $21,982 $29,681

$20
107
367

0

1,490
20,022

0
(24)

$84
453

1,464
4,035
1,532

22,092
0

20

101%
38o/o

51%

15%

2o/o

54%

51o/o

94%

55%

$0
0

1,982
3,917
2,802

21,638
1

2 3

$2,698
0

32
342
350

38
1,373

276

64%
51o/o

50%
45o/o

120%

$32,564

$17,260
350
280

2,299
2,300

279
0

294

$16,326
0

19'1

2,050
2,100

225
12,049
14 964

$4,166,'170
115,672

5,051
0

__q4,286,8e1_

$5,1 0B $47,905

NET INCOME/(LOSS) . $27,097 

-_$115'6?2-
$4,138,453

159,744

(1,451)
4 900

$23,062

$159,744

27,097

3,472
0 0o/o
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER

DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013

DECEMBER

2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

Sewer Service Charges
lnspection Fees

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

Maint of PumP Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds

SEWAGE DISPOSAL

OPERATI NG EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
lnspection
Maps & Records
Operating ExPense
Facilities Location
Maint of Lift Stations
Electric Power

SEWAGE COLLECTION

SEWAGE TREATMENT
Operating ExPense

Maint of Structures
Maint of EquiPment
Laboratory Direct Labor

Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

Electric Power
SEWAGE TREATMENT

SEWAGE DISPOSAL

OPERATI NG REVENUE

CONTRACT OPERATIONS

CONSU MER ACCOUNTING
Collection ExPense - County of Marin

Distributed from Novato (0.5%)
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (1.0%)

$1,609 $23,063

$1,302
0

$14,885

$14,885
0

$88,660
140

$78,996
0

$78,996

$3,731
72

0

698
211

2,912
4 666

912,291

$13,233
277

1,993
0
0

3 951

$19,455

$5,065
966

$6'031

$31 ,1 28
0

$31,128

$341
661

,001

$8,1 80
1,352

$9,532

20,728

$101,165

$e30
553

0

70
229

0
589

$5,826
988

77
63'1

453
419

4,414

32%
45%
5%

44o/o

44%

50%

83o/o

4Bo/o

0%
4B%

43%
6o0/o

42%
34%
41%

5B%

54%

$88,800 50%

$2,37 $12,8081

$0
0
0
0

(0)
609

105%
0o/o

118%

99o/o

89%
1

$15,815
0

1,176
B9

56
5,926

$0
0

$1,302

43%
0%
19%$0

Contract OPerations
Equipment Replacements/Upgrades

CONTRACT OPERATIONS

$5,311
0

$31,869
0

$5,311

$341
159

$31,869

$341
860 1

$1,200

Liability lnsurance
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$990

4,747

$15,527

$820
169

$6,726
1 017

$7,743

28,510

$106,494

oPERATING INCOME(LOSS)-- ($64'z)- 
---($1]'æ0-

B4o/o ($22'16e)
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER

DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

DECEMBER

2013

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

NON-OPER,ATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - Connection Fee Reserve

lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund

Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc

Other Non-OPerating Revenue
NON.OPERATING REVENUE

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY

NET TNCOME(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Contribution in Aid of Construction

Connection Fees
ENDING FUND EQUITY

$0
0

118
J

21,338
0

$500
0

541
I

23,544
0

51Yo

$500
89

420
5

23,060
4

50%

54%

$24,078

$31 3

$3 13

$1,595

$1,075,231
1,595

101%
$1,076,826

$21,459 $24,594 51o/o

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating Expense $294 $483

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE $294 $483

NET INCOME/(LOSS) _ $20,523- 

---q94-Z-
24%

20,523

14
0

$1 ,074,018
6,417

63
30,400

-$t 
J 10,898

0
0
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

ANALYSIS OF WORKER'S COMP, CONNECTION FEE AND CIR FUNDS

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31 ,2013

WORKE 'COMPENSAT N FUND

WC Gash Balance 711113

Less: Projected Prior FY Claims Liability

Add: Funds borrowed to subsidize operations

WC Reserve Balance 711113

Add: WC Expense Charged to Operations FYTD

lnterest Earned

Subtotal
Less: Claims Expense Paid

Excess lnsurance Premium

Administration Fees

WC Reserve Balance 1213111.3

Add: Projected Claims LiabilitY

Funds borrowed to subsidize operations

WC CASH BALANGE 12131113

GONNECTION FEE FUND

Gonnection Fee Gash Balance 711113

Add: funds borrowed to subsidize operations

Connection Fee Reserve Balance 711113

Add: Connection Fees Collected FYTD
lnterest Earned

Subtotal

Less: Fees Expended FYTD

Fees transferred to RWS FYTD (Note 15)

Connection Fee Reserve Balance 121311',3

Less: Funds borrowed to subsidize operations

CONNECTION FEE GASH BALANCE 1213'1113

CONSERVATION INCENTIVE RATE FUND

CIR Cash Balance 711113

Add funds borrowed to subsidize operations

GIR Reserve Balance 711113

Add: CIR Charges Billed FYTD

Regulation 1 5 Forfeitures

lnterest Earned

Subtotal
Less: CIR Funds ExPended FYTD'

BillAdjustments

CIR Reserve Balance 121311'13

Less funds borrowed to subsidize operations

CIR CASH BALANCE 12131113

10,804) 10,804)

__qry,e2g_ __qqq6,B19_ $o $3,65e $4,456

$166,'157 $13 $0
748\

TOTAL
NOVATO
WATER

WEST MAR¡N
WATER

OGEANA
MARIN
SEWER

RECYCLED
WATER

$0

247
2,535

$0

697
311

$2,537
22,476

213,524

$o

21,285
203 678

$182,393
148,077

589

$2,537
247

07

$6,614
5,0'10

0

$193,585
157,305

598

$2,290
1,625

I

$2,288
2,592

0

$351,488
12,568
24,638

6 000

$308,283
17,446

$331,059
1 1,831

23,1 93

5,648

$11,624
400
785

19'1

$3,924
130

255
62

$4,880
207
406

99

$290,388
16,423

0

$10,248
556

$3,479
180

0

$4, I 68

288
0

52,748) 0

$166,144
0 (52,

$1 13,409

30,400
453

$13
0
0

$166,144
0

453

($52,748)

30,400
0

$144,262

383,1 1 6

1,453,134

$13

365,429

1,453,134

$166,597

27,686

0

($22,348)

0

0

($1,691,e87) ($1,808,550) $138,91 1

0

($22,348)
(22.348\(1,830, 899) (1,808, 551 )

$138,91 1

$0

55 912

$55,9'12
75,885

0

0

$o 138 911

$o

55 912

$55,912
14,951

0

0

$o
0

60,

$0
349

0

0

$131,797
74,289
(7.300)

$60,934
70,589

$70,863
3,700

I On September 1, 2009 the Board authorized water conservation expenditures

to be charged against the Conservation lncent¡ve Rate Fund

(9 ,655 2 355

$64,809
64,809

$0 $64,809
64,8090

$o $o $0
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I ,2013
t:\accountants\f inanc¡als\stmtfyl 4Ucpm1 21 3.xlsl êquip

DECEMBER
2013

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 13t14
BUDGET

(ovER)
UNDER Notes

1 INFORMATION SYSTEMS
Administration

a. Server Software Upgrade

2 ADMINISTRATION
a. Phone System

3 ENGINEERING
a. Multi-Function Wide-Carriage Coprer (Used)

4 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. 3/4{on 2WD Alternate Fuel Pickup w/Svc Body
u, 3/4{on 2WD Alternate Fuel Pickup w/Svc Body
c. Propane Powered 5,000 lb Capacity Forklift
a. Hybrid 2WD Pickup
e. Hybrid 2WD Pickup

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

Notes
(c) Capitalized
(1) Replacement item

$6,075 $9,000 $2,925 ",t

$o
0

0
0

0

$30,000
30,000
35,000
40,000

$30,000 " 
I

30,000 
",r

35,000 
",r

40,000 
",r

40 000 40 000 
",r

$o

$0

$0

$6,075

$175,000

$231,000

$175,000

$224.925

22
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
OVERHEAD ACCOUNT ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013

YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL
ACTUAL BUDGET

Material Handlinq
Material Overhead Recovered (15%) $28,869 $112,000

$34,088 $101,000
1,707 6,000
(2,22e) 0

2.259 5 000

$35,824 112,000

Net Material Handling Gain / (Loss) ($6,956) $0 .

Construction Supplies
Const Supplies Overhead Recovered (10%) $1 13,719 $238'000

YTD/
BUDGET %

Net Constr Supplies Gain / (Loss) $27,053

Vehicle & Equipment
Vehicle & Equipment Recoveredl $176,860

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
Correction to lnventory Counts
Depreciation

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
SmallTools
Depreciation

Labor
Materials, Supplies & Expense
Fuel
Depreciation

$32,806
44,502
7,121

$33,681
24,109
56,342
49,978

$164,111

$12,750

2 238 5 000
86,666 $176,000

$74,000
78,000
19,000

$102,000
57,000

1 10,000
108,000

$377,000

$62,000 44%

$415,000 43%

26%

34o/o

28o/o

45%
32%

48o/o

44o/o

57%
37o/o

45o/o

49o/o

33%
42%
51%
46%
44%

Net Vehicle & Equip Gain / (Loss)
----$38,999-

34o/o

Pavroll
Overheaded Payroll $3,423,143 $7,203,000 480/o

Salary lncluding Leave Time
Employer FICA & Medicare Tax

lnsurance2
Retiree Medical
CaIPERS Retirement
Unreconciled Difference

$2,174,709
160,'182

444,292
37,625

533,625
(3.853)

$4,555,000
342,000
985,000
77,000

1,063,000

48o/o

47%
45o/o

49o/o

50%

48o/o$3,346,579

Net Payroll Gain / (Loss) ____$76,569*

Total Overhead Gain / (Loss) $109,410 $281,000 39%

T:\Accountants\Financials\stmtfy14\overhead analysisl 4

111412014 8:59 AM

$7,022,000

$181,000 
3

t Vehicle & Equipment Recovered is the amount charged to projects and operations to recover the expense of

owning and operating the asset. The recovery rate is $6/hr for vehicles 3/4{on and under $1'1lhr for larger

vehicles. An additional 50% is charged to developer projects to reflect the fair market value of the asset used
2 lnsurance lncludes Medical, Dental, Vision, Cafeteria, Life, & Workers' Compensation
3 Projected gain on self-insured worker's compensation gives rise to the budgeted payroll gain.
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES BY GATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 3I,2013

West Oceana YTD Annual

Novato Recycled Marin Marin Total Budget Budg
YTD Prior

et % YTD Actual

olto

Ghange

1

2
3
4
5
o
7

I
I
10
11

12
't3

14

OPERATING EXPENSE

Salaries & Benefits
Water Purchases
Depreciation
Materials, Services & SuPPlies

Chemicals
Electric Power
Tools & SupPlies (Distrib)

Vehicles and EquiPment (Distrib)

Retiree Medical ExPenses

Offìce Supplies & Postage
Water Conservation Rebates

lnsurance & Claims
Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss

Distributed Costs

Total OPerating ExPense

lnterest Expense & Other*

Total Expense

Warehouse. Shop & Yard

Salaries & Benefits

Materials, Services & SuPPIies

Distributed Costs

Developer Funded Proiects
Salaries & Benefits
Materials, Services & SuPPlies

Total Developer Projects

Total

*lncludes lnterfund lnierest

$2,689,764
3,165,008
1,220,814

527,835
260,350
209,428

89,697
108,279
76,978
51,663
31,653
35,939

(r 0e,640)
(245,343)

$12,502
102,277
140,341
22,374

1,132
1,352

528

$292,446
180,037

s51,207
0

305,756
361,524

$1 15,197
0

76,591
52,482

1,342
24.362

9,935
9,968

0

0
0

0
0

37,445

$2,826,608
3,267,285
1,466,255

652,146
262,824
245,483
100,378
1 19,61 0

76,978
51,663
31,653
36,955

(109,640)
(189,514)

$5,906,000
4,552,000
2,879,000
1,628,000

445,000
391,000
173,000
236,000
157,000
116,000

90,000
101 ,000

(265,000)
(363,000)

$2,712,983
3,026,521
1,352,014

670,708
209,880
230,724

86,471

109,589
82,830
45,185
30,464
39,91ô

227
(177,e56)

1,141
0

0

0

0

0

$9,145
0

28,510
49,455

0

10,341
218
223

0

0

0

1,017
0

7,586

48o/o

720k

51%
40%
59o/o

63%
620/o

51%
49o/o

45%
35%
37%
41o/o

52o/o

55o/o

51%

22%
630/0

420k

0%

4%
8%
8o/o

-J70

25o/o

6%
160/o

oo/^

-7o/o

14o/o

4%
-7%

798'10

52%
3%

s5%
17%

25%

6%

5o/o

-J10

-43o/o

-12%
-24o/o

o%

-1%
-93o/o

57Yo

-72%

33%
41%

37%

-18o/o

N)À17

15

16

'18

19

20

$8,396,594 9472,482

$70,498
179,509

(250,007)

$0

$8,112,425
284,169

$302,644
6,075

501,319
849,056

$98,745
140,273

s327,321
35,356

$106,494
483

$363,178 $106,977 $9,339,230 $17,037,000 55% $8,913,419 5%

$8,838,686
500,545

$70,498
179,509

(250,007)

$0

$397,986
6,075

840,001
1,299,721

$102,419
137,142

$16,046,000
99'1,000

$314,000
284,000

(5e8,000)

$0

$767,000
231,000

1,529,000
7,611,000

$212,000
276,000

$8,396,554
516,865

$123,969
205,O42

(329,010)

$402,281
87,275

533,769
4,674,243

$77,230
97.339

$174,569

$14,785,556

$o $o

544j34
0

32925
89 141

$o
0
0

$o
0
0

$o
0
0

$o
63

$o
0

$0

$o
0
0
0

$021 Total WH, ShoP & Yard

District Capital Outlav

22 Salaries & Benefits
23 Equipment
24 Debt PrinciPal PaYments

25 Materials, Services & SuPPlies

26 Total District CaPital OutlaY $1 ,659,094 $718,487 $166 201 $0 $2,543,782 $10,138,000 $5,697,568 -55%

27
28

29

30

$3,674
(3,1e4)

48%
50%

49o/o

44%

$239,018 $o $480 $63 $239'561 $488,000

$10,294,706 $1 ,190,970 $529,858 $107,040 s12,122,574 $27'663'000

10:30:264M 1t16t2014
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NORTH MAR¡N WATER DISTRICT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,2013
Fiscal Year to Date Vehicle Cost Mile

to Date FYTD FY13 FY12Year Descri

z 1994
e 1999
q 2000
s 2001
ø 2001
t 2002
e 2003
s 2003
to 2004
tt 2004
tz 2005
re 2005
t+ 2005
rs 2005
ro 2006
tt 2Q07
rc 2007
rg 2008
zo 20Q8
zt 2008
zz 20Q9
zs 201Q
zq 2O1O

zs 2Q1O

za 2012
zz 2012

a 2012 lnt'l 5 Yd

Veh# Ass ned

GMC C1500
Dodge Ram'1500
Dodge Dakota
Dodge Ram 1500
Dodge Dakota
Chev K1500 4x4
Dodge Dakota 4x4
Chev C1 500
Chev C1500
Chev C1500 Xtra Cab
Honda Civic Hybrid
Honda Civic Hybrid
Ford Ranger
Ford Ranger
Chev Colorado
Chev K2500 4x4
Chev Colorado
Ford F25Q 4x4
Ford F250 4x4
Chev Colorado 4x4
Toyota Prius Hybrid
Ford F150 4x4
Ford F150
Ford F150
Ford F250

30
32
40
41
42
47
49
51
53
54
56
57
58
59

501
502
504
505
506
509
510
511
512
513
515
516

19
44
52
55

503
507
508
514

STP
Engineering
Pool
On-Call
Bynum
Engineering
Stompe
Pool
Kurfirst
Mello
Engineering
Clark
Roberto
Venegas
Moore
Corda, Joe
Grisso
Arendell
STP
Lemos
Lab
STP
Ortiz
LeBrun
Reed
Castellucci

Pool
Rupp
Crew
Crew
Reed
Latanyszyn
Kehoe

384
2,110
2,671
4,284
2,671

'7'>.O

2,941
4,074

737
2,914
3,166
5,530
5,923
7,315
7,373
4,139
6,530
6,132
3,147
6,567
5,592
2,976
6,734
3,058
4,906

$1 59
$1,290
$1,713
$2,989
$2,3s2

$404
$964

$2,745
$2,993
$1,328

$855
$990

$3,401
$667

$2,545
$2,316
$1,5r 5
$3,243
s1,225
$3,376
$'1,071
$1,648
$3,983
$2,458
ç2,642

$12
$504

$1,953
$1,501
$2,307

$407
$1,079
$3,813
$4,416
$1,125
$1,559
$2,027

$3,501
$2,849

$10,634

92,594

$781
$9,862
$3,209
$3,358
$7,321
$8,057

$10,489
949

($1az¡
($zao¡
$240

($1,488)
($+s¡

$3
$1 15

$1,068
$1,423
($203)
$704

$1,037
$1,362
$3,838
$4,061
$5,295

$784
$6,966
$1,008

$160
$1,442

$640
($4ez¡
$391

$7,992

135,544
72,598

107,638
119,099
122,321
105,060
79,207

105,177
102,407
77,756
62,620
44,085
98,207
94,225

108,470
64,161
64,948
66,983
37,597
67,071
72,746
37,935
56,618
26,372

9,477

$0.31
$0.44
$0.47

$0.44
$0.43
$0.36
$0.53
$0.20
$0.68
$0.83
$0.34
$0.18
$0.44
$0.47
$0.50
$0.64
$0.64

$0.73
$1.52
$0.94
$1.36
$2.67
$0.87
92.02
$1.68

$0.46
$0.27
$0.18
$0.57
$0.09
$0.35
$0.s6
$0.23
$0.53
$0.39
$0.51
$0.19
$0.55
$0.59
$0.80
$0.54

$0.72
$0.54
$0.41
$0.49

$0.37
$0.76
$0.40
$0.51
$0.35
$0.82
$0.85
$0.31
$0.21
$0.37
$0.41
$0.45
$0.75

71

$1.40
$2.02
$5.46
$2.20
$1.82
$1.15
$2.81
$2.50

$0.69
$0.80
$0.30
$0.36
$0.64
$0.49
$0.39
$0.85
$0.39
$0.69
$0.90
$0.30
$0.1 8
$0.40
$0.58
$0.46

$1.40
$2.02
$5.46
$2.20
$1.82
$1.15
$2.81
$2.50

$0.42 $0.94
$0.54
$0.98
$0.5s
$0.45
$0.56
$0.74
$0.56

$0.53
$0.35
$0.34
$0.40
$0.38
$0.43
$0.38
$0.21
$0.21

$0.00
$0.64
$0.70
$0.88
$0.55
$0.33
$0.67
$4.06

$0.69
$0.54
$3.08
$0.69
$0.69
$0.42
$0.16
$0.13

$4,763
$4,505
$6,606
$7,611
s2,299

$10,209
$2,233
$3,537
$2,513
$2,288

N)
(Jl

F250

Ford F350 WSvc Body
lnt'l 5 Yd Dump
Ford F550 3-Yd Dump3
lnt'l 5 Yd Dumpo
lnt'l 4300 Crew
Ford F350 4x4
Peterbilt 335 Crew

$728
$6,028
$2,114
$2,651
$4,549
$6,522
$3,767

700

$53
$3,834
$1,095

$707
$2,771
$1,535
$6,722

l0 427

128,493
79,894
75,782
67,588
24,948
67,717
18,246

56

$1.17
$1.24
$2.09
$2.68
$2.90
$0.97
$2.49
$1.21

7$7
on

r1999
z 2002
I IOOO

¿ '1999

s 2006
o 2008
t 20Q9

620
4,871
1,010

989
1,571
6,701
1,512

249 1

1
t E p.n". amount shown excludes depreciat¡on (approx¡mate¡y $60,000 for FY1 4).

g6/hr and the recovery rate for veh¡cles 1-ton and over is $1 1/hr. An additional 50% ¡s charged to developer projects to reflect the fa¡r market value of the veh¡cle be¡ng used.
3 Purchased used in 2004 with 33,500 miles- Mileage shown ¡s total ¡ncurred s¡nce District purchase-
a Purchased used in 2OOB w¡th 3O,7OB miles. Mileage shown ¡s total ¡ncurred s¡nce District purchase.



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL
FOR PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31 ,2013

t\accountants\fi nancials\stmtfyl 4Vcpm1 21 3-xlslwater ænseruation

COST THRU
JUNE 2OI3

DECEMBER
2013

FYTD
TOTAL

FY't3t14
BUDGET

(ovER)
UNDER

TOTAL
cosT

N)
O)

1-770c.o1

1-7700-02

1-770043

1-770G06

1-770047

1-7700-11

lnoù12
1-7700-'13

1-r/00-16

1-7700-17

1-7700-19

1-77oEOA

1-770ù20

1-77c0-21

'l-7700-23

1-7701-O2

Description
NOVATO
a-

1 Cash for Grass
2 Landscape Efficiency Rebates
3 Fixtures Purchases
+ Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilet Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
e ResidentialAudits
I Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
to Swimming PoolCover Rebate
t t ET Controller Rebate
tz Administration
r3 New Development Wtr Cons Program
t+ Demand Offset Rebate Program
ts Grant Administration
to Admin Exp Distrib to WM Water (3.6%)

b. Commercial
r Toilet Rebate Program
z Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/lnformation
r FallNewsletter
z Spring Newsletter
s Summer Newsletter
+ Public Outreach I HrO Fair
s Marketing
o Public Outreach/Leadership Novato

d. Large Landscape
t Large Landscape Audits
z Large Landscape Budgets
a Large Landscape lrrig Efficiency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
o Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

0
0

2,989
465
279

0

1,023
6,407
2,989
6,488
4,806
1,689

8,000
12,000
4,000

10,000
16,000

0

9227,131
28,396
32,581

306,143
54,377

864,964
18,081

214,879
29,922

226
21,375

932,763
39,228

1,195
637

(3,ee7)

64,927
6,256

38,084
50,469

5,139
84,932

116,667
9,409

73,127
25,617
11,376
18,653

$1,079
44

0
1,749

0
2,973

0
11,895

0
0

137
15,448

695
0

279
(5s6)

100
0

290

$9,467
263

0
10,975

0
14,995

92
21,825

182
0

2,914
58,599

3,553
0

279
(2,110)

100
394

$24,000
7,500
5,000

20,000
500

34,000
4,000

50,000
10,000

0
8,000

125,000
8,000
2,000

0
0

10,000
15,000

$14,533
7,237
5,000
9,025

500
19,005
3,908

28,175
9,818

0
5,086

66,401
4,447
2,000
(27e)

2,110

$236,598
28,660
32,581

317,119
54,377

879,959
18,173

236,704
30,104

226
24,289

991,362
42,781

1,195
916

(6,107)

1&72-16

'l-770044

1-770G05

rn00-22

1-865$02

1-7702-01

1-7702-02

1-865101

1-Tl02-03

4
0
0
0

4,269
2,094
2,084

0
455

10,000
3,000
5,000
2,000

9,900
14,606

6,977
5,593
1,011
3,512

11,194
(1,68e)

5,731
906

2,916
2,000

65,027
6,650

39,107
56,876

8,128
91,420

121,473
11,098

77,396
27,711
13,460
18,653

WEST MARIN WATER
2-5166-00 a. Water Conservation Program

u. Administrative Exp distributed from Novato (3.6%)
$39,2s0

51

$0
556

$1,590
2 110

$2
2

000
000

7 000 b 545 23

$410 $40,840
11 107

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITU RESI $3,338,411 $38,936 $157,531 $404,000 $246,469 $3,495,942

997

lExcludes 
$267,000 ($33.53i4F) paid to SCWA for water conservation services provided to NMWD



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31,20I3

COST THRU

JUNE 2OI3
DECEMBER

2013

(ovER)/UNDER
BUDGET

t\fi nancevie foml.xltlivfm m¡sc

TOTAL
COST

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 13t14
BUDGET

1-7æ7-20

1-713G.00

1-713+00

1-7135-00

1-7139.00

1-7142-00

1-714340

1-7144-00

PIP
a, Main/Pipeline Replacements

r So Novato Blvd-Rowland to Sunset (12"c1 @ 1,500)

z STP 18" Transmission Line Assess/Repair (13,200)

r Digitalto Leveroni Looping (8"@600')
a Delong to Cain LooPing (s'@4oo)

s PB Repl-City Measure A, GrouP 5
o Shields Ln 6" Cast lron 1o'@120')
z Ashley Ct 2" Thinwall Plastic (6" @ 200)

a GranV4th 1" Galvanized Steel (6" @ 400')

e Other Pipeline Replacements (60+ years old)

b. Main/PipelineAdditions
t Zone A Pressure lmprovements - lgnacio

c. PB Service Line Replacements
t Pacheco Valle 1+z svcs¡

z Replace PB in Sync w/City Paving (45 svcs)

s Clay Ct PB Repl (e svcs)

+ Atherton Oaks/Summit Lane (20 svcs)

s Other PB Replacements
d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP

t Other Relocations
TOTAL PI PELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
t MSN 81-Utility Agreement Costs
z MSN B2-Utility Agreement Costs
¡ MSN B3-Utility Agreement Costs
¿ AEEP Permitting & Design
s AEEP Legal Challenge/Litigation
6 AEEP- 81 Construction
z MSN Aq Caltrans Reimb - Seg 82 Gunn Drs

e AEEP 81 Betterment & Depreciation Cost
e AEEP 82 Betterment & Depreciation Cost
to AEEP-B3 Advance Tree Removal

TOTAL AQUEDUCT REPLACEMENTS AND ENHANCEMENTS

$o
10,358
18,535

0
37,364

0

0

0

0

$6,449
3,104

16,296
4,314
1,302
1,952

0

2,446
0

$7,672
16,258
88,729

110j92
2,877

16,603
364

4,376
0

0

24,026
4,939

98,893
105,167

0

224,470
33,026

225,637
270

9.221

$100,000
0

0
0
0

225,000
40,000

100,000
35,000

$92,328
(16,258)
(88,72e)

(110,1e2)
(2,876)

208,397
39,636
95,625
35,000

(24,026)
(4,e3e)

(e8,8e3)
4,494,833

0
(224,470)

(33,026)
(225,637)

(270)
(9.221\

$7,672
26,616

107,264
110,192

40,240
16,603

364
4,376

0

2,833
0

1,580
2,068

0

0

3
0

0
0
0

0

1,302 15,636 250,000 234,364 15,636
1-71 ïOO

't-7't2t11 2,83 0
0

930
1,419

0

0
0

1,580
2,068

0

125,000
135,000
33,000
60,000
47,000

125,000
135,000

31,420
57,932
47,000

N){

1-712;.14

1-712!15

'1-7'11&01

1-71't8-O2

1-71 I 8-03

1-711ùM

1-711&05

1-711A47

1-711&10

1-7118-17

1-7118-14

0 I 000

170,766
28,462

131,137
680,441

10,679
67,347

7,597
103,188

0

0

$1,199,617 $140,005

1,269
523

9,377
2,887

0
44,508

0

73,895
0

7.547

0

0

0

000
0

0

0
0

0

0

4,600

194,791
33,401

230,030
785,608

10,679
291,817

40,624
328,825

270
9.221

9725,649 $4,600,000 $3,874,351 $1,925,266



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJ ECTS
PERIOD ENDING DEGEMBER 3I,2013

COST THRU

JUNE 2013

DECEMBER
2013

(OVERYUNDER

BUDGET

t\fi nanæ\le foml.xltlvfm m¡sc

TOTAL
cosr

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 13114

BUDGET

1-7008-1 0

1Æ77-19

1-7007-08

1-7090-02

1-713241

1-7054-04

1-7137-00

1-714640

Descri
EM IM

a. RTU Upgrades
o. Flushing taps at Dead-Ends (12 biennially)

c. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl (14tyr)

d. Anode lnstallations (150/yr)
e. Radio Expansion Telemetry Upgrades
f. lnaccurate Meter Replacement
g. Backflow Device Upgrade-BMK (15 svcs)

h' Tank Access Hatch/Level AlarmsS.ls+ï'on 
I M pRovEM ENTS

N BWRA Grant Program Administration
RW Expansion N Svc Area-Retrofit-Private Property'?

RW Expansion N Svc Area-Onsite Retrofit-Const
RW Expansion N Svc Area-Group 2 Site Retrofit
Expansion to South Svc Area-Non ARRA
Expansion to South Svc Area-Phase 1A'2
Expansion to South Svc Area-Phase 1B'''
Expansion to South Svc Area-Phase 2''3

Expansion to South Svc Area-Bolling Circle PS

Expansion to South Svc Area-Phase 1B-Claims
RW Expansion S Svc Area-PHlA Post Mitigation Monitoring
RW Expansion S Svc Area-Retroflt-Private Property'o
RW Expansion S Svc Area-Retrofit-Govt Property'z

RW Expansion S Svc Area-Group 2 Site Retrofit
TOTAL RECYCLED WATER

0

0

15,732
0

$0
0

0
18

$10,000
50,000

150,000
30,000
25,000
10,000
30,000

34,154
8,539

2A

s7n 782

s4,324
36,722
6 903

$47.

$7,516
3,365
2,532

0

3,779
0

0

0

$o

$10,184
0
0

$8,892
19,952
20,999

0

6,712
6,484

0

45

12,000
0
0

$ 2 000

$75,495
2,789
6.091

$150,000
50,000

25,000
225,000

25.000
s533

$700,000
190,000
100.000

$1 ,1 08
30,048

129,001
30,000
18,288
3,516

30,000
955

$150,000
50,000

13,000
225,000

25,000

$8,892
19,952
20,999

1 ,618
6,712
6,484

15,732
45

$0
0

46,154
8,539

28.088

$82.782

$79,820
39,511
12.994

1,6

35

3 BUI LDINGS. YARD. & S.T-P. IMPROVEMENTS

16501-43

a. Administration Building
t Electronic Document Management System
z Admin Office/Labl/ard Remodel Plan

b. Corp YardMarehouse/Construction Offìce
I SMART Crossing Upgrade (@ Golden Gate Pl)

c. Stafford Treatment Plant
r Watershed Erosion Control
z Start-Up Flushing Connection
s Lake Aeration Upgrade

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

1-6502-46

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS
i+i2oi-21 a. Atherton RecoaUMixing System
tst'tz-z¿ b. Lynwood Pump Station Motor Control Center
1€14'i-oo c. Relocate School Rd/Crest P.S.

TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

5 RECYCLED WATER

$0
0

0

$o
0

0

0

0

0

$0
014501-41

0 58,000 58,000 0

N)
æ

1660G70

1S600.s4

14600-80 088
000 $521,000

$624,505
187,211
93,909

$870,080
160,192
248,322
42,819

1,920
1,439,878
3,863,789
1,963,783

102,794
9,816

0

349,653
138,542

949 $10,184

$0
0
0

0

0
1,369

20,134
7,660

0
13,900
2,760

0

0
0

$931,743
160,1 92
234,964
70,685

1,920
1,441,891
3,912,687
2,143,356

107,313
26,884
11,601

349,834
139,543

$84,376 $990,000 $905,624 $132,325

$61,663
0

(13,358)
27,866

0
2,013

48,898
179,572

4,518
17,068
11,601

181

1,000

$38,337
0

13,358
(27,866)

0

97,987
(48,8e8)

(179,572)
(4,518)

(17,068)
(1 1 ,601)

(181)
(1,000)

$ 00,000
0
0

0
0

t7127-OO a.

s¡oss-zo b.

s¡osgz d.

5605''23 e-

s.6o5o.o1 1.

5-6056-11 g.

s¡oss-rz h.

s6o5ô13 i.

s6osÈ14 j.

+oosars k.

s€osç16 l.

s6056-20 m.

$605ê21 n.

5-605ê23 0.

000
0
0

0
0
0

0

0

0

1 00,

71 708 1,7 200 165



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

COST THRU
JUNE 2OI3

DECEMBER
2013

FYTD
TOTAL

FY 13114

BUDGET

t\inancevje foml.xltÏvfm misc

(ovERyuNDER TOTAL
BUDGET COST

Desc
6 WEST

Handling & $183,261
6,104

299
0
0

38,928
14,631

(e60,8e1)
(3,330,590)

(206,e24)
6,308,782

(40,665)
(7,597)

(103,188)
644,118

$8,572
0

21,474
0
0

53
1,007

186

0
(20,846)
(11,168)

(2,887)
53,961

12,906
(73,895)

0
0
0

0
(e8,46s)

0

0
(12,e06)

0

($111,375)

s124.276

$9,250
0

65,817
275

6,030
1,895

65,239
186

701,381
2,966,438

(8,4e5)
(1 05,1 67)

21,702
(20,120)

(225,637)
93

,164

(83e,454)
(2,911,791)

(1 19,362)
0

(246,172)
0

0
(r 2,e06)

0

($4,12e,685)

$906,365

$200,000
25,000
30,000

100,000
15,000
65,000

0
0

$190,750
25,000
(35,8r7)
99,725

8,970
63,105

(65,23e)

397,619
505,562

8,495
(2,294,833)

{21,702)
20,120

225,637

$192,51 1

6,104
66,1 1 5

275
6,030

40,823
79,869

sition2-æO1-32

2€601-35

2-æU-20

2â13ù21

2-7147-O0

2ô257-20

2-704741

b. Treatment Plant Control Valve Replacement

c. Gallagher Auxiliary Stream Gauge
o. Olema PS Flood Protection & RTU Upgrade

e. Emergency Generator Connections
t. Pt Reyes f ank#2 & #3 Seismic Piping Upgrade
g. Gallagher Well & Pipeline Design
rr. PB Rpl-CounÇ Paving-Balboa,Porto_lg,V9-1?, 2nd St

rOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
B-e672-27 a. lnfiltration Repair-FY14
&714M0 b. SCADA RTU Upgrade and lnstall

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

8 LESS FUNDED BYG RANTS,
(Accrued)/Deferred

a' RW Exoansion - South Service Area Grant2'3'o
b' RW - South Service Area Loanl
c. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B1-B3s

d. AEEP Segment 81-835
e. AEEP- 81 Constructiono
h. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82 Gunn Drs

i. AEEP 81 Betterment & Depreciation Cost
j. TP Solids Handling & Land Acquisition?

FUNDING BY OTHERS (ACCRUED)/DEFERRED

Received
r nW Expansion - South Service Area Grant2'''o

b. RW - South Service Area Loan'

c. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B1-83'

o. AEEP Segment 81-83'
e. AEEP- 81 Constructionu

t. AEEP- 82 Constructionu

g. AEEP- 83 Constructionu

n. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment 82 Gunn Df
¡. TP Solids Handling & Land Acquisition'

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED

NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

7055752057

$0
0

$o
0

I

$0 $15,000 $15,000
000 350

$0
0

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDTTURES $11,025,574 $284,009 $1,712,886 $8,378,000 $6,585,117 $12,738,461

LOANS & REIMBURSEMENTS

N)(o 1,099,000
3,472,000

(1,0ee,000)
(3,472,000)
(2,200,000)

0

0
0

0

0
0

($6,771,000)

(25e,510)
(364,152)

4215,41e)
6,203,615

(18,964)
(27,717)

(328,825)
637,1 80

400,(2
0

000)
0

0

0

(1,030,785)
(2,005,8e0)

0
(7,123,441)

(26,584)
0

0

0
(781,564)

($10,e68,264)

$2.360.355

93,

,164)

(259,546)
(560,20e)

(2,080,638)
0

246,172
0
0

12,906
0

($2,641 ,315)

$2.591,638

(1,870,239)
(4,e17,681)

(1 19,362)
(7,123,441)

(272,756)
0
0

(12,e06)
(781,564)

($15,097,94e)

$3.266,720$3 .578.000



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJ ECTS

PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2013

COSTTHRU DECEMBER

JUNE 2013 2013
FYTD

TOTAL
FY 13114

BUDGET

t\fi nanceue foml.xltlvfm m¡sc

(ovERyuNDER TOTAL

BUDGET COST

(¡)o

Notes to Gaoital lmprovement Proiects Schedule:
illbefundedbyalow-intereStrateStateRevolvingFundLoan

equal lo75o/o of the project cost, less 25Vo of lhe overhead'

(2) The District will receivsARRA Federal Grant Funding equal to 25o/o of the project cost less overhead.

ig) fn" District will receive Watersmart Federal Grant Funding equal to 25o/o of the project cost, less overhead'

i¿i fn" District will receive State Prop 84 Grant Funding equal to project cost less overhead.

(S) Funding includes a g7M Bank Loan plus reimbursement from Caltrans for 100% of costs charged to jobs 1-7118.01-1.71 18'03'

& 1.7118.10.
(6) Funding provided 75% by Bank of Marin Loan & 25Yo by connection fees.

Novato Water GaPital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Capital Projects
West Marin Water GaPital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

25o/o

B
4

B

o

MMARY-NET EXPENDITURES:CIP SU

0007
50

FYTD Total

365

Month

124,276PlmNet

1650/o

60%
lYo

,093,000
200,000
235,000

$435,306
329,306
141,753

0

$74,436
24,978
24,862

0

Novato Water CaPital Projects
Novato Recycled Water Gapital Projects
West Marin Water CaPital Projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital Projects

B
4

009Pro

EXPENDITURES:CIP SUMMARY-GROSS

88671$1lmGross Ga
20o/o

B

50
000

FYTD TotalMonth
15o/o

206%
34%o

0o/o

$7,693,000
200,000
435,000

1,151,464
412,731
148,691

0

$206,894
45,823
31,291

0
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North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes

Notel-RestrictedCash
Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to

developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new

development. These iunds are restricted by law for expansÌon of the water or sewer facilities within the

service area where the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Çonnection Fee Reserve as

expenditures are incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance

accrues interest monthlY.

Wohler pipeline Financing Fund: ln December 2002 the Sonoma County Water Agency sold $6.8

million (par¡ of 3g-year reveñue bonds to finance the Wohler to Forestville Pipeline. NMWD's share of the

à"nt ¡, ög¿i,oso ($o,aoo,ooo x 11.2 I go.4). tn January 2003 the District established this designated cash

and correspondinþ reserve account and transferred $844,050 of FRC money into the fund. The Wohler
pipeline Fiirancin! Fund is credited with interest monthly, and is used to pay the revenue bond debt

component of the monthly SCWA invoice for water delivery commencing July 2003.

collector #6 Financing Fund: The Sonoma County Water Agency received a $15.8 million State

Revolving Fund loan coñrmitment at an interest rate of 2.Bo/o rcpalable over 2! ye_ïs for construction of

Coltector-#6. NMWD's share of Coltector#6 is $'1,950,000 ($15,800,000 X 11.2 190.4).ln January-2003

the District established this designated cash and corresponding reserve account and transferred

$1,gS0,000 of FRC money into tñe fund. The Collector #6 Financing Fund is _credited with interest

mónthly, and is used to páy the revenue bond debt component of the monthly ScwA invoice for water

delivery commencing JulY 2003.

Revenue Bond Redemption Fund: Comprised of one year of debt service as required by West Marin

revenue bond covenanïs. These funds are restricted for payment of bond principal, interest and

administration fees. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Bank of Marin project Fund: The District received an $B million loan from the Bank of Marin in october

2011 to fund the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. The 20-year,3.54% annual percentage rate loan

requires monthly payments ot $+-o,ooz and w¡lt Ue tutty amortized on 10t27131. ln June 2012 the Board

authorized reallocatinf $1 million oi tn¡s toan to West fviarin water to repay Novato water $223,000 owed

for previous loans tJfund Long Range lmprovement Projects and the remainder to fund the solids

Handling Facility at the point ñeyes water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues

interest monthlY.

RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the District to agree

to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Óapital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the expansion, major

repair, or replacement of the water recy-ctinffacilities._TheWRCRF is maintained in compliance with the

"eblicy for lmplementing the state Revólvin! fund for construction of wastewater Treatment Facilities" in

effect at the time the ág"reement was signeo by the District. The September 2003 Recycled Wa_ter lt¡l:!çi
plan prepared by Nute" Engineering reðommended limiting the reserve to fund replacement of the RWF

electrical and mechanical ãquipme-nt (including transmission pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said

ãquipment was $1,4g3,000'wnicr', ai Nute's-recommended 6% interest rate factor and 25-year life,

renders an annual funding requirement $1 15,000. The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Tax Receipts held in Marin county Treasury: Balance of tax proceeds collected and disbursed by the

County of Marin for repayment of t'he olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County credits

interest to these funds quarterly.

STp SRF Loan Fund - Marin county Treasury: The Stafford Treatment Plant State Revolving Fund

(SRF) loan agreement requires the Djstrict to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of payments

i$,OiA,+tq¡ in the Marin bounty Treasury during the first ten years of the 2}-y.ear repayment period'

Èvery Januáry 1 and Juty 1 the óirtr¡"t deþosits witn tne county'10% of the semi-annual sRF payment'

The ôounty ciedits the fund with interest qüarterly, and will use the Reserve to pay the last 2 semi-annual

SRF loan payments.
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RWS North/South SRF Payment Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements_forthe

seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System

distribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service.

Note2-DesiqnatedGash

Liability Contingency Fund: Established in 1986when the Districtfirstelected to self-insure its general

liability iisf. ff'¡J resárue was funded with $'1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it

reachôd a balance of $2 million. ln FYSB the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and

built-up a proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FY93, $1 million of the

reserve was made available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted

Housing Program. ln August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured

Workeré' Compensation Èund and made available to fund Employer Assiste_d Housing Program loans.

Curren¡y there are $1,249,200 in Employer Assisted Housing Loans outstanding (see Note 3). ln March

2005, $é52,400 was expended from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in Point Reyes

Station. The home is rented to an employee who provides after-hours presence in the community to

respond to emergencies, ln 2006, $8,885 was added from the sale of surplus property in West Marin..ln

Ociober 2013, thé District acquired ownership of the home at 15 Gustafson Court in Novato to protect its

interest in a $192,585 Employer Assisted Housing loan. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Self-lnsured Workers'Gompensation Fund: Commencing July 2011, the District began self-insuring its

workers' compensation liability. The savings accrued through self-insuring the liability is reserved in this

fund for possibte future claim-s expense. ihe o¡strict carries a workers' compensation excess policy for

claims that exceed $750,000. See schedule on page 22.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages

of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group pian offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 and

have a minimum of 12 years of NlVl'WD service at the date of retirement. NMWD's contribution toward the

chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD employees in the same class. Coverage

terminat'es for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, or for both the retiree and

spouse when the reiiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the retiree or spouse becomes eligible for

Medicare, NMWD pays up to the coufle annuitant rate, which is capped at $3,830 per year ($319/month).

ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.55 million ($2.3 million tor current retirees plus $250,000 for future

retireðs) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this obligation. ln 2010 the Board directed staff to

add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to accrue and accelerate amortization of this

tiability. ln ZOtS an Aätuarial Anátysis calculated NMWD's total actuarial liability at $4.2 million. This

reserve fund earns interest monthly, and currently has a balance of $3.2 million. Accounting Standards

require that the $4.2M reserve by fully funded in 20 years.

Drought Gontingency (Rate Stabilization) Fund: ln Augu_st 2008, the Board directed staff to establish

this rãserve w¡tn}t3S,O'OO trom the Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund for the Novato district to

draw upon during dry years. A threshold of 3.2 billion gallons of potable consumption was established as

a benchmark for 'normal' years. During any fiscal year that water sales volume exceeds 3.28G, the

incremental revenue generåted is depoJited into the Drought Contingency Reserve. ln those years when

sales volume falls neiow the benchmark, funds are withdrawn from the reserve to maintain the budgeted

revenue forecast. The goal is to build a reserve equal to 20% (currently $2,500,000) of budgeted alnual

water commodity salesiln Fy09 $50,335 was added to the reserve. The fund was fully depleted in FY10.

The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FY91 to provide a source of maintenance money for

replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out' The annual

contribution from operating reseives was initially $200,000. Net polybutylene claim settlement proceeds

of $671,060 were ciosed ¡ñto tfre fund in FY93. ln FY94 the annual contribution was reduced to $100,000.

The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 10o/o of the net book value of Novato's existing plant,

currenfly $7.0[¡ Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the shortfall in

unrestricted Cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Gonservation lncentive Rate Fund: ln 2004 and 2005, a Conservation lncentive Tier Rate was enacted

in Novato and West Marin respectively. Monies derived from this tier-rate charge are set aside in the
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Conservation lncentive Rate Reserve, and used for conservation programs designated by the Board. The

fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Operating Reserve Fund: Thrs reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures

as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to ensure adequate working capital for
operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. The fund balance does

not accrue interest.

Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned

to an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service

territory that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the

Districi. Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employment, or other event as described in the

Program. lnteiest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value

occurring on the purchased property. There are seven employee-housing loans currently outstanding

totating $t,Z¿g,ZOO: a $250,000 loan dated August 2004, a $39,200 loan dated September 2004, a

$300,000 loan dated October 2006, a $140,000 loan dated September 2007, a $150,000 loan dated

November 2007, a $125,000 loan dated July 2008, and a $245,000 loan dated June 2010.

Housing Loan lmpairment: The Employer Assisted Housing Loans outstanding were written down by

$110.00¡ at June i0, 2013, representing the impairment in value of the second deeds of trust due to the

decline in market value of the homes financed since the purchase date.

personal Computer Loans: Up to $3,500 may be loaned to an employee for a period of up to 36 months

under the District's Personal Computer Loan Program. Loans are repaid with interest at the rate earned

on the District's investment portfolio at the time of the loan plus one percent. Currently there are 2
employee loans outstanding totaling $1,408.

Note4-PurchasedWate r Canital Comnonent

ln 2003 the Sonoma County Water Agency issued $6.8 million in 3O-year 4.75% revenue bonds to

finance the Wohler to Forestville pipeline. That same year the Agency received a $15.8 million 2.8%20-
year State Revolving Fund loan to finance construction of Collector #6. For these two projects the District

þays the Agency aìebt amortization surcharge incorporated into its purchased water cost. The FY13

ÞurchaseO Watdr Capital Cost Component is $225,000, which is the District's share of the annual debt

service forthese projects, and is paid as a $114.83/MG surcharge, based on budgeted waterdeliveries.

The Purchased Water Capital Component is funded from Restricted Cash Reserves established to

amortize this debt (see Note 1 - Wohler Pipeline and Collector #6 Financing Funds).

Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of

other water age-ncies. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of

the various classes of property as follows

Facilitv
Aqueduct.
Dam...
STP & RWS Structures...
STP & RWS Mains
STP & RWS Pumping EquiPment... ...

STP & RWS Water Treatment Equipment..
Storage & Transmission Facilities
Distribution Facilities...
Buildings.
Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipment.
Vehicles 1 ton or greater...
Allother vehicles...
Sewer Mains...
Sewer Pumps.

Life
(Years)

150
100
40
50
25
20
50
50
35
'10

10
5

40
10
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Note 6 - Ga lization Policv

The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Local Governmenfs recommends that

a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $5,000 and an estimated useful life of at least

two years. lt also cäutions that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization

threiholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is $5,000.

Note 7 - Bond & Loan serv¡c¡nq schedule for F¡scalYear 2013-2014

FY'|-4

Service
Area Descriotion

lssue
Date Rate

Original
Amount

Payment
Due

Final
Pmt lnterest Principal

61301'14
Outstanding

Balance

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

4 RWTP

5 RW North

6 RW South

7 Olema

8 Point Reyes

9 PRE

'10 Point Reyes

11 WM Water

EDA Loan

SRF Loan - STP

Bank Marin Loan

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

OL-2 GO Bond

EDA Loan

PRE-1 Revenue

PR-6 Revenue

Bank Marin Loan

1977

2004

2011

5.0%

2.39%

3.54o/o

$351,770

$16,528,850

$7,000,000

$3,262

$326,027

$220,205

$15,162

$718,448

$65,445

$13,1 01 ,376

$6.254.229

7t1 711t17

7t1 & 111 7t1129

2Ttrlmo 10127131

Novato Total

$261 .833

2006

2013

2013

2.4%

2.6%

2.2%

$77,236

$93,811

$41,920

$1 96,1 31

$188,081

$4,302,560 6/19 6119127

$4,375,605 Varies Varies

$4,917,681 Varies Varies

Recycled Water Total

443 $19 040

$3,022,026

$4,082,743

s4,742,934$t 717

9212,967 929 $11.847.703

1975

1977

1 980

1 981

2012

5.0o/o

5.0%

5.0%

5.0%

3.540/o

$382

$451

$4,1 00

$4,200

932,324

$3,731

92,252

$10,000

$9,000

$38,434

$3,921

$9,057

$73,000

$75,000

s924.422

$70,000 1t1 111t15

$46,000 7t1 711t17

$240,000 10t1 &, 4t1 4t1120

$217,800 711 & 111 7t1l2',l

$1,000,000 2Tthlmo 10t2/t31

West Marin Water Total $41,457 17 $1,085,400

Total $803,922 $1,61 9.789 $32,354,143

1. ln 1977 the Federal Economic Development Administration issued a 4}-yeat 5% loan of $351 ,770 to

assist in the funding emergency Novato Water system projects in response to the drought.

2. ln April2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a2.39%2}-year loan for

reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FY09 with repair

of the Ou¡et Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,378. The loan

covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of $104,447 (10% ol the annual debt service

obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the

repãyment period. Debt service is funded 25% by Facility Reserve Charges.

3. tn October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2}-year 3.54% (APR) loan of $B million to fund the District's

share of the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. See Note 16, and note to loan 10 below'

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.4% 2j-year loal of

$4,2{4,s4sfor construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility.With the addition of $38,015 in

Construction Period lnterest, the loan principal totaled $4,302,560 The project was completed in

June 2007, and the first payment was made June 19, 2008'

S. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.6% 20-

year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion Project.

îhe projects were completed on October 31,2012, and the first payment was made in November of

2012.
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6. ln March 2012 the California State Departmentof Water Resources approved a series of three2.2o/o

21-year loans totaling $4,552,077 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion Project. The
projects were completed on September 4, 2013, and the first payment will be made in December
2013.

7. ln June'1973, after petition and creation of an improvement district (OL-1) for the investigation of
water service to Olema and the Point Reyes National Seashore Headquarters, Olema voters, by a
9270 "yes" vote, approved formation of an improvement district (OL-2) and a bonded debt of $70,000
to acquire and improve the Olema Water Company owned by W. Robert Phillips and others and to
service that area. The Farmers Home Administration purchased the 1975 bond issue in its entirety,
On 6/1/91, at the demand of the FHA, the Novato Water District repurchased the remaining $56,760
balance in the Olema bond debt. The interest rate paid to Novato Water on the OL-2 bond was

thereafter reset to the higher of the rate earned by the District treasury or the stated rate of 5%.

B. ln 1977 the Federal Economic Development Administration issued a  }-year 5% loan of $46,000 to

assist in the funding emergency West Marin Water system projects, including temporary diversions
from Bear Valley Creek and Lagunitas Creek in response to the drought.

g. The Paradise Ranch Estates private water system was created by David Adams and Sons in 1 952 to
provide water to 85 homes in the PRE subdivision located north of lnverness Park. Problems with

waterquality and quantity developed and in 1969 the Marin County Health Department issued a boil-

waterorderto all customers of the company. ln '1972the County declared a moratorium on issuance

of building permits. A suit by property owners resulted in an agreement reached in Marin Superior

Court in late 1978 directing Adams to finance a District feasibility study for the takeover of the system.

This culminated in formation of lmprovement District PRE-1 and an election authorizing issue of

$240,000 of 5o/o  }-year revenue bonds, which, in conjunction with a $720,000 Farmers Home

Administration grant, financed system rehabilitation. Service was provided from the Point Reyes

System by installation of an additional well, expansion of the treatment plant, and a 6-inch pipeline

cónnection at the lnverness Park pump station extending 1.6 miles along Sir Francis Drake Boulevard

to the newly reconstructed Paradise Ranch Estates distribution system, On 4l22lï0 the USDA
purchased the revenue bond issue in its entirety.

10. ln 1981 work commenced on rehabilitating the Point Reyes lnverness Park water system, 18,865 feet

of pipeline was either replaced or installed, a 300,0O0-gallon tank was added in Point Reyes Station

and a 100,000-gallon tank was added in lnverness Park. Total cost of these improvements was

$820,015. A72% grant combined with a $217,800 5o/o  }-year revenue bond acquired Bl2Bl81 by the

Farmers Home Administration financed the project.

11. ln June 2012 the Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin

Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects

and the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant.

See note to loan 3 above.

NoteS-U ent lnsuran e Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the

District reimburses the State Employment Development Department for all unemployment benefits paid

on our behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the average claim amount

paid over the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (currently $450 x 52 =
$23,400).

Note 9 - Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave, Section 125 payments;

cañcer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.
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Note 10 - | Policv on lnter-D Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that

improvement distrìct's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an

imþrovement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the

Novato lmprovement District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds

shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No interest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district's

Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by

the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the

previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher of: 1. The weighted average interest

rate of Novato improvement district debl (2.75% at 6/30/13); or 2.The average interest rate earned on the

District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 11 - Budqet Augmentations

Note 12 - Prior Period Adiustment

Note 13 - Provision for Pension Related Debt and Side Fund

NMWD participates in the CaIPERS 2,5% at age 55 retirement plan. Per CaIPERS ActuarialValuation as

of June'gO, Zdt 1 (most recent data available) NMWD had an accrued liability of $33,3 million and assets

valued on an actuarial basis at $26.5 million, rendering an unfunded liability of $6.8 million ($33.3 -

$26.5),andafundedratio of 79.6%($20.S/$33.3). Usingthemarketvalueof assetsatJune30,2011,
the funded ratio was 71.3%.

ln 2003 when NMWD was included in a CaIPERS pool of agencies with less than 100 employees, a "side

fLlncl" was created by CalpERS to account for the difference between the funded status of the pool and

the funded status oi NMWD's plan. NMWD is amortizing the CaIPERS side fund ($2.3 M of the $6.8M

unfunded liability at June 30,2011) on a schedule to be paid off in 2025.

Note 14 - Exnlanation of Fina ncial Statement

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net Position, 2)

Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash

Flow by Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other

supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides

information about the nature and amouñt of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the

District's creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported as nef position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the

financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined (page B) compares fiscal

year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented in the adopted budget

iormat. This Sources and Ules of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes

capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt

issuance.

The Income Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page 9) presents the net income (loss) for the

fiscal yearto-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's four service areas. The income and expenses

on thið report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and

comply with Gouernmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income and

exp"nêes are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the

timing of related cash flows, This statement measures the success of each service area's operations and
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can be used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees

and other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page 9 is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose

of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the difference between the net income/(loss) for
the period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the same
period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 31) provide a summary of significant accounting policies and

assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with

GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and

expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules of note include the

Vehicle Fleet Analysis (page 25), Equipment Expenditures (page 22) and Capital lmprovement Project
Expenditures (page 27), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note nection Fee Tran sfers from Novato Water To cled Water

The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

Expansion Local Share
North South NBWRA

SRF
RWF
Loan TOTAL

Transfer
Executed

Expansion
SRF Loan

FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FYlO
FY11

FY12

FY13

FY14 $235,1 66

$133,659

$233,478

$29,725
$50,478

$150,455

$75,1 98

$133,319

$1 15,883

$315,023

$61,663

$22,795
$22,795

ç22,795
$22,795
$22,795
922,7e5

929,725

$73,273

$173,250

$23'1,652

$156,114

$637,656

$802,390

$1,453,134

$133,659

$1,970,400
$1,453,134

$265,500

$751,928

9464,572

$404,376

$602,303 $1.017,428 $931,744 $136,769 $868,949 $3,557,193 $3.557,193
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Note l6 -Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreciation, and

connection fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments

on the District's total debt.

FYlO FY11 FYL2 FY13

FY14

Budgeted

Net lncome/(Loss)

Depreci ati on

lnterest Expense

Connection Fees

Tota I Ava i I a bl e For Debt Servi ce

Annual Debt Service

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

(sa,eto,szs¡

s2,659,884

5694,O44

5t,796,028

(S1,156,s82)

52,660,4r8

5710,4L6

(s217,163 )

52,726,598

s654,484

s1,00s,680

S2,036,943

52,784,648

5778,762

S876,350

S1,921,000

s2,879,000

s912,ooo

S936,ooos387,610

5r,s32,977

S1,384,506

1.Lt

S2,601,862

s L,385,156

1.88

s4,169,599

5L,77o,894

2.3s

56,476,703

52,LL8,314

3.06

s6,648,000

52,447,OOO

2.72

Bank of Marin Debt Service Coverage Calculationl FYTD14

FY1.4

Budgeted

Change in Net Æsets2

I nterest Expense

Depreci ation & Amorti zati on

Tota I Ava i I a bl e for Debt Servi ce

$2,772,174

S+ss,+¡o

51,466,255

S3,956,000

s912,000

S2,879,000

S5,093,170 57,747,0o0

Bank of Marin Annual Debt Service s552,800 $552,800

Bank of Marin Coverage Ratio 9.2t 1"4.OL

1 Per the October 27,2011 Bank of Marin loan agreement, each June 30, beginning June 30, 2012,hhe Debt Service

Coverage Ratio shall not be less lhal1.2 to 1. "Debt Service Coverage Ratio" shall mean the ratio of (i) Borrower's

cnangJin net assets plus interest, depreciation, and amortization during the fiscal-year period ending on the

Deteimination Date to the sum of the scheduled principal and interest payments on the Loan during the twelve-month

period following the Determination Date.

2 See page 9

38
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Item #8

1

NORTH MARIN WATER D¡STRICT
MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT FOR Decem,ber 2013

January 21,2014

Novato Potable Water Prod - RR & STP Combined - in Million Gallons - FYTD

Month FY13/14 t- 2/13 l-Y1 1n2 0/11 FY09/10 14 vs 13 %

July
August
September
October
November
December

385
360
332
313
229
182

389
396
346
283
166
146

371
373
347
249
183
156

379
368
358
278
164
141

360
367
335
233
176
149

-1o/o

-9%
-4%
10%
38%
25%

FYTD Total 1,800 726 1,679 1,689 1 4o/o

West Marin Potable Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date

Month FY13/14 t-Y 2/13 FYl 1/12 10/11 l-Y09/1U 14vs13%
July
August
September
October
November
December

9.3
9.3
8.5
8.0
6.8
6.4

9.8
9.7
8.3
7.4
5.2
4.5

9.2
9.4
8.7
6.5
5.1
4.9

9.9
9.9
9.2
7.8
4.9
4.8

10.0 -5%
10.6 -5%
9.6 3%
6.9 B%
5.6 31%
4.5 43%

FYTD Total 48.3 44.9 44.0 46.5 47 17%

Staffo rd Treatment Plant Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date

Month FYls/14 FY12n3 1/12 FY10/11 F 0 14vs 13%

July
August
September
October
November
December

9B
83
56
82

5
2

49
B3

72
88
64

0

115
126
77

113
106
49

109
108
112
111
95

0

152
150
155

BO

0
0

101o/o

0%
-22%
-7%
-n:*

FYTD Total 326 355 586 536 537 -B%

d Water Production - in Million Gallons - FY to Date
3 1 vs o//o

July
August
September
October
November
December

27.6
26.2
18.6
15.8
6.5
1.6

11.2
10.5

8.5
0.0
0.0
0.0

11.0
12.2
9.6
0.0
0.0

11.9
11.2
oÃ
2.6
0.0
0.0

12.0
12.9
10.2
2.6
0.0
0.0

147%
150%
119%

96.4 32
0

37.7

1



Rainfallthis month
Rainfall this FY to date
Lake elevation*
Lake stora g**

December Average

8.0 lnches
10.2 lnches

184.0 Feet
640 MG

December 2012

7.9 lnches
16.4 lnches

195.9 Feet
1,385 MG

December 2013

0.8 lnches
2.4 lnches

178.8 Feet
421 MG

2. Stafford Lake Data

. Spillway elevation is 196.0 feet
** Lake storage less 390 ¡¡ç = quantity available for delivery

Temperatuqe (in deqrees)

Minimum Maximum Avera.qq

December 2012 (Novato) 31 77 52

December 2013 (Novato) 24 82 69

3. Number of Services

4. Oceana Marin Monthlv Status Report (Decemþer)

5. Developer Proiects Status Re,port (December)

Job No Proiect
%

Complete % This month

December 31 FY14 FY13 lncr o/o FY14 FY13 lncr % FY14 FY13 lncr % FY14 FY13 lncr ol

Total meters
Total meters active
Active dwelling units

20,730 20,755 -0j% 47 I 422o/o 820 819 0.1%

20,480 20.492 -0.1% 44 4 1000% 776 776 0.0%
23,930 23,941 O.Oo/o 0 0 812 811 0.1Yo 229 227 0.

Description December 2012 December 201 3

Effluent Flow Volume (MG) 1.111 0.428

lrrigation Field Discharge (MG) 0 0

Treatment Pond Freeboard (ft) 2.8 3.2

Storage Pond Freeboard (ft) 3.7 8.9

2670 Canyon Green

2763 City Administration Office

District Proiects Status Reoort - Const Dept (Decemberl

100 5

90 10

Job No Proiect % Comolete % This month

7134
71 39

8677.19

Digital to Leveroni Looping
City Measure A, Group 5 PB Replacement
Flushing Taps at Dead-Ends

5
5

50

2

95
BO

50



Emolovee Hours to Date. FY 13114

As of Pay Period Ending December 31 , 2013
Percent of Fiscal Year Passed = 50o/o

6. Safetv/Liabilitv

FY through December 13
FY through December 12

Days without a lost time accident through December 31,2013= 204 days

Developer
Proiects Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget ¡

District Projects
Actual Budget

% YTD
Budget

Construction 676 1.400 48 I Construction 2.375 5,607 42

Enoineerinq 519 '1.480 35 I Engineering 2,495 3,698 67

lndustrial lnjury with Lost Time Liabilitv Claims Paid

Lost
Davs

OH Cost of
Lost Davs ($)

No. of
Emp.

lnvolved
No. of

lncidents
lncurred
(FYTD)

Paid
(FYrD)

($)

60
0

24,960
0

1

0
0
0

2
2

3,749
3,069

7. Ene Cost

FYE

Pumping
Other*

2013 Stafford TP
Pumping
Other*

2012 Stafford TP
Pumping
Other*

Kwh wh
47, 17.1ø,

14.4ø,

42 735 16
183,8 15.6ø

93,951

78,439
N/A

17.1ø,
N/A

14.0ø
14.8ø

59
$424
9220

$432
N/A

187

$295
$386

1Bô

366,046
698,1 78

15.5ø
17.7ø

$260
$636
$271

Kwh
,491 17

943,543 15.7ø, $814
958 20 315

,907 1 1,465

29 790 18
N/A

511 21

61,251
86,072
35 425 16

748

1,3

549,1 96
857,592

118 20
1,635, 15.9ø

17.8ø, 1 ,150

$486
$666
$255

16.14,
14.6ç,

396

*Other includes West Marin Facilities

B. Water Gonservation Update

Month of
December 2013

Fiscal Year
to Date

Program Total
to Date

h Efficie Toilet Rebate 00 28 143 2,768

Retrofi t Certifi cates Filed 18 '153 4,922

Cash for Grass Rebates Paid Out 1 16 538

Washin Machine Rebates 25 166 6,317

Water Smart Home Survey 56 184 1,601

3



I Perfo

SERVICE LINES REPLACED

Polybutylene 6

Copoer (Replaced or Repaired) 2

SERVICE DISRUPTIONS

PLANNED
5Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours

Duration Between 4 and 12 hours
Duration Greater than 12 hours
UNPLANNED

3Duration Between 0.5 and 4 hours
Duration Between 4 and 12 hours
Duration Greater than 12 hours

4



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summarv of Complaints & Service Orders December 2013

Dec-12 Action Taken December 2013
1t14t2014

Type Dec-13

Consumers' Svstem Problems
Service Line Leaks
Meter Leak Consumer's Side
House Plumbing
Noisy Plumbing
Seepage or Other
House Valve / Meter Off
Nothing Found
Low Pressure
High Pressure
Water Waster Complaints

l'otal

Service Repair Reports
Register Replacements
Meter Replacement
Meter Box Alignment
Meter Noise
Dual Service Noise
Box and Lids
Water Off/On Due To Repairs
Misc. Field lnvestigation

Íotal

Leak NMWD Facilities
Main-Leak
Mains-Nothing Found
Mains-Damage
Service- Leak
Services-Nothing Found
Service-Damaged
Fire Hydrant-Leak
Fire Hydrants-Nothing Found
Fire Hydrants-Damaged
Meter Replacement
Meters-Leak
Meters-Nothing Found
Meters Damaged
Washer Leaks

Total

Hiqh Bill Complaints
Consumer Leaks
Meter Testing
Meter Misread
Nothing Found
Projected Consumption
Excessive lrrigation

Iotal

1

0

16

0

0
n

J

7

1

rl

0

0
Ã

0

0

0

7
0

0

0

0
27

0

2

0

U

0

U

2

Notified Consumer

Turned Back On
Notified Consumer
PSI @ 80. Pressure is good.

Repaired
Notified Consumer
Repaired

Notified Consumer

Notified Consumer
Notified Consumer

32

n

0

U

0

0

2
0

0

Replaced

72

I

U

0

0

7

J

0

0

0

0

0

0
n

5

0
tt

0

1

I
il

2

0
n

0
n

n

0

I
15

4
0

2

12

1

0

2

I
0
rì

Replaced
1B

11

1931

c-'l



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

Summarv of Complaints & Service Orders December 2013

Type Dec-13 Dec-12 Action Taken December 2013

Low Bill Re o
Meter Misread
Stuck Meter
Nothing Found
Projected Consumption
Minimum Charge Only-

l'otal

Water Qualitv Complaints
Algal Bloom/GAC
ïaste and Odor
Color
Turbidity
Suspended Solids
Other

Total 0

TOTAL FOR MONTH 22%

1t14t2014

n

0
0

0

0

U

0

0

0

0
00

0

0
n

0
n

0

0

U

0

0

0
0

68

--o
83

FiscalYTD Su
Consumer's System Problems
Service Repair Report
Leak Complaints
High Bill Complaints
Low Bills
Water Quality Complaints
Total

'166

60
140
233

n

46

247
82

142
342

1

22

-33%
-27o/o

-1%
-32o/o

0%
109%-- -23%

Change Primarilv Due To
Decrease ln Service Leaks
Decrease ln Water On/Off for Repairs
Decrease ln Service Leaks
Decrease ln Nothing Found

lncrease ln Taste & Odor
836645

c-2



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

m lai & Service Orders December

Dec-13 Dec-12 Action Taken December 2013
1t14t2014

Type
"ln House" Generated and
Completed Work Orders

Check Meter: possible
consumer/District leak, high
bill, flooded, need read, etc.

Change Meter: leaks,
hard to read

Possiþle Stuck Meter
Repair Meter: registers,

shut offs
Replace Boxes/Lids
Hvdrant Leaks
Trims
Diq Outs
Letters to Consumer:

meter obstruction, trims,
bees, gate access, etc.

Mrsc; locate meter,
get meter number,
cross connection follow ups,
kill service, etc.

211

17

175

11

2
U

3

0

Õ

52

0
0

1

0
20

101

0

0

0

0

350 251

$61,981
$75,964

Bill Adjustments Under Board Policy:

December 13 vs. December 12

Dec-13
Dec-I2

Fiscal Year to Date vs. Prior FYTD

13/14 FYTD
12113 FYTD

31

28
$15,454
$1 1,358

191

228

c:\documênts and settings\kyoung\local seltings\temporary ¡nterr
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sryc\cons acct\cust. quest reports\2o13uastomer seryice queslion. rep decl

12t31t2013

Res SE

ree ree
0
0
0
0
0

0

Disaoree

0

Disaqree

0

0

0%

13o/o i

0

Neutral

0

Neutral

0

2

/.Yo

100%

0

Aqree
1

1

1

1

1

5

Aqree
0
0
n

0
0
0

83

98%

131

Questionnaires Returned I lZ

Satisfactorily Resolved

Satisfactorily Resolved

Satisfactorily Resolved

Questionnaires Sent Out

Courteous & Helpful
Accurate lnformation
Prompt Service

Overall Experience

Noisv Pipes
Courteous & Helpful
Accurate lnformatior
Prompt Service

Overall Experience

Courteous & Helpful
Accurate lnformation
Prompt Service

Overall Experience

Grand Total

ñ_

NMWD

Pressure

Other

C u sto m er Service Qu esti o n n ai re Q u afterl o17

Res
Water Quality N ree

Courteous & Hel 0

Accurate I U

P Service
Sati Resolved 0

0

Disaqree

0

Disaqree

0

0

Neutral

0

Neutral

2

2

0

Aqree
12
12
12
12

12

60

Billin e
Courteous & Hel 4
Accurate lnformation 2
Pro mpt Service 4
Satisfactoril Resolved 4
Overall Expe 4

0

Satisfactorily Resolved

Overall nce

Courteous & Helpful
Accurate lnformation
Prompt Service

Overall Experience

Leak



Customer Service Quesúion naire Quarterly Report
Quarter Endinq 12131 113

Customer Comments
ater ua

Leaks
Outstanding !

Very helpful. Gave me good tips to cut water use.
Your employee was excellent.
Very prompt service, thank you.
Thank you for everything.
His service was great as a older citizen his help
was great. Thank you.

Billing
Excellent service. Thank you

Other

Noisy Pipes
Rich was such an "Angel." So happy with his
effort & service.

Staff Res nse to ative Comments

t:\cons sruc\cons aæt\cust. quest reporis\201 3\[customer sery¡ce question. rep decl 3.xls]comments

lssues NMWD Should Address
ln The Future

Page 1



To:

From

Subj:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

David L. Bentley, Auditor-Controller

Auditor-Controller's Monthly Report of lnvestments for December 2013
l:\ac\word\invsst\1 4\¡nvêstment report 1 21 3.doc

January 17,2014

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

At month end the District's lnvestment Portfolio had an amortized cost value (i.e., cash balance)

of $16,153,564 and a marketvalue of $16,170,720. During Decemberthe cash balance increased by

$1 1 ,413. No Recycled Water grant and loan funds were received during the month. The market value

of securities held increased by $2,698 during the month. The ratio of total cash to budgeted annual

operating expense, excluding the $6,087,818 unexpended balance of the Bank of Marin loan, stood at

760/o, the same as the prior month. This compares to the District's target ratio of 90% of annual

operating expense, or $1 1 .9 million, Receipt of an additional 9856,067 in recycled water grant and loan

funds is anticipated.

At December 31, 2013,69% of the District's Portfolio was invested in California's LocalAgency

lnvestment Fund (LAIF), 14o/o in Time Certificate of Deposits, and 12o/o in Corporate Medium Term

Notes. The weighted average maturity for the portfolio was 147 days, compared to 144 days at the end

of November. The LAIF interest rate for the month was 0.26%, the same as the previous month. The

weighted average Portfolio rate was 0,36%, compared to 0,35% the previous month. lncluding interest

paid by Black Point Partners on the StoneTree Golf Club Recycled Water Facilities Loan, the District

earned 910,223 in interest revenue during December, with 50% earned by Novato Water, 44o/o earned

by Recycled Water (by virtue of the Black Point Partners loan) and the balance distributed to the other

improvement districts.

State Controller John Chiang's December report on California's financial position stated:

"Revenues for the first half of the fiscal year are well ahead of estimates and reflect a surging

economy fueled by a boom in technology, rising exports, improving consumer confidence, and a new

housing upswing. However, our State's history of boom and bust revenue cycles calls for disciplined

spending that emphasizes paying-off debt accumulated throughout the Great Recession. The best way

to avoid gut-wrenching cuts tomorrow is to avoid indescriminate spending today."



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2013

T Descri ron

Ce¡tificate of Deposit
Ally Bank
Goldman Sachs
GE Capital Retail Bank
Discover Bank
GE Capital Bank
American Express
Compass Bank
Sallie Mae Bank
BMW Bank

Purchase Maturity
Date Date

12t31t2013
Market Value Yield'

S&P
Rating

A

Cost
Basisr

o/o of
Portfolio

LAIF State of CA Treasury Various Open 911 ,177 ,397 $1 1 ,183,738 0.260/o 3 69%

Time
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD
TCD

10t1t14
12t5t14
4t13t15
5t1t15
6t8t15
8t3t15
9t4t15

10t23t15
12t11t15

$248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000

$248,000
248,00Q
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000
248,000

0.85%
Q.75o/o

0.80%
0.50%
0.50%
0.70%
0.65%
0.80%
0,700/o
o-5ø

2o/o

2%
2%
2%
2o/o

2o/o

2%
2%
2%

-__J4%

nla 9128112
nla 1215112

nla 10111113
nla 511113

nla 6110113
nla 811113

nla 914113

nla 10123113
nla 12111113

Corporate Medium Term Note
MTN General Electric AA+
MTN Toyota Motor Credit AA-

1t29t13
5114t13

10t9t15
7 t17 t15

2 000 24 000
2,000 ,23 00

$1,002,626 $1,004,694
1 ,Q05 ,7 43 1 , 006, 1 60W

0.70o/o 60/o

0.50% 6%
Ts-õ% Æ

Other
Agency Marin Co Treasury
Bond Olema G.O. Bond
Other Various

AAq" Various Open
A+ 5131t91 1t1t15
nla Various Open

TOTAL IN PORTFOLIO
257 987 257

$473,878
3,933

$473,878
12,274

987

0.224/o
5.00%
0.00%

3o/o

0%
2%

16,153,564 16,170,720 0.36% 100%

Weighted Avg, Maturity = 147 Days

LAIF: State of California Local Agency lnvestment Fund.
MTN: Medium Term Note - Maturity of 5 years or less.
TCD: Time Certificate of Deposit
Agency: West Marin General Obligation Bond Fund tax receipts & STP State Revolving Fund Loan Reserve.
Bond: Annual $4,113 payment is paid by tax levy on Olema residents.
Other: Comprised of 4 accounts used for operating purposes. US Bank Operating Account, US Bank STP SRF Loan

Account, Bank of Marin AEEP Checking Account & NMWD Petty Cash Fund.
1 Original cost less repayment of principal and amortization of premium or discount.
2 Yield defined to be annualized interest earnings to maturity as a percentage of invested funds.
3 Earnings are calculated daily - this represents the average yield for the month ending December 31 ,2013.

lnterest Loans
Loan

Date

Maturity

Date

Original

Loan Amount
Principal

Outstanding

lnterest

Rate
Black Point Partners-BPGL 6/30/06 2l29l24
Employee Housing Loans (7) Various Various
Employee Computer Loans (2) Various Various

TOTAL INTEREST BEARING IOA'VS

$3,612,640 $2,236,317 2A0%
1,249,200 1,249,200 Contingent

4,464 1,408 1.52% (avg)
$4,866,304 $3,496,925

The District has the ability to meet the next six months of cash flow requirements.
t:\accountants\finânc¡als\stmtfy'1 4\[cpm1 21 3.xls]projects





Item #9

To:

From:

Subject:

January 17,2014

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt a Resolution Approving the lnterconnection Agreement,
Authorizing the President to sign same and direct the General
Manager to File a Notice of Exemption,

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Approximately $4.89M Capital Reimbursement and $100,000
annual Wheeling Charge Revenue

Enclosed is a "clean copy" of the proposed new lnterconnection Agreement between

North Marin Water District (NMWD) and Marin MunicipalWater District (MMWD) (Attachment 1)

and a resolution approving same (Attachment 2), authorizing the President to sign and directing

the General Manager to file a Notice of Exemption. District legal counsel will be in attendance to

answer any questions. Once each agency's consideration and approval of the proposed

Agreement is completed, I am hopeful that the Boards of Directors of both NMWD and MMWD

will hold a joint meeting to publicly acknowledge and demonstrate the mutual cooperation and

coordination that this lnterconnection Agreement exemplifies and establishes.

The proposed Agreement has been modified from the March 1993 lntertie Agreement

in three principal categories: Substance, Reorganization, and Clean-up, as listed and explained

below:

Substance

r Section 1.(b),(4) - Reach 4 is now defined as including the Aqueduct Energy

Efficiency Project (AEEP).

o The Purpose of Agreement has been reworded as requested by MMWD.

o Section 3.C. - MMWD's delivery to Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek includes a provision

that if MMWD water use restrictions are in place at the time NMWD requests MMWD

release water to Lagunitas Creek, NMWD would require its West Marin customers to follow

suit under the provisions of NMWD's existing Water Shortage Contingency Plan.

. Section 5.4.3. (c) - Added to reflect that Kastania Pump Station will no longer be

operated once the AEEP is operational.

o Section 6.4.1. - Newwheeling charges are included (applies to sections 6.8, & 6 C.

also).

r Section 6.4.2. - Provides MMWD payment for a portion of the AEEP capital cost.

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Chris DeGabriele, General Manager Qp
MMWD and NMWD lnterconnection Agreement
l;\gm\2014 misc\interconnêction memo to board.doc



. Section 7.C. - Subsections 1 . & 2. are carryovers from the 2001 Hamilton Agreement;

Subsection 3. memorializes the process for NMWD to backfeed Stafford Lake if needed, as

determined by MMWD and NMWD.

. Section 7.D. - Enables any number of opportunities for future cooperation and

coordination between the two Districts to develop joint projects and or programs for future

integrated water supply planning and operations.

. Section 7.E. - Commits NMWD to replace the NM Aqueduct from Redwood Landfillto

Novato when necessary and subject to a future agreement.

. Section 7.F. - Enables MMWD and NMWD to cooperate in a future agreement for a

potential MMWD pipeline from Redwood Landfill to Kastania.

. Section 8.G. - The term, as requested by MMWD, extends to June 30, 2040, same as

the existing Agreement.

Reorqanization

. Recitals are moved to the front of the Agreement as requested by MMWD.

. Section 7.4. - This was previously the '1993 lnteftie Agreement Section 37 and part of

Miscellaneous Provisions and has been updated with current information,

Glean-Up

' crea'-''.*"i'.#iî 
;J,il:;ï: ;::.iï::i;"'tion 

Agreement incrude:

' Section 3.A.2 - carried over from the Hamilton Agreement.

' Section 4. - Ownership of Facilities has changed over time and is now

updated.

. Section 5. Operation and Maintenance is updated with current

information.

. Section 6. 8., C. & D. - are updated with current info.

. Section 8.4. - The CEQA obligation is updated to reflect current facts.

Section 8.8. - Termination of Existing Agreements reflects the fact that

the lntertie Agreement and Hamilton Agreement are no longer necessary,

and are being terminated.

Exhibit A - Has been updated to schematically depict current status of

facilities in place and the planned AEEP project.

RECOMMENDATION: Board adopt the resolution approving the lnterconnection Agreement,

authorize the Board President to sign the agreement, and direct the General Manager to file a

Notice of Exemption.



INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT

between

North Marin Water District
and

Marin Municipal Water District

2014

ATTACHMENI- 1
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INTERCONNNEC ON AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made this day of , 2014 by and between
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a public body, herein called "Notlh Marin," and
MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a public body, herein called "Marin Municipal."

RECITALS

From time to time there exists surplus capacity in the North Marin water
system.

From time to time there exists surplus capacity in the Marin Municipal water
system.

Pursuant to the existing agreement between Marin Municipal and Sonoma
Agency, Sonoma Agency delivers Marin Municipal's Russian River water to
the Nofth Marin Aqueduct at the Kastania meter station, Nodh Marin's
metered turnout. lt is expected that pursuant to any amendment to said
agreement deliveries will continue to the same location.

Pursuant to the existing agreement between North Marin, Sonoma Agency,
Forestville County Water District, Valley of the Moon Water District and the
Cities of Cotati, Petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Windsor and Sonoma,
Sonoma Agency delivers Norlh Marin's Russian River water to the Nodh Marin
Aqueduct. lt is expected that pursuant to any amendment to said agreement
deliveries will continue to the same location.

During certain times of the year it is anticipated there will be surplus capacity
in the North Marin Aqueduct.

Nofth Marin owns certain pipeline and construction easements which contain
the North Marin Aqueduct and which were planned to accommodate a second
aqueduct.

G. Marin Municipal desires to utilize finished water reservoir storage available in

North Marin's water system, including the Atherton, Lynwood, Palmer Drive
and Amaroli Tanks, to balance pump operations upstream and downstream of
Reach 3. North Marin desires to augment deliveries to finished water storage
reservoirs in the south end of its water system from Reach 1,2 and 3.

H. Marin Municipal has the capability of releasing water from its reservoirs into
Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek for the benefit of Notlh Marin which extracts water
from stream side wells located downstream.

Caltrans is widening US Highway 101 between Novato and Petaluma, the
Marin-Sonoma Narrows Project, that requires relocation of the North Marin
Aqueduct adjacent to the highway.
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The existing North Marin Aqueduct and Kastania Pump Station average
monthly capacity of 1B mgd is insufficient to deliverthe combined full amount
of water included in the North Marin and Marin Municipal contracts with
Sonoma Agency. As of the effective date of this agreement average daily
combined flow delivery entitlements in the summer months totals 32.7 mgd
(19.9 mgd for North Marin and 12.8 mgd for Marin Municipal).

K. Under current conditions the electric motor driven pumps at the Kastania
Pump Station must remain in service at all times during the summer months if
Nodh Marin and Marin Municipal are to meet the needs of their customers.

The State of California has found that greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) are a
major factor contributing to climate change and has promulgated laws and
regulations requiring a reduction in GHG emissions.

M. Elimination of the Kastania Pump Station will reduce GHG emissions by at
least 300 tons per year.

Nodh Marin is constructing the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project (AEEP) to
upsize the North Marin Aqueduct from Kastania Pump Station to Redwood
Landfill Road, including the Norlh Marin Aqueduct sections requiring relocation
due to the Caltrans US Highway 101 Marin-Sonoma Narrows Project. The
AEEP will enable elimination of the Kastania Pump Station while maintaining
the existing North Marin Aqueduct average monthly delivery capacity of
18 mgd.

O. North Marin operates its Stafford Lake Water Treatment facility during summer
months to utilize local water supply and partially offset North Marin's Russian
River water deliveries, thereby increasing surplus capacity in the North Marin
Aqueduct.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these recitals and the mutual promises
made herein, North Marin and Marin Municipal agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

As used herein, the terms

(a) "Annually", "per annum" or "fiscal year" means a twelve month period
commencing July 1 and ending June 30.

(b) "lntertie Facilities" means all the interconnecting facilities of Marin
Municipal and Norlh Marin through which water can flow for the benefit of
one or the other party including all attached and appurtenant facilities
such as valves, meters, blow-offs, control cables and devices, cathodic
protection equipment, and electrical services and comprised of the
following principal components shown on the schematic diagram
attached hereto and marked "Exhibit 4".
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(1) Reach 1, consisting of approximately 4,300 feet of 18-inch and
16-inch pipeline extending from Big Rock Ridge nodh to the Main
Gate Road;

(2) Reach 2, consisting of approximately 11,100 feet of 30-inch
pipeline extending north from Main Gate Road to a point near the
Highway 101 and Highway 37 interchange where said 3O-inch
pipeline connects with a 24-inch and 36-inch pipeline at a

connection called the Wye;

(3) Reach 3 contains two parallel pipeline systems; one owned by
Nofth Marin called the Nofth Marin lnterlie consisting of
approximately 4,980 feet of 24-inch pipeline extending from the
westerly end of Branch 2 north to Redwood Blvd and Sunset
Parkway and approximately 14,300 feet of 28.S-inch pipeline north
of said intersection to a point of connection with the 28.5-inch Nodh
Marin Aqueduct at the San Marin Control Station; and the other
owned by Marin Municipal called the Novato Bypass consisting of
approximately 20,100 feet of 36-inch pipeline extending from the
Wye north to a point of connection with the 28.5-inch North Marin
Aqueduct immediately north of the San Marin Control Station;

(4) Reach 4, called the North Marin Aqueduct consisting of
approximately 17,000 feet of 28.5-inch pipeline extending from the
northern terminus of Reach 3 to Redwood Landfill Road (Reach 4a)
and approximately 24,000 feet of 28.5 inch pipeline extending from
Redwood Landfill Road to the Sonoma Agency pipeline near
Kastania Pump Station (Reach 4b); Reach 4b will be upsized to a
42-inch pipeline as part of the AEEP, enabling elimination of
Kastania Pump Station operation;

(5) "Hamilton Bypass" means the 36-inch pipeline that parallels
Reach 1 extending from Big Rock Ridge north to the Main Gate
Road;

(6) "Pacheco Tanks" means the two tanks on Big Rock Ridge at the
terminus of the Hamilton bypass;

(7) Branch 1 , consisting of approximately 3,1 90 feet of 1B-inch, '12-inch

and B-inch pipeline connecting to Reach 1 at Bolling Drive and
extending south and then easterly to Air Base Tank;

(8) Branch 2, consisting of 1,492 feet of 24-inch pipeline extending
from the Wye norlh then westerly across Highway 101 to a

connection with a 24-inch pipeline; the North Marin lntertie;

(9) Lynwood, Amaroli and Palmer Tanks including pipelines connecting
same to Branch 2 and Reach 2;

(10) Atherton Tank including pipelines connecting same to Reach 3;
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(11) Kastania, including Kastania Tank and Kastania Pump Station;

(12) PachecoValle lnterconnection (Reach 1);

(13) Hamilton Main Gate Road lnterconnection (where Reach 1 meets
Reach 2);

(14) Bel Marin Keys lnterconnection (Reach 2);

(15) Wye lnterconnection (on Branch 2 where Reach 2 meets Reach 3);

(16) San Marin lnterconnection (where Reach 3 meets Reach 4)

(c) "Other interconnections" means other interconnections or facilities in
place or from time to time constructed and added to either the Marin
Municipal or North Marin water system which the parlies hereto mutually
agree are needed to effectively carry out the provisions of this
agreement.

(d) "North Marin Aqueduct" means lntertie Facility (b) (4) or Reach 4, North
Marin's pipeline extending south from the Sonoma Agency pipeline near
Kastania Pump Station to the San Marin Control Station in Novato.

(e) "Marin Municipal's Russian River water" means water furnished and
delivered by Sonoma Agency to Marin Municipal at Kastania.

(f) "Marin Municipal Water System" means all the reservoirs, both raw water
and finished water, pumps, aqueducts, pipelines, treatment plants, and
other appurtenant facilities owned and operated by Marin Municipal for
the purpose of providing water service to its customers.

(g) "mgd" means millions of gallons per day, a rate of flow.

(h) "North Marin's Russian River water" means water furnished and
delivered by Sonoma Agency to North Marin at Kastania.

(i) "North Marin Water System" means all the reservoirs, both raw water
and finished water, pumps, aqueducts, pipelines, treatment plants, and
other appurtenant facilities owned and operated by North Marin for the
purpose of providing water service to its customers.

0) "Novato Bypass" means Marin Municipal's 36-inch pipeline extending
from the Wye north to a point just north of North Marin's San Marin
Control Station.

(k) "Point(s) of delivery" means any point or points from time to time
mutually agreed to by the padies which are located within, are part of,
or are connected to, the lntertie Facilities or other point or points of
delivery mutually agreed to by the parties. As of the date of this
agreement, the following points of delivery exist:
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(1) Pacheco Valle: the point of interconnection between the most
southerly 1B-inch segment of Marin Municipal's Reach 1 pipeline

and North Marin's 1B inch and 14-inch Pacheco Valle pipeline, near
Pacheco Valle.

(2) Main Gate Road. two points of interconnection: one being south,
between Hamilton Bypass and the most northerly 1B-inch segment
of the North Marin portion of the Reach 1 pipeline located near the
Hamilton School and the second being to the north, between Marin
Municipal's 30 inch Reach 2 pipeline and the Lanham Village
distribution system.

(3) Bel Marin Keys. the point of interconnection between Marin
Municipal's 30-inch Reach 2 pipeline and Norlh Marin's 16-inch Bel

Marin Keys pipeline.

(4) San Marin Control Station: the point of interconnection between
Reach 4 facilities and Reach 3 facilities.

(5) Nicasio Creek: the downstream end of the pipe located at the base
of Seeger Dam (Nicasio Lake) used to release water to Nicasio
Creek.

(6) Lagunitas Creek. the downstream end of the pipe located at the
base of Peters Dam (Kent Lake) used to release water to Lagunitas
Creek.

(7) The Wye: the point of interconnection between Reach 2 and
Reach 3 facilities.

(l) "Release" means, the release of water to North Marin's West Marin
Service Area, at either the Lagunitas Creek or Nicasio Creek points of
delivery from Kent or Nicasio Lakes.

(m) "Replacement cost" means the cost associated with, or the act of,

acquisition of material and installation of same for the correction of
irreparable wear or other deterioration of parts or elements of a given

structure or facility.

(n) "Sonoma Agency" means Sonoma County Water Agency, a public body.

(o) "Summer months" means May, June, July, August and September.

(p) "surplus capacity" means the capacity of any facility of the water system
of one of the parties hereto which said parly solely and conclusively
determines is in excess of the needs of its customers.

(q) "Caltrans" mean the State of California Department of Transpoftation
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(r) "Restructured Agreement for Water Supply" means the agreement
between North Marin and a number of water providers in Sonoma
County and the Sonoma Agency that became effective on June 23,
2006.

(s) "supplemental Water Supply Agreement" means the agreement
between Marin Municipal and the Sonoma Agency dated January 9,

1 996.

(t) "lntertie Agreement" means the agreement between Marin Municipal and
North Marin dated March 11, 1993.

(u) "Hamilton Agreement" means the agreement entitled "Agreement for
Water Service Boundary Reorganization at the Former Hamilton Air
Base, Novato, California" between Marin Municipal and North Marin
dated December 18, 2001.

2. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The purpose of this agreement is to provide the basis for and mechanism whereby
Marin Municipal and North Marin can each, as a first priority, continue to meet the
needs of their respective customers, and simultaneously, to the extent feasible,
utilize their respective water systems and surplus system capacity in a coordinated
manner for the benefit of the customers of both Districts.

3. WATER DEL¡VERY PROVISIONS

A. Norlh Marin's Delivery of Marin Municipal's Russian River Water

North Marin shall deliver Marin Municipal's Russian River water through
the Nofth Marin Water System at such point or points of delivery, at such
times and at such rates of flow as determined by Marin Municipal,
subject, however, to the availability of surplus capacity and provided
such deliveries may be made in a manner that will not prevent North
Marin from meeting its contractual obligations to Sonoma Agency and
will normally not lower the water level in Nofth Marin's Atherton, Palmer
Drive, Lynwood or Amaroli Tanks below operating levels determined by
North Marin.

2. North Marin will endeavor in good faith to produce 1,300 AF of treated
potable water at its Stafford Lake water treatment facility during the
period of May 15 through September 15 each calendar year.

Marin Municipal's Delivery of North Marin's Russian River Water

Marin Municipal shall deliver North Marin's Russian River water through the
Marin Municipal Water System at such point or points of delivery, at such
time and at such rates of flow as determined by North Marin, subject to the
availability of surplus capacity and provided such deliveries may be made in

1
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a manner that will not prevent Marin Municipal from meeting its contractual
obligations to Sonoma Agency.

C. Marin Municipal's Delivery to Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek

On North Marin's request, when flow in Lagunitas Creek is determined by
North Marin to be low or when the dry year condition described in State
Water Resources Control Board Order 95-17 occurs, Marin Municipal shall
release to Nicasio Creek or Lagunitas Creek for North Marin's benefit up to
250 acre-feet per year. Said water shall be used by Notlh Marin within its
lnverness-Point Reyes Annexation Territory as same is recorded in Volume
2118 of the official Records of Marin County at Page 304 through 314.
Additional amounts of water may be released by Marin Municipal upon North
Marin's request subject to the availability of surplus water, as determined
solely by Marin Municipal. Whether releases of requested water are made
from Seeger Dam / Nicasio Lake or Peters Dam I Kent Lake shall be
determined by Marin Municipal. All deliveries made by Marin Municipal
pursuant to this section shall be over and above those releases that Marin
Municipal must make to meet instream flow and water rights requirements as
ordered by the State Water Resources Control Board.

ln addition, if in any year that North Marin requests water under this Section
and Marin Municipal has requested voluntary or mandatory water use
reductions of its customers in eastern Marin County, North Marin shall
require its customers in its lnverness-Point Reyes Annexation Territory to
reduce water use by an equal or greater percentage, using the methodology
included in North Marin's "Water Shortage Contingency Plan for West Marin
Service Area", dated August 23,2002, or any subsequent Plan.

Marin Municipal Deliveries to North Marin at the Pacheco Valle, Main Gate
Road and Bel Marin Keys lnterconnections

At North Marin's request and subject to availability of supply and capacity in
Marin Municipal's Water System, Marin Municipal shall deliver to North Marin
such quantities of water as North Marin requires to augment supply to the
south end of its water system at its Pacheco Valle, Main Gate Road and Bel
Marin Keys interconnections. Prior to said deliveries of water to North Marin,
North Marin, at its expense, shall install metering facilities acceptable to
Marin Municipal.

E. Risk of Loss

Risk of loss and responsibility for the handling and control of all water
delivered hereunder shall pass from the party making the delivery to the party
receiving the delivery at the point of delivery or release thereof. The pafties
agree to exercise due diligence in inspecting their various pipelines and
appurtenances and to take steps to guard against unreasonable loss of water.
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F. Water Quality

The quality of water delivered by North Marin to Marin Municipal shall be
equivalent to the quality of water served by North Marin in its potable Novato
area water system. The quality of water delivered by Marin Municipal to
Norlh Marin, with the exception of water delivered pursuant to Section 3.C.
hereof, which shall be untreated water, and water from Sonoma Agency
delivered through the Marin Municipal Water System upstream of the lgnacio
pump station, shall be equivalent to the quality of water leaving Marin
Municipal's lgnacio Pump Station, including any fluoridation and corrosion
control treatment conducted by Marin Municipal.

G. Meters for Deliveries to Marin Municipal

Meters used to measure deliveries made to Marin Municipal shall be tested for
accuracy at least once annually by Marin Municipal at Marin Municipal's
expense. Norlh Marin shall be provided with a report of said test. Nofth Marin
shall have the right to make additional tests at any time at its expense. A
meter shall be recalibrated if it is found to be inaccurate by more than two
percent and in such event delivery data and corresponding payments or
exchanges of water will be adjusted by the amount above or below said two
percent accuracy standard as appropriate from the last date that the meter
was known to be operating properly or, if such date cannot be determined,
from a date midway between the date the meter was last tested and the date
correct readings again commenced. However, under no circumstances shall
the adjustment period exceed one year. North Marin shall read such meters
and make an accounting to Sonoma Agency and Marin Municipal.

H. Meters for Deliveries to North Marin

Meters used to measure deliveries made to North Marin, excluding deliveries
at Kastania, Nicasio Creek or Lagunitas Creek, shall be tested for accuracy at
least once annually by North Marin at North Marin's expense. Marin Municipal
shall be provided with a report of said test. Marin Municipal shall have the
right to make additional tests at any time at its expense. A meter shall be
recalibrated if it is found to be inaccurate by more than two percent and in

such event delivery data and corresponding payments or exchanges of water
will be adjusted by the amount above or below said two percent accuracy
standard as appropriate from the last date that the meter was known to be
operating properly or, if such date cannot be determined, from a date midway
between the date the meter was last tested and the date correct readings
again commenced. However, under no circumstances shall the adjustment
period exceed one year. North Marin shall read such meters and make an

accounting to Sonoma Agency and Marin Municipal.

4. OWNERSHIP OF FACILITIES

Marin Municipal owns the portion of Reach 1 south of the Pacheco Valle
lnterconnection, including the valve that connects the North Marin and Marin
Municipal Water Systems at that point, the Hamilton Bypass Pipeline,
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Reach 2, including the valves that connect it to the Main Gate Road
lnterconnection and the Novato Bypass pipeline in Reach 3, Pacheco Tanks
and the lgnacio Pump Station.

North Marin owns Branches 1 and 2, the portion of Reach 1 nofth of the
Pacheco Valle lnterconnection, all other pipelines in Reach 3 and Reach 4, Air
Base Tank, the Lynwood, Athedon, Palmer Drive and Amaroli Tanks and the
San Marin Control Station.

Sonoma Agency owns, operates and maintains Kastania Tank and the
Kastania Pump Station.

5. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

A. Operation of Facilities

Marin Municipal shall be responsible for the operation, maintenance,
repair and replacement of the facilities it owns. Control of flow in

Reach 3 shall be dictated by Atherton, Lynwood and Palmer Drive Tank
levels such that the hydraulic grade line in Reach 4 at the point of
connection with Reach 3 does not fall below operation levels of these
tanks as determined by North Marin. North Marin shall inform Marin
Municipal prior to modifying the minimum operation levels of the tanks
that dictate the control of flow in Reach 3.

North Marin shall be responsible for operation, maintenance, repair and
replacement of the facilities it owns and shall coordinate the operation of
the Kastania Pump Station, subject to Section 5.A.3 below.

3. Operation of Kastania Pump Station

The Kastania Pump Station, constructed to benefit both Marin
Municipal and North Marin, shall be operated as follows:

(a) North Marin shall have the right to use the pump station to meet the
needs of its customers including backfeeding water from the Nodh
Marin Aqueduct to Stafford Lake. Before backfeeding any water
North Marin shall consult with Marin Municipal and Sonoma Agency
and will make every reasonable attempt to develop a plan of
operation that will minimize disruption of deliveries of Marin
Municipal's Russian River water.

(b) Marin Municipal shall have the right to use the capacity of the
Kastania Pump Station to the extent that surplus capacity exists in
North Marin's system to transfer water to Marin Municipal.

(c) Once Reach 4b is upsized to a  Z-inch pipeline as part of the
AEEP and the AEEP is operational, Kastania Pump Station will no
longer be operated and Sections 5.4.3 (a) and (b) will no longer be
in effect.
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B. Standards of Maintenance

The party assigned responsibility for operation, maintenance, repair and
replacement of the lntertie Facilities shall at all times keep said facility in

good repair and working order throughout the term of this Agreement.

6. PAYMENT AND EXCHANGE PROVISIONS

A. Payment for Delivery of Marin Municipal's Russian River Water

Marin Municipal shall pay Nodh Marin a wheeling charge for all Marin
Municipal's Russian River water delivered pursuant to Section 3. On the
effective date of this agreement the wheeling charge shall be $12.00 per
acre-foot as the base charge, plus an additional $4.00 per acre-foot set
aside charge. Together the total wheeling charge shall be $16.00 per
acre-foot, $4.00 per acre-foot of which shall be allocated and credited to
Marin Municipal's share of the future replacement costs of the North
Marin Aqueduct, including the escalation as described below. The
wheeling charge and set aside charge shall be increased on July 1 of
each subsequent year, beginning July 1 , 2014, to reflect the change in

the Engineering News Record Construction Cost lndex for the
San Francisco Bay area for the preceding 12 months (the "escalator").

The escalator on the wheeling and set aside charges shall be no greater
than 4o/o per year and no less than 2o/o per year.

ln recognition of North Marin's investment in the AEEP, Marin Municipal
shall pay to North Marin $480,000 within 30 days from the date the
lnterconnection Agreement is executed and shall make annual payments
to Norlh Marin in the amount of $245,000 each July 1, from 2014
through 2032 as fair compensation for the AEEP capital cost. The
parlies agree that the AEEP project's actual costs, exclusive of those
costs paid by Caltrans, are subject to verification and will be trued up
such that Marin Municipal's share of the final actual costs of the AEEP
are equal to 51 percent and North Marin's share of the final actual costs
of the AEEP are equal to 49 percent. After those final actual AEEP
costs are verified by the parties, the adjustment to Marin Municipal's
annual payment on a going forward basis will be jointly reviewed and
considered during the 6-month period immediately following such joint
verification and Marin Municipal's future annual payments of $245,000
will be adjusted to reflect actual costs incurred by Nofth Marin for the
AEEP Project. Marin Municipal's adjusted annual payments will be
memorialized in a letter jointly prepared and affirmed by signature of the
padies, and the parties will be bound by such letter without the need to
fufther amend this agreement.

B. Payment for Delivery of Nofth Marin's Russian River Water

North Marin shall pay Marin Municipal a wheeling charge for all Nofth Marin's
water delivered pursuant to Section 3. On the effective date of this agreement
the wheeling charge shall be $3.00 per acre-foot. The wheeling charge shall
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C

be increased on July 1 of each subsequent year, beginning July 1 , 2014, Io
reflect the change in the Engineering News Record Construction Cost lndex
for the San Francisco Bay area for the preceding 12 months (the "escalator").
The escalator on the wheeling charge shall be no greater ïhan 4o/o per year
and no less than 2o/o per year.

Payment for water delivered to North Marin pursuant to Section 3.D.,
Pacheco Valle, Main Gate Road, and Bel Marin Keys lnterconnections, will
be by exchange, as provided in Section 6.D., below.

ln addition, for each acre-foot of water delivered to North Marin pursuant to
Section 3.D., Pacheco Valle, Main Gate Road and Bel Marin Keys
lnterconnections, North Marin shall pay Marin Municipal the wheeling
charge.

For all such water delivered to North Marin downstream of lgnacio Pump
Station, North Marin shall pay Marin Municipal a charge per acre-foot equal to
the total annual out-of-pocket cost of energy consumed and treatment
chemicals provided by Marin Municipal at the lgnacio Pump Station divided by
the total volume of water pumped during the same period.

Compensation for Nicasio or Lagunitas Creek Deliveries and Other Water
Delivered by Marin Municipal

For each acre-foot of water delivered by Marin Municipal to North Marin
pursuant to Section 3.C., Lagunitas or Nicasio Creek, Norlh Marin shall pay
Marin Municipal $190/acre-foot. This charge shall be increased on July 1 of
each subsequent year, beginning July 1 , 2014, to reflect the change in the
Engineering News Record Construction Cost lndex for the San Francisco Bay
area for the preceding 12 months (the escalator). The escalator shall be no
greater than 4o/o per year and no less than 2o/o per year.

D. Exchange Deliveries by North Marin

On the terms and conditions set forth in this sub paragraph 6. D. NoÍh Marin
shall deliver to Marin Municipal water referred to as "exchange water" equal to
the quantity of water delivered to North Marin pursuant to Sections 3.D. At the
end of each fiscal year North Marin shall subtract from its reporting to Sonoma
Agency of Marin Municipal use of Russian River water for the month of June
of said fiscal year an amount of water equal to the total amount of water
delivered to North Marin under the terms of said Section.

E. Payment of North Marin's Expenses for Operating lntertie Facilities

Annual expenses incurred by Norlh Marin in operating, maintaining, repairing
and replacing the lnteÍie Facilities it owns shall be, unless expressly provided
for in this agreement, the responsibility of and paid by North Marin.
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F. Payment of Marin Municipal's Expenses for Operating lntertie Facilities

Annual expenses incurred by Marin Municipal in operating, maintaining,
repairing, and replacing the lntertie Facilities it owns shall be, unless
expressly provided for in this agreement, the responsibility of and paid by
Marin Municipal.

G. Billing and Payment

The party delivering water pursuant to this agreement for which a unit
charge in dollars per acre-foot is assessed shall bill not more frequently than
monthly for same and the receiving party shall pay the amount of such billing
within 30 days of receipt of same. For all other charges due under this
agreement, the billing pady shall prepare a bill which the receiving party
shall pay within 30 days of receipt of same. Notwithstanding any dispute
between the parties hereto, the receiving party shall pay all bills when due
and shall not withhold all or any part of any payment pending the final
resolution of such dispute. ln the event of a dispute, the receiving party may
pay its bills under protest and if the resolution of the dispute results in a
refund, said refund shall be paid within 30 days.

7. COOPERATION PROVISIONS

A. General

Upon request, the parties will support and assist the efforts of each other to
maintain and enhance the reliability of their water supplies from Sonoma
Agency, provided said support and assistance, as determined by said party,
will not have an adverse impact on its customers nor be in conflict with law,
regulation or the established policies of said party

B. Corrosion Protection

North Marin maintains an extensive cathodic protection system for the North
Marin Aqueduct. Marin Municipal shall consult North Marin in designing the
cathodic protection system for its existing or any future lntertie Facilities and
agrees to design and install a system at its sole cost that will be fully
compatible with Norlh Marin's system and not contribute to the deterioration
of the North Marin Aqueduct.

C. Stafford Lake Treatment Plant Operations

1 Norlh Marin will endeavor in good faith to produce 2,000 acre-feet of
treated potable water at its Stafford Lake water treatment facility each
year through the term of this agreement.

Notwithstanding the cooperative pledge of Section 3.A.2 and Section
7.C.1, the parties acknowledge and agree that there may be periods
when insufficient inflow to Stafford Lake or other operational constraints
may prevent North Marin from meeting the Stafford Lake Water
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treatment facility potable water production goals stated in Section 3.4.2
and Section7,C.1.

ln such periods when insufficient inflow to Stafford Lake prevents North
Marin from meeting the Stafford Lake water treatment facility goals
pursuant to Section 3.A.2 or Section 7.C.1 of this agreement, Marin
Municipal may request North Marin to backfeed Marin Municipal's
Russian River water into Stafford Lake pursuant to a Stafford Lake
Agreement in form similar to that executed on February 20,2009 and
updated with then current and pertinent Diversion, Delivery and Payment
provisions. Before backfeeding any water, Notth Marin shall consult with
Marin Municipal and Sonoma Agency and will make every reasonable
attempt to develop a plan of operation that will minimize disruption of
deliveries of Marin Municipal's Russian River water.

D. Joint Projects and/or Programs for Future lntegrated Water Supply Operations

Norlh Marin and Marin Municipal will evaluate and consider joint project(s)
and/or program(s) for future integrated water supply operations. The parties
will jointly determine which pafty will be the lead agency for purposes of
environmental review pursuant to the California Environmental Act ("CEQA").
For each proposed joint project or program, the parties will share costs of the
project and environmental review in proportion to each district's respective
share of the water supply capacity or yield from the proposed project and/or
program, regardless of which party is the lead agency.

E. Future Replacement of the Nofth Marin Aqueduct

North Marin will replace the North Marin Aqueduct, including Reach 4a, when
necessary due to condition or other factors, at a time yet to be determined.
Said replacement may be solely a North Marin project or combined projects of
North Marin, and Marin Municipal, as jointly determined by the pafties. Marin
Municipal's share of the costs for future replacement of the Nodh Marin
Aqueduct shall be the subject of a future agreement between the parties.

3

F Option for Marin Municipal to Make Use of North Marin's Existing Easements
and for Future Marin Municipal Pipeline.

1 Norlh Marin has pipeline easements for the North Marin Aqueduct.
These easements were originally acquired by Notlh Marin with the plan
that a second Norlh Marin aqueduct would eventually be constructed. lf
Marin Municipal elects and North Marin consents to locate facilities in

right-of-ways in which North Marin has existing easements, North Marin
will cooperate in efforls by Marin Municipal to obtain property interests
Marin Municipal deems necessary for installation and operation of said
facilities. To the extent any existing easement held by North Marin is

utilized by Marin Municipal, said utilization shall be the subject of a future
agreement between the parties.
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lf Marin Municipal develops a pipeline project that would be parallel to
Reach 4A and that would include an interconnection to the North Marin
Aqueduct at or above Reach 44, upon execution and implementation
of the agreement between the parties identified in this paragraph, North
Marin will support the proposed project and the interconnection will be
completed upon Marin Municipal's determination to interconnect. The
terms of that agreement will address the following: the location of the
proposed project and the appropriate time of the interconnection to
accommodate the shutdown of the North Marin Aqueduct,
environmental review, engineering, construction, operation,
maintenance and replacement of the facilities, and indemnification.
Approval of said agreement shall not be unreasonably withheld. The
project will be subject to CEQA documentation for which Marin
Municipal will be the lead agency. North Marin will be a responsible
agency under CEQA, but nothing in this section shall affect North
Marin's legal responsibilities under CEQA.

8. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. California Environmental Quality Act

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, North Marin is

designated as the lead agency for any environmental documentation that may
be required for this Agreement. North Marin is the lead agency for the AEEP,
for which the Final EIR was certified and the project approved on July 19,
2011.

B. Termination of Existing Agreements

The "lntertie Agreement" and the "Hamilton Agreement"
terminated.

are hereby

C. Method and Place of Giving Notice and Making Payments

All notices shall be in writing and notices and payments may be given by
personal delivery or by mail. Notices and payments sent by mail shall be
addressed as follows:

North Marin North Marin Water District
Attn: General Manager
P. O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948-0146

Marin Municipal Marin Municipal Water District
Attn: General Manager
220 Nellen Avenue
Corte Madera, CA 94925

Changes may be made in the addresses of the persons to whom notices and
payments are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this section.

14
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D

E

Third Party Beneficiaries

No third pady beneficiaries are intended or established by this agreement'

Representation bY Counsel

North Marin and Marin Municipal each were represented by independent

counsel in the negotiation and execution of this agreement. For the purposes

of interpretation ót Ûrit agreement, neither party shall be deemed to have

been the drafter of this agreement.

F. Mediation

Any dispute occurring under this Agreement :h-"11 
first be reviewed by the

p"r¡"r, who shall méet and attemþt in good faith to resolve the dispute

it",rougl', negotiation. ln the event that the parties cannot resolve any such

dispute between them, then, upon 3Q-days; notice, the parties shall submit

such dispute to mediation by a mutually acceptable neutral mediator' lf any

such dispute is not resolved throrgh mediation, unless the parlies agree in

writing upon an alternative form of and forum for dispute resolution, each party

shall Ëave the right to pursue any remedies it may have in law or in equity' Any

such litigation concerning claims and disputes related to this Agreement shall

be filed in the Superior õourt in and for Marin County, and each Party hereby

waives its right to move to change venue'

SeverabilitY

lf any one or more sections, provisions, promises or conditions of this

ágr""r"nt is declared null and void or voidable for any reason by a final

1uägment or order of a court of competent jurisdiction, it is hereby declared to

be the intention of both parlies and agreed that each and all of the other

sections, provision, promises and conditions of this agreement shall be and

remain in full force and effect'

Term of Agreement

The term of this agreement shall extend from the date of execution hereof

until June 30, zO/iO or the expiration of the Restructured Agreement for

water supply, together with any renewals..thereof or of a successor

agreement to the Rästructured Agreement for Water Supply, whichever shall

occur later.

G

H
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lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on

the date first above written.

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

President, Board of Directors

ATTEST

Secretary

MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

President, Board of Directors

ATTEST

Secretary

16
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DRAFT
RESOLUTION 14-XX

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE

INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT BETWEEN NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT AND
MARIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, MAKING FINDINGS PURSUANT TO THE

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, AND DIRECTING THE FILING OF A
NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

WHEREAS, the North Marin Water District and Marin Municipal Water District entered into

an lntertieAgreement on March 11, 1993, which agreement runs until June 30, 2040, and which

agreement provides for certain exchanges of water, payments therefore, and mutual beneficial uses

of ceftain facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Nofth Marin Water District and Marin Municipal Water District wish to

replace said existing lntertie Agreement with a new lnterconnection agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is the purpose of this agreement to provide the basis for mechanism whereby

Marin Municipal Water District and North Marin Water District can each, as a first priority, continue to

meet the needs of their respective customers, and simultaneously, to the extent feasiþle, utilize their

respective water systems and surplus system capacity in a coordinated mannerforthe benefit of the

customers of both Districts; and

WHEREAS, the new lnterconnection Agreement has been negotiated between North Marin

Water District and Marin Municipal Water District and meets the purpose stated; and

WHEREAS, approval of the lnterconnection Agreement by the Nofth Marin Water District is a

Project as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

WHEREAS, North Marin Water District, the designated lead agency for the Project

environmental review has determined that the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Statutory

Exemption 15273 and Categorical Exemption 15302.

NOW THEREFORE BE lT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of North Marin Water

District hereby finds, determines and declares and orders as follows:

1. The foregoing recitations are true and correct.

t:\bod\resolutions\201 4\inte[connection agreement mmwd.doc
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2. The lnterconnection Agreement revises the 1993 lntertie Agreement financial terms for

wheeling charges, and for paying capital costs for the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency

Project (AEEP), and which financial terms are Statutorily Exempt from CEQA pursuant to

Section 15273 of the Public Resources Code Guidelines for lmplementation of CEQA.

3. The lnterconnection Agreement revises the 1993 lntertie Agreement terms regarding

Marin Municipal Water District and North Marin Water District cooperation in utilization of

their respective water systems for which there is no expansion of capacity, and which

cooperation is Categorically Exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15302 of the Public

Resources Code Guidelines for lmplementation of CEQA.

4. North Marin Water District is the lead agency for the AEEP, for which the Final EIR was

certified and the project approved on July 19,2011.

5. The proposed project could not have significant affect on the environment.

6. The lnterconnection Agreement between North Marin Water District and Marin Municipal

Water District is hereby approved and the President of the Board of Directors is hereby

authorized to execute said agreement on behalf of North Marin Water District.

7 . The General Manager of North Marin Water District is hereby directed to file a Notice of

Exemption with the Marin County Clerk stating that this Board of Directors has

considered the project to be exempt from CEQA and has determined to approve said

I nterconnection Agreement.

I hereby cerlify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly and regularly

adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT at a regular meeting of said

Board held on the twenty-first day of January 2014 by the following vote:

AYES
NOES

ABSENT
ABSTAINED

Katie Young, District Secretary
North Marin Water District

(sEAL)

t:\þod\resolutionsu0l 4\interconnection agreemenl mmwd.doc



To:

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

Fromn Office of Planning and Research
1400 Tenth Street
Sacramento, CA 95814

North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
P. O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948-0146

X County Clerk
County of Marin
3501 Civic Center Drive
San Rafael, CA 94903

Proiect Title: lnterconnection Agreement Between North Marin Water District and Marin
Municipal Water District

Proiect Location - Specific: The water service territories of Norlh Marin Water District and Marin
Municipal Water District

Proiect Location - Citv Proiect Location - County: Marin

Descriotion of Nature. Pu - and Beneficiaries of Proiect:

There presently exists an lntertie Agreement between North Marin Water District and Marin
Municipal Water District entered into on March 1 1 , 1993 which runs until June 30, 2040. The proposed
project consists of a new lnterconnection Agreement between North Marin Water District and Marin
Municipal Water District. The term of the agreement would extend from early January 2014 through
June 30, 2040. The proposed project includes:

Provisions for water delivery between the Districts and payment and exchange provisions for
same,

Provisions defining operation, maintenance and ownership of certain facilities, and

Continued release of small amounts of exchange water from Marin Municipal reservoirs into
Lagunitas Creek during certain years.

Name of Public Aqen Annrovino Proiect: North Marin Water District

Name of person or Aqencv Carrvinq Out Proiect: North Marin Water District

Exempt Status (Check One)
_Ministerial (Sec. 21 080(b)(1); 1 5268);

_Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(bX3); 1 5269(a));
_Emergency Project (Sec, 21080(bX4); 15269(bXc));
X Categorical Exemption (Sec. 15302(c))
X Statutory Exemption (Sec. 15273)

Reasons Whv Proiect ls Exempt:

1. The lnterconnection Agreement revises the 1993 lnterlie Agreement financial terms for

wheeling charges and for paying capital costs for the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project

(AEEP), and which financial terms are Statutorily Exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section

15273 of the Public Resources Code Guidelines for lmplementation of CEQA.



2. The lnterconnection Agreement revises the 1993 lntertie Agreement terms regarding

Marin Municipal Water District and North Marin Water District cooperation in utilization of

their respective water systems for which there is no expansion of capacity, and which

cooperation is Categorically Exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15302 of the Public

Resources Code Guidelines for lmplementation of CEQA.

3. North Marin Water District is the lead agency for the AEEP, for which the Final EIR was

certified and the project approved on July 19,2011,

Lead Aqency Contact Person: Chris DeGabriele , General Manager

Telephone: (41 5) 897 -4133

lf filed by applicant:
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public Agency approving the
project?

Signature Date: Title

Date received for filing at OPR:

Yes No
J(tr

t:\gm\mmwdu014\notice of exemption form mmwd 0114,doc





Item #10

MEMORANDUM

To:

From:

4,,ú

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, Chief Engineer

January 17,2014

Re

Carmela Chandrasekera, Associate Engineer

Approve California Department of Public Health Prop 50 Grant Funding Agreement for
the Gallagher Well Pipeline Project
R:\Foldors by Job NoV000jobs\708n7087.01\BOD mamos\7087.01 memo re fund¡ng agmt Jan 2014.doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: Board augment the FY 13-14 West Marin Capital lmprovement
Projects, and adopt a resolution authorizing signature of CDPH
funding agreement

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $0 (100% grant funded)

Backqround

District statf submitted an application on March 5, 2013 for Prop 50 grant funding

administered by California Department of Public Health (CDPH) in the amount of $1,486,000 for

construction of a - one mile length of the 12-inch pipeline to connect Gallagher Well to NMWD's

existing West Marin water system. The new pipeline will be supported from the existing

Gallagher Ranch bridge to span Lagunitas Creek. The bulk of the pipeline will be installed

within Marin County right of way along Pt. Reyes - Petaluma Rd. (see Attachment 1 for the

project area).

As discussed with the Board at the January 7,2014 meeting, the District received notice

(Letter of Commitment, Attachment 2) from CDPH on December 27,2013 that the Gallagher

Well Pipeline project is eligible for grant funding under Prop 50 (Safe Drinking Water Security,

Clean Drinking Water, Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002) in the amount of $1,486,000,

There are no District matching fund requirements for this grant and, based on the current project

cost estimate, it is anticipated that this grant amount will fully fund the Gallagher Well Pipeline

project.

Prior to CDPH executing the funding agreement, NMWD is required to approve the

attached Resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute said funding agreement and

act as the overall grant administrator for NMWD. Key project milestones are summarized in the

following table:



Gallagher Well Pipeline Project - Funding Agreement BOD Memo
January 17,2014
Page 2 of 2

Deadlines Action ltem

March 5, 2005 Preliminary project expenses incurred
after this date are eligible for
reimbursement

Jan.27,2Q14 Return executed Letter of Commitment
(Attachment 2)

Jan.27,2014 Return executed Funding Agreement

90 days post Funding Agreement approval Submit first claim for reimbursement

120 days post Funding Agreement approval Commence construction

Dec.31,2014 Project completion

District staff is making final changes in the plans and specifications for the project and

will be returning to the Board for approval to advertise following receipt of the CDPH executed

Funding Agreement.

RECOMMENDATION

The Board:

o augment the FY 13-14 West Marin Capital lmprovement Project budget by an

additional $1,486,000 for said project,

o authorize the General Manager to act as grant administrator, and

e adopt attached funding resolution (Attachment 3)
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Proposition 50
Chapter 4a.1

Letter of Commitment (LOC) Attachment

Application for funding under the Water Security, Clean Drinking Water, Coastal and

Beach Protection Act of 2OO2 has been reviewed by the California Department of Public
Health (CDPH) and the Department of Water Resources (DWR). CDPH has
determined that Project number P5O-2110006-262, as proposed by the Applicant, North
Marin Water District is eligible for a grant in the amount of $1,486,000.

Funding is contingent upon compliance by North Marin Water District with the
following terms and conditions and subject to the availability of funds. Compliance shall
be determined at the sole discretion of CDPH or its authorized representative. ltems
must be submitted to CDPH as directed.

CDPH understands that the total Project cost is $1,486,000. North Marin Water
District is responsible for providing any difference between the grant amount and the
total Project cost to ensure a fully funded Project.

l. All items under this Section I must be submitted prior to the issuance of a
Funding Agreement for signature by the authorized representative of North
Marin Water District. CDPH has deemed all requirements under this
Section I as satisfied:

Submit a draft resolution, which has been reviewed and approved by
CDPH and by North Marin Water District governing body, designating
(an) official(s) with legal authority to:

a. sign the Funding Agreement;
b. approve claims for reimbursement;
c. sign the Budget and Expenditure Summary form (copy enclosed);
d. sign the Final Release form (copy enclosed); and
e. sign a certification that the Project is complete and ready for final

inspection.

Person(s) signing the Budget and Expenditure Summary and Project Completion
Certification must be a registered engineer(s) or person(s) approved by CDPH.

2 Submit a written designation of the Grant Administrator for North Marin
Water District.

Before any funds may be disbursed under terms of the Funding
Agreement, the following items must be provided:

1

North Marin Water District
P50-^',

ATTACHMENT 2

il

Page 1 of 3



Evidence that a separate checking account or a separate ledger has been
established to account for funds received from CDPH.

Please indicate the name and address of the financial institution, exact
name of account holder, and the account name and number. lf this bank
account is not used solely to account for funds received from CDPH, a
ledger must be established within the accounting system for North Marin
Water District identitying the Project number and Proposition 50 Funding
Agreement number.

2. Submit an initial Project budget of eligible Project costs approved by
CDPH on the CDPH Budget and Expenditure Summary form.

lll. General Requirements

This LOC is not an authorization to begin construction. Unless prior
written approval from CDPH is received, initiation of construction of this
Project prior to the execution of a Proposition 50 Funding Agreement may
affect CDPH participation in reimbursement of eligible costs,

North Marin Water District may be reimbursed only for such eligible
Project costs consisting of eligible construction expenses incurred on or
after the date of this LOC, and eligible preliminary expenses incurred after
March 5,2005.

lf North Marin Water District is required to provide matching funds,
North Marin Water District may use only eligible Project costs incurred
after October 28,2003 to satisfy matching fund requirements.

Reimbursements will not occur prior to the execution of a Funding
Agreement.

Note: Pursuant to Government Code Section 8546.7, the contracting parties shall be
subject to the examination and audit of the State or any agent thereof, and the
State Auditor.

The signed LOC shall be submitted to:

California Department of Public Health
Division of Drinking Water and Environmental Management

Anne Novak
Project Support Unit
1616 Capitol Avenue

P.O. Box 997377, MS 7408
Sacramento, CA 95899-7377

North Marin Water District
P50-21 1 0006-262

1

1

2

3

4

Page 2 of 3



The signature of the authorized representative for North Marin Water District below
indicates the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this LOC as well as intent to
proceed with this Project as proposed. This LOC does not constitute an obligation to
enter into the Funding Agreement. The authorized representative for North Marin
Water District must sign this LOG at the space provided below and return it within
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt to CDPH. Failure to sign and return this LOG
within the timeframe specified will result in a bypass of this Proiect.

Signature: Date:

Print Name:

Title

Address
[street]

[city] [state] [zip code]

North Marin Water District
P50-21 1 0006-262

Page 3 of 3



RESOLUTION NO. I4.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE OF A FUNDING AGREEMENT AND RELATED
DOCUMENTS FOR FUNDING UNDER THE PROPOSITION 50, THE WATER SECURITY,

CLEAN DRINKING WATER, COASTAL AND BEACH PROTECTION ACT OF 2OO2
(PROPOSTTTON 50)

WHEREAS, on July 17,2013, Nodh Marin Water District submitted an application to the
California Department of Public Health (hereinafter referred to as the "State") for funding in the
amount of $1,486,000; and

WHEREAS, on December 27, 2013, a Letter of Commitment was issued by State to
North Marin Water District, establishing the conditions for funding under the Proposition 50
Program for project number P5O-2110006-262 (hereinafter referred to as the "Project") in the
amount of $1,486,000, subject to terms and conditions; and

WHEREAS, on January 21,2014, the governing entity of North Marin Water District
adopted a Project budget totaling $1,486,000; and

WHEREAS, North Marin Water District affirms and designates any balance between
total Project cost and the Proposition 50 grant amount as "Supplier's Cost" to be the
responsibility of North Marin Water District to ensure a fully funded Project; and

WHEREAS, prior to State executing said Funding Agreement, North Marin Water District
is required to adopt a resolution authorizing an officer to execute said Funding Agreement and
amendments, designating a person or persons to approve Claims for Reimbursement,
designating a person or persons (registered engineer) to sign the Budget and Expenditure
Summary, designating a person or persons (registered engineer) to sign Certification of Project
Completion, and designating a person to sign the Final Release form.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the General Manager, is
hereby authorized to sign The Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control,
River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Proposition 84) Funding Agreement and any
amendments thereto; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the General Manager, is hereby
authorized to approve Claims for Reimbursement for the Project; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the General Manager, a registered
engineer, is hereby authorized to execute the Budget and Expenditure Summary for the Project;
and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the General Manager, is hereby
authorized to sign the Final Release Form for the Project; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the General Manager, a registered
engineer, is hereby authorized to certify that the Project is complete and ready for final
inspection; and

BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED, the authority granted hereunder shall
be deemed retroactive. All acts authorized hereunder and performed prior to the date of this

R:\Folders by Job No\7000jobs\7087\7087.01\7087.0'1 PROP 50\FA Resolution - North Mar¡n (2014-0'1¡6).doc
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Resolution are hereby ratified and affirmed. State is authorized to rely upon this Resolution until
written notice to the contrary, executed by each of the undersigned, is received by State. State
shall be entitled to act in reliance upon the matters contained herein, notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained in the formation or governance documents of North Marin Water
District or in any other document.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly and

regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT at a regular

meeting of said Board held on the 21't day of January, 2014, by the following vote:

AYES

NOES

ABSENT:

EXCUSED

(sEAL) Katie Young, Secretary
North Marin Water District

RlFotdefsbyJobNovooojobs\7087\7087.01\7087.01 PROP50\FAResolution-NorthMafin(2014-01-',l6).doc
Page 2 of 2





Item #11

To:

From

Subj:

January 17,2014

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time

Genera,l

The Board of Supervisors has requested Marin County water suppliers collectively

present a current water supply status report at their board meeting on Tuesday, January 28th

(see letter, Attachment 1). A 2O-minute presentation is being developed by the eight water

districts and coordinated by Marin Municipal's General Manager. The water districts involved

include: Marin Municipal, North Marin, Bolinas Community Public Utility District, lnverness PUD,

Muir Beach Community Services District, Coast Springs Water Company, Estero Mutual Water

Company, and Stinson Beach County Water District.

West Marin Water Svstem

Water bills forWest Marin are scheduled to be mailed on February 13tn. Pursuantto

the District's Water Shortage Contingency Plan (Plan) for the West Marin Service Area, when a

dry year on Lagunitas Creek is enacted under the January 1't water year classification, NMWD

is to notify customers by a bill message. That message will be included on the February 13th

bills and read:

"There are dry year conditions on Lagunitas Creek which may trigger implementation

of water shortage contingency measures. Final determination will be made on April 1't.

Please use water wisely."

It's noted that Lagunitas Creek stream flows are now at 20cfs pursuant to dry year

requirements. Normal year stream flow requirements on Lagunitas Creek for this period are

25cfs,

NMWD staff has verbally inquired of lnverness Public Utility District (IPUD) whether

they may need water prior to enactment of West Marin Water use restrictions. Restrictions on

deliveries to IPUD pursuant to the West Marin Plan would go in effect on July 1't. IPUD will need

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Chris DeGabriele, General ttianager f,p
Preparing for Dry Year Conditions
tlgm\bod mlsc 2014ìdry yoår condltlons 0'l2114,docx



water in January/February while their membrane filtration units are being replaced. But IPUD

has declined any other delivery.

Novato Water Svstem

The winter WaterLine newsletter was mailed to Novato customers on Wednesday,

January 1Sth and the Sonoma Marin Saving Water Partnership initiated a winter time public

outreach campaign on January 8th. A Technical Advisory Committee Ad Hoc meeting is

scheduled for January 21st, wherein Sonoma County Water Agency and the Water Contractors

will collaborate on drought related current activities and a path foruuard. More information should

be available at Tuesday's Board meeting.

North Marin has offered Marin Municipal the opportunity to back feed Russian River

surplus water into Stafford Lake for their use later this summer. We expect a response from

Marin Municipal prior to Tuesday's Board meeting.

Additionally, Water Conservation staff has made outreach to the City of Novato and

Novato Unified School District to alerl them of possible water use restrictions for large turf

landscape this summer.

To date there has been no declaration of water shortage emergency from Sonoma

County Water Agency.

The Board will continue to be appraised at each meeting on the status of dry year

conditions as the year progresses.
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January 13,2014

Chris DeGabriele
North Marin Water District
PO Box 146
Novato, CA 94948-0146

Dear Mr. DeGabriele,

As we enter this new year following one in which so little rain fell, it is natural for

residents and businesses to be concerned about the reliability of our county's water

supply during this extended drought period. For that reason, our Board would like to

inviie you ariO tne other public and private water system entities to collectively

present a current status repoñ at the regular meet¡ng of the Marin County Board of

bupervisors on Tuesday, january 28, at 10:30 a.m' A brief update would allow our

Board and the public to understand your agency's current supply capabilities and

challenges, as well as any timeline f-or taking drought-related actions later this year if

winter rains do not arrive in sufficient amounts. Many of our residents also are

interested in information about the kinds of water conservation measures they should

be adopting right now,

We have asked the Marin MunicipalWater District's General Manager, Krishna

Kumar, to help organize a coordinated presentation of no more than 20 minutes,

followe'd by a'pubiic comment and question period. While the County of Marin does

not have any ðirect responsibilities for water supply, we understand the value of

accurate information being communicated at a time when public anxiety may be

increasing. We also want to understand the challenges facing our Water supply

agencieslso that we can consider what ways our Board can best support our

community and those responsible for providing our water.

lf your agency is interested in participating in this report to our Board, please contact

nni. Xrisñna Kumar at945-1460, or kkumar@marinwater.orq, to facilitate and

coord¡nate your presentation. We will also be asking our Agricultural Commissioner

to update the Board on the state of water supply for our agricultural producers'

I want to thank you in advance for considering this request' The Board of

Supervisors belleves that an informed public can prepare and respond more 
.

effäctively, and this request is a reflection of that view. lf you wish to discuss this

request, þi*as" contaci my Aide, Maureen Parton, a|415-473-7593, during normal

business hours

Sincerely,

Kathrin Sears
President, Marin County Board of Supervisors

ATTACHMENT 1





MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Chris DeGabriele, General Manager (fl
Ethics Training for Board of Directors
tlgm\bod misc 2014\êthics training memo.doc

Item #12

January 17,2014To:

From:

Subject

RECOMMENDED AGTION:

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

lnformation

None

Etfective January 1 , 2006, state law (Assembly Bill No. 1234) requires that all local agencies

that provide compensation, salary or stipend to, or reimburses the expenses of, members of a

legislative body must provide ethics training to local agency officials by January 1,2007 and every

two years after. You are required to complete the training this year.

NMWD's Directors completed AB 1234 Compliance Training for Special Districts in 2012

using the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) free online Ethics Training Course which is

available again this year. The FPPC website is http://www.fppc.ca.sov/index.php. Click on the

"Ethics" tab at the top of the page and chose "l-ocal Ethics Training" from the drop-down menu. You

will then be directed to the appropriate Ethics Training Course. Attachment 1 explains the self-serve

training program. At the end of the course, you will be instructed to print out a Proof of Participation

Certificate. lt is the Directors' obligation to provide the original certificate to the District Secretary for

recordkeeping. Please do so by April 1,2014.

Please noúe that to satisfy AB 1234 requirement, the Proof of Participation Certificate must

reflect that the public otficial spent two hours or more reviewing the materials presented in the online

course. lf the certificate reflects less than two hours, the participant should have on file additional

certificates demonstrating that the official has satisfied the entire two-hour requirement. The

Training Time is recorded on the Proof of Participation Certificate that is kept on file.

This year, District officers (General Manager, Secretary, Chief Engineer and Auditor-

Controller) will also take the aforementioned ethics training.





DISBURSEMENTS - DATED JANUARY 9, 2014
Item #13

Date Prepared. 117114

Amount

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authortzation for payment in accordance

with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

ForSeq Pavable To

P/R-

EFT*

EFT. State of California

1 Aberegg, Michael

2 AirGas NCN

AT&T

Baker, Steven

Bay Alarm

Belanyi, Barbara

Berberich, Rhonda

Bold & Polisner

I Brown, Mara

10 Bruce Enterprises Parking Area

Employees

US Bank

Buckeye Nursery

Building Supply Center

Net Payroll PPE 12131113

Federal & FICA Taxes

State Taxes & SDI

Drafting services: lnn Marin Meter Change &

Fire Hydrants (Bal Remaining on Contract

$16,e83)

Replacement Charging Station for Atmosphere

Testers (STP)

December lnternet Service @ PRTP

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Quarterly Fire Alarm Monitoring System Fee

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

November Legal Services: AEEP Caltrans

Reimb B-3 ($562), Electronic Bid Proposal
($t O¡, Brown Act ($35), Dutra Project ($93)'

Employer Asst Housing ($46), Gustafson Ct.

Acquisition ($1ZO¡, MMWD lntertie Agreement
($995), Regulation 6 ($18) & RW South Ph 1B

($13,603)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Restriping Road (San Marin Dr., Novato Blvd &

Sunset)

Plants for Recycle PiPeline Area

lgniting Torch, Pipe Nipple, Hack Saw ($30)

$1 13,095.89

48,845.47

8,406.73

440.00

223.79

70.00

50.00

322.08

50.00

50.00

15,490.50

300.00

900.00

190.95

67.23

3

4

5

6

7

I

11

12

*Prepaid Page 1 of 4 Disbursements - January 9,2014



Seq Payable To For Amount

13 Business Card

14 CaIPERS Retirement System

CaIPERS Health Benefits15

16 Charles Asso, Leonard

17 Cole-Parmer lnstrument

18 Costco Wholesale

DeGabriele, Chris

Dell Computers

Disney Construction

19

21

22 Ed Aiona Photography

23 Encore Events

24 Environmental Science Assoc

Fisher Scientific

Supplies for Lab ($1 1),Credit Card Gateway
($ZO¡, Gloves for Const (12) ($42),lnsurance
for Xmas Party ($173), NBWA Conf (Baker &
Fraites) ($1ZO¡, Supplies for Retirement Party
($aZ¡, STP Radio Transmission Phone Switch
(2) ($303), Seeds for Wetland Mitigation Project
($1Zt), Super Shuttle (DeGabriele) ($42), Ads
for AEEP Reaches A-D/MSN 83 Aqueduct
Relocation ($4ZO¡, AEEP 83 Tree Removal
($1tZ¡, WAC/TAC Leaders Breakfast ($+a¡,
Service Award ($108) (Corda) & Trailer Winch
($54) (STP) (Less Credit for Cancelled ACWA
Conference $662)

Pension Contribution 12131 113

January Health lnsurance Premium (Employees
$54,161, Retirees $10,706 & Employee
Contribution $9,454)

Prepare Biological Site assessment for Point
Reyes Treatment Plant Solids Handing Project
(Bal Remaining on Contract $4,279)

Pump Cables (2) (50')

Coffee ($80) (14 llbs) & Dishwasher Detergent

December Mileage Reimbursement

Replacement PC (Grisso)

Progress Pymt#10: Construct Recycled Water
South Phase 1B (Balance Remaining on
Contract $663)

Photograph Documentation of MSN B-1

Aqueduct Relocation Construction Project
(Balance Remaining on Contract $690)

Rental of Linens for Holiday Party

Progress Pymt#3O: CEQA Construction Task
for RW South Project (Balance Remaining on
Contract $24,147)

lron (Lab)

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

20

1,117 .09

49,797.29

74,322.43

8,571.90

194.02

106.42

124.30

833.80

99,439.40

200.00

264.32

466.25

26.15

50 00

25

26

*Prepaid

Furst, Cheryl

Page 2 of 4 Disbursements - January 9,2014



Pavable To For AmountSeq

27 Golden Gate Petroleum

28 Golobe & Son Paving

29 Grainger

30 Gudelj, Stephen

31 Harris and Associates

32 Hertz Equipment Rental

33 lnternational Fire

KP Promotions

Kuehn, Phyllis

MSC lndustrial Supply

Mutual of Omaha

Neller, Jennifer

Novato, City of

Pace Supply

Pittman, Lloyd

Red Wing Shoe Store

Sebastopol Bearing & Hydraulic

Sequoia Safety Supply

SHI lnternational

Silverado Avionics

Gasoline ($3.a8lgal) & Diesel ($3.86/9al)

Re-paving of Point Reyes Tank Road (1/6 cost)

Telemetry Cable Splices (2) ($43), Face Shields
(3) & TM Cable Splice CrimPers

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Pipeline lnspection Testing Services for MSN B-

1 Reach E Project (Balance Remaining on

Contract $85,936)

Dump Truck Rental (1 I I 131 13-121 131 13)

Annual Fire Extinguisher Service

Cafeteria Plan: lnsured Medical Reimbursement

Jacket w/Embroidery (Moore)

Novato "Cash for Grass" Program

Childcare Reimbursement

Heat Cable (STP)

Jan Group Life lns Premium

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Adjust Tracer Wire Box to Grade @ Redwood
Blvd & Olive

Double Check Detector ($9ZZ¡, Popper Repair

Kits (6), Meter Box ($160), Concrete Extension
($1ot), 2" Copper Pipe (180) ($2,874), Nipples
(5) & Test Cocks (6)

Novato "Cash for Grass" Program

Safety Boots (Reed & Breit)

Air Hoses (STP) & Hydraulic Hose (18') ($105)

Safety Vests (2)

MS Project Software

Microphones for Truck Radios (2)

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

3,113.71

2,700.00

107.10

50.00

15,860.00

1,362.50

1,725.85

239.00

59.95

400.00

416.66

78.71

715.87

50.00

575.00

4,340.97

400.00

352.05

170.73

46.83

395.48

202.61

.Prepaid Page 3 of 4 Disbursements - JanuarY 9,2014



AmountSeq P le To For

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

Tanner, Roy

USA BlueBook

US Postal Service

Verizon Wireless

Whitley, James

White & Prescott

Winzer

Yates, James

authorized for PaYment

\
itor-Controller

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Beakers (12) & Chlorine lnjector ($+e¡ (STP)

Meter Postage

Cellular Charges: Data ($188) & Airtime ($1eS¡

(1e)

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Engineering Services: AEEP Easement Support

82 Reach A (Balance Remaining on Contract

$32,805)

Washers, Hitch Pins, Sanding Discs & Zip ties

for Auto ShoP

Refund OverPaYment on Account
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

L
Date

14,112.75

50.00

50.00

420.04

1,000.00

256.52

50.00

1,040.00

302.84

80.00
ï474,74'1. 1E

sonoma county water Agency July - september conservation Program

Souza, Paul Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $474,741.18 are hereby approved and

Ll^ú ,f'fu(
General Manager Date

*Prepaid Page 4 of 4 Disbursements - January 9,2014



DISBURSEMENTS - DATED JANUARY 16, 2014

Date Prepared'. 1 I 141 14

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code. beinq a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

P/R*

EFT*

11

EFT* State of California

1 Able Tire & Brake

Ackerman, Gerald

Allen, William

Athens Administrators

AT&T

Automation Direct

Baccei, Michael

Bakalar, Michael

Bay Area Barricade Service

Final Paycheck (Moore)

Federal & FICA Taxes (Moore)

State Taxes & SDI (Moore)

Tires (10) ('01 Dodge Dakota-$245, '09 Peterbilt
Cab-$1 ,524 & '10 F150-$778)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Replenish Workers' Comp Account Cost
(Bynum)

Telephone Charges: Leased Lines

Network Cards for RTU's (2)

Exp Reimb: Plumbing Services @ 15 Gustafson
ct.

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Striping Paint (120-17 oz cans) ($4SO¡ & Posts
(20) (66") ($4OO¡

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (Jan Health lns)

Recycled Water Fees (7l1112 - 6130113)
($4,813), FY 14 Small Water System Fee (Point
Reyes) ($4,590) & D1 Recertification Fee
(Baccei) ($1zo¡ (9t13-9t16) (Budget $0)

Sept - November 2013 AEEP Betterments
(Progress Payment #4)

Wage Assignment Order

Pension Contribution (Moore-Final Paycheck)

2

3

4

Employees

US Bank

Bradbery, Ronald

Butti, Lou

$5,697.15

2,776.92

568.1 0

2,547.82

1,088.28

100.00

5,523.66

957.96

402.00

188.50

547.80

898.87

97.68

349.23

9,573.20

73,895.29

1 ,018.50

613.67

5

o

7

I

I

10

12 Calif Public Health Services

13 CalTrans

14 California State Disbursement

15 CaIPERS Retirement System

*Prepaid Page 1 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 16,2014



P bl To

DeLeon, Petrona

Dell Computers

Derby, Richard

Diggs, James

Digital Prints & lmaging

Environmental Management

Eyler, John

Fisher Scientific

Franklin, Craig

Fuentes, Grace

Glasser, Rebecca

Grainger

Groeniger

Hale, Larry

Hertz EquiPment Rental

Huntsman, Daniel

Johnstone, Daniel

Journey Ford/Lincoln

Kehoe, Theresa

Knapp, Jane

Lincoln Life

For

Cafeteria Plan: Uninsured Medical

Reimbursement

Vision Reimbursement

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Replacement PC's @ STP (4)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Retiree ExP Reimb (Jan Health lns)

Vellum PaPer (10-24" x 36") (Lab)

Refund Security Deposit on Hyd Meter Less

Final Bill

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Zinc Standard, Pipettes (2,400) ($1At) & Sulfate

Standard (Lab)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Network Cable Ends (100)

3" X 5" Couplings (3) ($286) & 12" Clamp

($4to¡

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Loader Rental (1 DaY)

West Marin "Toilet Rebate" Program

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Taillight Assembly ($1Ot), Brake Pads & Rotors

($1Oa¡ ('10 F150)

Exp Reimb: NotarY Sealfor 2014

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Deferred Compensation PPE 1115114

Amou

600.00

100.45

50.00

3,280.40

1,088.28

1 ,017.68

130.07

770.55

1,088.28

244.72

200.00

50.00

50.00

14.52

701.55

547.80

92.65

200.00

1,088.28

295.13

32.96

50.00

12,087.49

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

*Prepaid Page 2 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 16,2014



Seq Pavable To For Amount

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

County of Marin

Matchette, Tim

McAghon, Andrew

McMaster-Carr Supply

Microtech Scientific

Mohn, Cristina

MSC lndustrial Supply

Musante, Ron

51 North Bay Gas

Novato Sanitary District

Novato Chevrolet

Office Depot

O'Reilly Auto Parts

2013 Annual Encroachment Permit

Retiree Exp Reimb (Jan Health lns)

December Sludge Removal (3 Yds)

Toilet Fittings (2) (Construction Office)

Lauryl Sulfate Broth (Lab)

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Utility Pumps (2) (STP)

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

Spray Paint (4 - 12 oz. cans), Distributor Cap &
Rotor, Exhaust Pipes (3), Light Plug, Latex
Gloves (6), Toggle Switch Covers (2), Wiper
Blades (8) ($130), Air Filters (5) ($57)' Oil Filters
(5) ($19), Motor Oil (35 qts) ($187), Power
Steering Stop Leak, Air Brake Hand Seals,
Mirror & Brake Lining Measuring Gauge

Carbon Dioxide ($1zs¡ (Const), Nitrogen ($625)
(STP), Breathing Air ($203) (STP) & December
Cylinder Rental ($1 17)

Recycled Water for Sept & Oct 2013

Transmission Filler Kit ($89) ('08 Chevy
Colorado) & Fluid Brake Shoe Kit & Drums
($89) ('07 Chevy Colorado)

'AA' Batteries (72)

Washer Fluid, Brake Cleaner, Glass Cleaner,
Upholstery Protector & Anti-Freeze ($111)

Test Cocks (18) ($95) & Meter Gaskets (400)
($85)

National Fire Protection Assoc Membership Dues (Mclntyre) (21 14-1 I 15)
(Budget $1 70)

Nationwide Retirement Solution Deferred Compensation PPE 1115114

Nelson, John O.

North Marin Auto Parts

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

490.00

349.23

840.00

31.11

173.04

50.00

486.26

50.00

165.00

1,025.00

1,088.28

644.50

1,069.81

26,223.16

464 20

59.17

210.44

181 .18

52

53

54

55

56

*Prepaid

Pace Supply

Page 3 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 16,2014



Seq Pavable To For Amount

57 PES Environmental

58 Peterson Trucks

59 PG&E

60 Phillips & Associates

61 Pianzola, Zenir

62 Pini Hardware

Red Wing Shoe Store

Roberts, Renee

Rogers, Caroline

Consulting Services: Gallagher Well & Pipeline
Project Hydraulic Design Plan (Balance
Remaining on Contract $4,861)

Batteries ('07 lntl 4300)

Power/Bld gs/Ya rd ($2, 503), Rectifier/Controls
($4OZ¡, Pumping ($17,486), Treatment ($157) &
Other ($5Sa¡

January O&M of O.M. Wastewater Treatment
System

Refund Overpayment on Account

Hearing Protection, Batteries, Electrical
Supplies ($76) (STP), Plumbing Supplies (SïP)
($2SZ¡, Plumbing Supplies (Apartment). Tie
Downs (3) ($45), Super Glue, PVC Cap, Pipe
lnsulation, Cable Ends, Conduit for Radio
Antennas, Electrical Outlet & Covers & Wire for
Gopher Netting

Cafeteria Plan: Childcare Reimbursement

Safety Boots (Rupp)

Retiree Exp Reimb (Jan Health lns)

Cafeteria Plan: Childcare Reimbursement

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program ($100) &
Refund Alternative Compliance Reg 15 Deposit
($315)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

December Dental Expense

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Asphalt Recycling (6 tons)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

5112" Caps ($663) (51)

21,308.11

216.39

21,091.50

5,311.43

686.07

474.17

658.84

152.05

349 23

220.00

415.00

100.00

50.00

5,035.00

97.68

547.80

20.00

97.68

1,041.91

63

64

65

bb

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

Roundtree, Philip

Schallock, Arron

Shirrell Consulting Services

Smail, John

Smalley, Gayle

Soiland

Sonosky, Norma

South Bay Foundry

*Prepaid Page 4 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 16,2014



Seo To For Amount

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

Streakwave Wireless

Telderer, Ann

Tomassini, Ron

T&TValve&lnstrument

Ultra Scientific

USA BlueBook

US Bank

Vasconcellos, Joan

Velloza, Richard

Verizon California

VWR lnternational

Williams, Jane

RTU Radios (6)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

lnfluent Valve Positioner (STP)

Mineral Sample (Lab)

Mechanical Seat for PumP (STP)

December Safekeeping Fee Treasury Securities

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (2014 Health lns)

Telephone Charges - Leased Lines

Forceps (2) (Lab)

Vision Reimbursement

Novato Washer Rebate" Program
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

( I Ø /l
Date

452.15

100.00

50.00

2,048.68

216,00

96.24

95,75

547.80

1,088.28

966.54

21.00

348,95

50,00
TZZ8l8o37

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $228,180.07 are hereby approved and

authorized for payment.

3
le Date

u,,h
General Manager

*Prepaid Page 5 of 5 Disbursements - Dated January 16,2014



MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors January 17,2014

From: Dianne Landeros, Accounting/HR Supervisor

Subj: Annual Sick Leave Buy-Back
t:\ac\word\personnel\sl\s¡ck leave buyback 2013,docx

RECOMMENDED AGTION: lnformation Only

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $21,568 in 2013

Employees accrue one day of sick leave each month. ln 1970 the District adopted a

policy to recognize employees who do not use much sick leave by allowing them to annually sell

back unused sick leave in excess of 90 days at 50% of their pay rate. This buy-back policy

provides an incentive for employees to use their sick leave benefit judiciously, and rewards

those who do so, while simultaneously reducing the District's accrued sick leave liability.

ln 2013 nine employees had accrued sick leave in excess of 90 days. One chose to

retain his accrued sick leave with the plan to convert it to additional service credit at retirement.

Eight elected to conved their eligible sick leave to cash, at a District cost of $21,568.



t:\ac\excel\personn€l\sk lv\[sl buyback'xlslsl buyback

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT 1t14t2014

Cosú Of Annual Sick Leave Buy-back Benefit
District policy allows buy-back of accrued sick leave in excess of 90 days @ 5Qo/o of value'

Paid for
Galendar

Year
1

%of
Overheaded

0.54

Days
Purchased

Employees Cosf Per

1 990
1991
1992
1 993
1994
1 995
1 996
1997
1 998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

r Tax rates and payroll amounts used are from December of each respective year

Workers' comp rate used is average rate in effect'

0A6%
0A0%
0.42%
0.47o/o

0.51o/o

0.54%
0.48o/o

0.32%
0.27o/o

0.26%
0.32o/o

0.34%
0.33%
0.36%
0.39%
0.23%
0.24o/o

0.31%
0.24%
0.17o/o

0.27o/o

0.27%
0.23o/o

0.31To

$97.84
$1 15.52

$114.88
$116.95
$107.07
$104.76
$103.69
$111.20
$1 19.93

$1 18.51

$122.16
$130.78
$134.57
$166.46
$150.63
$184.29
$173.62
$188.30
$206.22
$181.81
$202.68
$204.96
$234.22

145.5
126.0
104.2
116.4
130.9
151 ,5
160.6
140.0
93.2
73.8
74.8
91.0
95.9
94.4
BB.5
113.8
66.0
78.3
95.8
69.5
61.6
84.5
83.9
64.4
85.7

5

51.55
149.

14
13
12
12
12
14
16
14
11

8
B

10
12
11
o

11

þ
B

I
6
5
B

B

b
I
1035 99.6

Gross
(Base)

FlcA, w.c.
+ & unemp

lns'
= Overheaded

Cost

$12,628
$1 1,068

$10,772
$11,909
$13,726
$14,608
$15,387
$13,295

$9,451
$8,059
$8,013

$10,081
$11,379
$11,505
$12,818
$14,700
$10,575
$12,006
$16,214
$13,606
s10,472
$15,978
$1 6,1 55

$14,071

$1,261
91,270
$1,464
$1,581
$1,613
$1,434
$1,222

$91 0

$786
$846

$1,040
$1 ,1 64
$1,201
$1 ,910
$2,443
$1,588
$1,588
$1,816

$726
$731

$1 ,1 55

$1,037
$1,006

$12,328
$12,042
$13,373
$15,307
916,221
$16,821
$14,517
$10,361

$8,845
$8,85e

$11,122
$12,543
$12,706
914,728
$1 7,1 43

$12,163
$'13,594
$18,030
$14,332
$11,203
$1 7,1 33

917,192
$15,077

13 7

$21 56819 166

12, 044I



MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors Q
David L. Bentley, Auditor-Co ntrotter/

lnformation - Renewal of Oceana karin Liabil
t:\ac\word\¡nsuranæ\1 1\om liability ins purchase 14 doü

January 17,2014
To:

From

Subj: ity lnsurance

RECOMMENDED AGTION : lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $2,485 Expense for oceana Marin sewer vs. $3'000 Budgeted

The 2e14 premium for oceana Marin sewer improvement district's $1 million liability

insurance policy is up 22o/o ($4SZ¡ from 2013. This coverage is provided via the california

Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), a Joint Powers Authority that also provides

coverage for the sanitary districts in Novato, Central Marin, Las Gallinas, San District's 1&5'

sausarito-Marin city, san Rafaer, and the sewerage Agency of southern Marin. $3,000 was

budgeted for this Purchase.

Note from the attached chart that oceana Marin's insurance premium decreased

significanily in 2010, and continues at a moderate level. csRMA changed carriers this yearto

Allied world Assurance company based on their more competitive proposal than the prior

carrier. The new policy retains the limit of $1 million per occurrence and $3 million aggregate,

but includes a $1,000 deductible, compared to no deductible with the previous policy.

Allied World Assurance Company carries an A.M. Best Rating of A XV' The A indicates

excellent financial strength, and the XV indicates financial size is the largest rated (>$2 billion

statutory surPlus).

The premium cost for each of Oceana Marin's 229 dwelling units is $11 per year'

csRMA reports that the average cost of the 560 sewer overflow claims incurred over the first

decade of this century was $20,0481, which equates to $88 per Oceana Marin customer absent

insurance. ln February 2008 a sewer main in oceana Marin ruptured, and csRMA reimbursed

theoceanaMarindistrict$50,370forclean-upcosts.Sincelggg,whentheDistrictinitially
purchased liability insurance for oceana Marin, and including the 2014 premium, annual

premium PaYments total $62,768.

, csRMA 2o10t2011Long Range Action plan, page 29 - http:/lwww.csrma.orq/docs/aqenda-eb'100429.pdf



t\ac\exæl\insuranceUGrma premium history'xlsldata

1t3114
Oceana Marin Liability lnsurance Premium

Renews January 1

$8 000

000

Bodily lnjury and ProPertY Damage

$1,000,000 Per Occurrence
$1,000 Deductible

$z

$6,000

$5,000

$4,000

$3,000

$2,000

$1,000

2014

$2,485

2013

$2,033

2012

$2,704

2011

$2,932

2010

$2,869

2009

$6,190

2008

$6,790

2007

$6,6e5

2006

$5,959

2005

$5,718

2004

$5,294

2003

$5,073

2002

$3,394

2001

$1,696

2000

$1,675$1,262

1 999

Premium

$0



To:

From:

Subject

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Alicia Manzoni, Consumer Services Supervisor

lnformation - Meter Reading Accuracy
\\nmwdsrvl\administrat¡on\cons srvc\letters\dmc summary 201 2.doc

January 17,2014

RECOMMENDED ACTION: None

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

North Marin Water District's Field Service Representatives read 128,890 meters from

December 1,2012 to November 30, 2013. When tallying misreads versus meters read over the

past 12 months, we found that the reading error rate was 0.12o/o (157 misreads) or, stated

positively, a 99.88% accuracy rate.

ln comparison to other water utilities, East Bay Municipal Utility District claims their

accuracy rate is 99.99%, San Jose Water reports 99.90% and City of Petaluma staff 99.50%.

Our FSR's do make an effort to read each meter accurately. We strive to be accurate

and our FSR's do a great job.

2010 2011 2012 2013

Meters Readr 127,815 129,363 126,626 128,890

Misreads 64 210 150 157

Accuracy Rate 99.95% 99.84o/o 99.88% 99.88%

r Varies based on cycles included from year to year
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RËCEIVED

Novato Theater, fnc.
936-B Seventh Street #I32

Novato, C1'94945
NOrti', ''r ,:.r.r 1il/¡j¡,.i1" District

October 22,2013

North Marin Water District Board of Directors
North Marin'Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, CA94945

Dear Board

As per my discussion with Chris DeGabriele, the Novato Theater, Inc. is in the process of
soliciting funds to rebuild the theater. I am pleased to report that we have raised over $700,000
to date from hundreds of Novato businesses and citizens. With these monies, we have purchased
the building, developed the design, began the soft demo and abatement, as well as construction
planning and preparation. We are pleased to have Dan McDonald, as our architect and Amtz
Construction. as our contractor, both local professionals. The total project cost at completion
and to open the theater door is 3.2 million.

As part of the restoration, we must install a fire line to serve the fire sprinkler system. Since the
existing water main on Scoan Lane is only a 2 inchpipeline, a 6 inch diameter lines must be
installed from Machin Ave. to the rear of the theater.

'We are exploring the opportunity of creating Public/Private Partnerships with other public
agencies and Districts along with the City of Novato. Therefore, I am asking the Board and
Management to explore the partnership idea. As an example, the District could provide the labor
and the Theater would pay for all the materials necessary to install the water system.

With everyone working together, we can make this dream come to life for the Novato
Community. (Enclosed is a copy of our Business PlaÐ.

J. Dietrich Stroeh

Chris DeGabriele
Novato Theater Board

0cr 2 6 2fJ13

cc:

M\AD-NOV\Ind_Dir\JDS\Novato Thater\10-22-13 to NMVD Board.docx



Almighty Father, whose command is over all and
whose love never fails, make me aware of
Thy presence and obedient to Thy will.

Keep me true to my best self,
guarding me against dishonesty in purpose and
deed and helping me to live so that I can face

rny fellow Marines, my loved ones,
and Thee without shame or fear.

Protect my family.

Give me the will to do the work of a Marine and to accept
my share of responsibilities with vigor and enthusiasm.

Grant me the courage to be proficient in my daily performance

Keep me loyal and faithful to my superiors and to
the duties my Country and the Marine Corps have

entrusted to me. Help me to wear my uniform with
dignity, and let it remind me daily of the traditions

which I must uphold.

If I am inclined to doubt, steady my faith;
if I am tempted, make me strong to resist;

if I should miss the mark, give me courage to try again.

Guide me with the light of truth and grant me wisdom
by which I may understand the answer to my prayer.

In Loving Memory

William Harvey Melson
"Billtt

Born
October 25,1919

Díed
Decembeï 31,2013

Funeral Service
Thursday, J anuary 9, 20I 4

1 1:00 a.m.

Parent-Sorensen Mortuary and Crematory
Petaluma, California

Officíating
His loving family

Luncheon to þllow
Volpi's Ristorante & Bar

124 Washington Street
Petaluma, California
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Marin, Sonoma water agenc¡es call for conservation as
drought cont¡nues
Posfed: mannlJ.com

Marin and Sonoma water agencies have begun urging customers to conserve water in the

face of the worst drought the region has seen in at least a century.

The Marin Municipal, North Marin and Sonoma County water agencies and seven other
municipal and regional water systems that use its Russian River water launched their first

winterlime conservation campaign this week with the theme "The Drought is On; Turn the
Water Off."

Usually such campaigns are for summer months

"But because of the dry year we want to promote conservation now as well," said Libby

Pischel, Marin Municipal Water District spokeswoman.

Water managers say that Lake Sonoma, the centerpiece of the region's water supply, has

about a year's worth of water left before the Sonoma County Water Agency would be

forced to ration the supply to client cities and districts and their 600,000 customers.

The Marin Municipal Water District serves about 190,000 people between Sausalito and

San Rafael and gets 25 percent of its water from Sonoma, the balance coming from local

reservoirs on Mount Tamalpais. The North Marin Water District, which provides water to

Novato and West Marin to 60,000 people, gets 80 percent of its water from Sonoma and

the rest from Stafford Lake,

Coming out of a record dry year in 2013, officials are hoping to extend the Lake Sonoma

supply as long as possible before it reaches a critical level.

The campaign will feature ads online in local broadcast and print outlets urging residents

to conserve water, cutting down landscape irrigation, car washing, and other outdoor

activities and publicizing existing programs to replace indoor appliances and fixtures with

more efficient models.

This builds on an earlier campaign, over the summer, urging residents to take the "20

gallon challenge," reducing their usage by that much every day. This new call, however, is

much more urgent given the dire lack of precipitation in the rainy season so far.

Marin just experienced its driest year on record. |n2013, 10.68 inches of rain were

recorded at Lake Lagunitas, where the Marin Municipal Water District - which has data

dating to 1879 - keeps its official weather gauge.

The previous record low was set in 1929 when 19.06 inches of rain fell. The annual

http://www.marinij.com/rnarinnews/ci 2488 0981lmarin-sonoma-water-agencies-call-cons... lll0l20I4
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average is 52 inches per year

Forecasters say there is a glimmer of hope for later this year, with some early signs that

warming water in the Pacific may generate the condition known as "El Niño" that normally

means wetter weather on the West Coast.

ln the short term, however, the North Bay has little prospect of rain. The National Weather

Service said this week that a weak weather system will move into the Pacific Northwest

over the next few days, bringing a dusting of snow to the Sierra and rain to the upper

Sacramento Valley as early as Saturday, but that is unlikely to generate much precipitation

in Marin and Sonoma.

The wintertime conservation campaign is intended to save water now and get customers

accustomed to drought conditions going into the summer, when demand peaks and Lake

Sonoma will be under the most strain should the winter remain dry, said Grant Davis,

general manager of the Sonoma County Water Agency.

The worst-case scenario, he said, would be to see water levels drop so low that the cities

such as Novato can't get the water they need and flows in the river falls so low as to

damage habitat for wildlife, "And that is a real possibility .., we have to plan for that," he

said.

lnformation on the drought situation and tips for conserving water are available at

wateroff.org.

Distributed by MCT lnformation Services. lJ reporter Mark Prado contributed to this report

http://www.marinij.corn/marinnews lci 24880987/marin-sonoma-water-agencies-call-cons.. . lll0l20I4
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Mendocino county declares drought emergency

By GLBNDA ANDERSONTHE PRBSS DEMOCRAT on January 8, 2014,9:02 AM

Mendocino County Supervisors Tuesday unanimously declared a drought emergency, the first step in

managing the county'siwindling water supplies as rainfall continues to bypass tl-re North Coast.

,,It's just really scary to see where we are with the water supply," said Supervisor Carre Brown.

The ernergency declaration includes creation of a committee to evaluate the drought's effects on local

water sources and draft a plan to lessen its impacts.

Wells are dr-ying up and Lake Mendocino, a primary source of water in the Ukiah and Hopland valleys,

is close to an all-time low following ayear oirecord low rainfall. Just 7.67 inches of rain fell in the

upper reaches of the Russian River last year.

The city of Willits, which has its own reservoirs, plans to impose mandatory water reductions'

Supervisor .Tohn Pinches, the newly appointed board^chairman. voted for the emergency drought

declaration but criticizei county utt¿ .*t"r officials for failing to have acted to avert the problem.

There,s a flurry of activity and discussion whenevet there's a drought, then people forget about it when it

rains," he said.

,,Ilow many times do we have to knock ourselves on the heacl before we get it?" Pinches asked. "Folks,

we've got to come up with another water supply."

pi¡ches has long promoted finding new water sources. His ideas include tapping into Boy Scolt camp

reservoir near Willits and a much maligned proposal to build a pipeline from the Eel River at Dos Rios

to a yet-to-be-built reservoir.

pinches supports a decades-long effort to get the dam at Lake Mendocino raisecl, which could nearly

double the amount of water it trót¿s. But he says it would only fix part of the problem.

A dam-raising feasibility study has been in the worlcs for years but funding to cornplete the study is

inadequate and it's in clanger of being shelved.

A bigger reservoir would allow the county to better weather a drought, but it wouldn't provide tnuch

more usable water for county residents und fu.rn"ts, Pinches said, noting that Sonoma Courlty holds the

rights to about 80 percent of the lake's water'

In tlie years since the rnajor drought of r976-1977, Mendocino County's water has declined, Pinches

said. Federal agencies have alterù flow regimes in the Eel and Russian rivers during that time, changes

largely airned at reviving endangered fish populations'

Another, temporary reduction recently was macle in the water diversion that shunts water liorn the Eel

River. througt theÞotter Valley power Plant and ilito the Russian River above Lake Mendocino. The

lrttp://www.pressdemocrat.com/articlel20l40l 08/news/140109698?title:Mendocino-Count. 1t812014
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Eel River diversion historically has provided a majority of the water in Lake Mendocino and the Russian
Rivel in sumnter months.

Supervisor Dan Harnburg said people should be prepare for the possibility of a worsening in drought
conditions.

"Nobody's mentioned the elephant in the loorr, which is clirnate clìange," he said. "l'm afraid the new
normal is low rainfall."

County Supervisors Tuesday unanimously declared a drought emergency, the first step in
lTt the county's dwindling water supplies as rainfall continues to bypass the North Coast.

"lt's just ly scary to see where we are with the water supply," said Supervisor Carre Brown.

The declaration includes creation of a committee to evaluate the drought's effects on local
water soul'ces draft a plan to lessen its impacts.

Lake Mendocino, a primary source of water in the Ukiah and Hopland valleys,Wells are drying
is close to an all-
upper reaches of

trme following ayear of record low rainfall. .Iust 7.67 inches of rain fell in the
the

))

River last year

The city of Willits, which its own reservoirs, plans to irnpose tnandatory water reductions.

Supervisor John Pinches, the y appointed board chairman, voted for the emergency drought
declaration but criticized county water ofhcials for failing to have acted to avert the problern.

There's a flulry of activity and discus
rains," he said.

whenever there's a drought, then people forget about it when it

"FIow many times do we have to knock ves on the head before we get it?" Pinches asked. "Folks,
we've got to corne up with another water

Pinches has long promoted finding new water His ideas include tapping into Boy Scout camp
build a pipeline from the Eel River at Dos Riosreservoir near Willits and a much rnaligned propo

to a yet-to-be-built reservoir.

Pinches supports a decades-long effort to get the dam at Mendocino raised, which could nearly
fix part of the ploblem.double the amount of water it holds. But he says it would

A darn-raising feasibility study has been in the works for years
inadequate and it's in danger of being shelved.

funding to cornplete the study is

A bigger reservoir would allow the county to better weather a drought, it wouldn't provide much
more usable water for county residents and farmers, Pinches said, noting
rights to about 80 percent of the lake's water.

Sonoma County holds the

In tlre years since the major drought o11916-1977,Mendocino County's water has ned, Pinches
said. Federal agencies have altered flow regimes in the Eel and Russian rivers during
largely aimed at reviving endangered fish populations.

t time. changes

http://www.pressdemocrat.com/arliclel201401 08/news/140109698?title:Mendocino-Count... 11812014
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Sonoma County \tater Agency launches conservation effort

By SEAN SCULLYTHE PRESS DEMOCRAT on January 8,2014,6:03 PM

Sonoma and Marin county water agencies have begun urging customers to conserve water in the face of

the worst drought the region has seen in at least a century.

The Sonoma County Water Agency and the nine municipal and regional water systems that ul" t! water

launched their first-ever wintertime conservation campaign on'Wednesday with the theme "The Drought

is On; Turn the Vy'ater Off'"

Water managers say that Lake Sonoma, the centerpiece of the region's water supply, has abgu] a year's

worth of wat-er left-before the Water Agency woulã be forced to ration the supply to client cities and

districts and their 600,000 customers. Õo-itrg out of a record dry year in2013, they are hoping to

extend that Lake Sonoma supply as long as possible before it reaches a critical level.

..'We,re very concerned; we want to take a proactive approach ... The more we can do now, the less dire

an impact ii will have on us if this continuês," said David Guhin, utilities director for the city of Santa

Rosa, the largest water system reliant on Lake Sonoma.

The campaign will feature ads online in local broadcast and print outlets urglng residents to conserve

water, cnitiñg down landscape irrigation, car washing, and other outdoor activities and publicizing

existing programs to replacá indoor appliances and fixtures with more efficient models.

This builds on an earlier campaign, over the summer, urging residents to take fhe"20 gallon challenge,"

reducing their usage by that *.rJh every day. This new call, however, is much more urgent given the

dire lack of precipitation in the rainy season so far.

Santa Rosa ended 2013 with just 8.71 inches of rain, according to Press Democrat records. The normal

rainfall is 32.22 inches. According to Water Agency data, last year was the driest in 1 19 years of record

keeping, well below the severe drought years of I976 and 1932'

V/ater levels have fallen so low in Lake Mendocino near Ukiah that the V/ater Agency has received state

permission to slash flows into the upper Russian River to preserve what little is left for next summer.

tnut i, forcing cities north of Dry ireek, which are upstream of Lake Sonoma and thus cannot draw

water from Lãke Sonoma, to mai<e plans for mandatory water conservation; the Mendocino County

Board of Supervisors cleared the wãy for those measures Tuesday by declaring a "drought emergency."

In Napa County, reservoirs also are dwindling and the cities are eyeing their allocations from the State

V/atei project nervously. State water manugeis have warned that they will be able deliver as little as 5

percent ofthe normal ailocation from the huge network of reservoirs that supplies much of Northern and
-Central 

California, though not Sonoma and Mendocino counties.

Forecasters say there is a glimmer of hope for later this year, with some early signs that warming water

in the pacific *uy g"n"rut-. the condition kno*n as "El Niño" that normally means wetter weather on

the West Coast.

In the short term, however, the North Coast has little prospect of rain. The National V/eather Service

http://www.pressdemo crar.comlarticlel2}l40108/articles/140109653?title:Water-officials-1. U912014
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said Wednesday that a weak weather system will move into the Pacific Northwest over the next few

days, bringing á dusting of snow to the Sierras and rain to the upper Sacramento Valley as early as

Sutuiduy, 
-Uuitþut 

is unìikely to generate much precipitation in the North Bay.

The winter-time conservation campaign is intended to save water now and get customers accustomed to

drought conditions going into the irr-*"r, when demand peaks and Lake Sonoma will be under the

mosistrain should tñe wlnter remain dry, said Grant Davis, general manager of the water agency'

The worst case scenario, he said, would be to see water levels drop so low that the cities can't get the

water they need and flows in the river falls so low to damage habitat for wildlife. "And that is a real

possibility ... we have to plan for that," he said'

Water managers say existing conservation efforts, including subsidizing water-efficient home fixtures,

programs deîelopeä in the ñake of droughts in the '70s.and '80s, already have led to a dramatic

iedíction in regiònal water consumption]despite a surging population. Guhin said the city estimates the

efficiency meai,rres save about t.+ Uillion gailons per year in Santa Rosa's system alone'

But residential demand accounts for about three-quarters of all water use in Santa Rosa, with the rest

being for commercial and industrial users. The city, hoping to replicate the sucess in residential

conservation on the commercial side, hired a .on*ltunt laie last year to do "water audits" for businesses

and help owners use water more efftciently'

The municipal water systems and regional districts participating in the campaign are the cities of Cotati,

petaluma, Rohnert Park, Santa Rosa, Sonoma, Winãsor, attd the North Marin, Valley of the Moon, and

Marin Municipal Water Districts.

.,We hope this campaign will create abuzzin the local coffee shops and get our colnmunity to not only

talk about saving *ät.î, but take action by following some easy water saving tips," said Jake Mckenzie,

Rohnert park cif 
"ou.r.il 

member, in a release announcing the campaign. "Every drop of water matters

at this point."

Information on the drought situation and tips for conserving water are available at wateroff.org.

you can reach Staff Writer Sean Scully at 521-5313 or sean.scully@pressdemocrat.com. on Twitter

@BeerCountry.

Sonoma and Marin water agencies have begun urging customers to conserve water in the face of

the worst drought the has seen in at least a centurY

The Sonoma County Water A
launched their first-ever
is On; Turn the Water Off."

Water managers saY that Lake centerpiece of the region 's water supply, has about a Year's

worth of water left before the Water would be forced to ration the supply to client cities and

districts and their 600,000 customers' out of a record dry year in2013, they are hoping to

extend that Lake Sonoma supply as long as ble before it reaches a critical level.

"'We're very concerned; we want to take a proacti ach ... The more we can do now, the less dire

Guhin, utilities director for the city of Santa
an impact it will have on us if this continues," said

and the nine municipal and regional water systems that use its water

conservation 
"u-puign 

on Wednesday with the theme "The Drought

http ://www.pressdemocrat.com/articlel2}l 401 08/articles/ 1 40 53?title:Water-officials-1... 11912014
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